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NOTICE OF THE EIGHTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Eighth Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the members of Hiranandani
Financial Services Private Limited (“Company”) will be held on Thursday, September 18, 2025 at 1:30
P.M. (IST) at the deemed venue at Corporate Office of the Company situated at 9t Floor, Sigma, Hiranandani
Business Park, Technology Street, Powai, Mumbai - 400076 to transact the following business, through Video
Conferencing / Other Audio Visual Means, in conformity with the regulatory provisions and the Circulars issued
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India:

Ordinary Business:
Agenda Item 1:

To consider and adopt Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March

31,2025, the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon and, in this regard, to consider and
if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinar

Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31,
2025 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as circulated to the Members, be and are
hereby considered and adopted.”

By Order of the Board of Directors

For Hiranandani Financial Services Private Limited

KETAKI plaribrord

PRASAD N

SATAM i
Ketaki Prasad Satam

Company Secretary

M. No. A28476

Date: August 26, 2025

Place: Mumbai

Corporate Office: 9th Floor, Sigma, Hiranandani Business
Park, Technology Street, Powai, Mumbai
- 400076
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NOTES:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA") has vide its General Circulars dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, May
5,2020, December 20, 2022, September 25, 2023, September 19, 2024 and other circulars issued from time to
time (collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars‘) permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM")
through Video Conferencing (‘VC’) facility / Other Audio Visual Means (‘OAVM’), without the physical presence
of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(‘the Act’), the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’) and the MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held
through VC / OAVM. The deemed venue for the AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company.

In compliance with the statutory guidelines, the Notice along with the Annual Report 2024-25 is being sent
only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/
Depository participant/ Depositories. Members may please note that the Notice and Annual Report 2024-25
will also be available on the Company’s website www.hfs.in, and the websites of the Bombay Stock Exchange
at www. bseindia.com.

Since this AGM is being held through VC / OAVM pursuant to the MCA Circulars, physical attendance of
members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the members will
not be available for this AGM. Hence, Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed hereto. However, in
terms of the provisions of Sections 112 and 113 of the Act, representatives of the Members such as the
President of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate may be appointed for the purpose of voting or
for participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM.

As the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Members are requested to dial-in to the link provided below,
to join the AGM. We look forward to your participation.

Link: https://usO06web.zoom.us/j/83742004371?pwd=rDGb]3Skbdew2HVHw7hhgk337eXS0A.1

The facility for joining the AGM shall be kept open 15 minutes before the time scheduled to start the AGM and
shall not be closed till the expiry of 15 minutes after the scheduled time of the AGM.

In case of any assistance with regards to using the technology before or during the AGM, please contact on the
Helpline number: +91 22 6209 3477

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of
ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The proceedings of the AGM shall be recorded and shall be kept in the safe custody of the Company. Such
recording shall be made available at the request of the Members.

The relevant documents as referred to in the Notice convening the AGM and the statutory registers of the
Company are available for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company during normal
business hours on all working days, except Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays between 11.00 a.m. to 1.00
p.m. and remotely up to the conclusion of the AGM.

Members desiring inspection of the said documents and the statutory registers of the Company, are requested
to contact Ms. Ketaki Prasad Satam, Company Secretary of the Company at ketaki.satam@hfs.in. In case of any
doubts or clarification, Members may contact Ms. Ketaki Prasad Satam, Company Secretary of the Company at
ketaki.satam@hfs.in

. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the road map to the deemed venue is not annexed to this Notice.
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BOARD'S REPORT

To
The Members,
Hiranandani Financial Services Private Limited (“the Company”)

The Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Company have pleasure in presenting the 8t (Eighth) Annual Report and the
audited financial statements of the Company, for the financial year (FY) ended March 31, 2025.

1. BACKGROUND:

Hiranandani Financial Services Private Limited (“HFS” or “the Company”), is registered with the Reserve Bank
of India (“RBI”) as a Non-Banking Finance Company (“NBFC”) and has been classified as a Middle Layer NBFC
by the RBI under the RBI (Non-Banking Finance Companies - Scale Based Regulations, 2023, as amended. HFS
is primarily engaged granting of business loans, including loans against property and medium and small
enterprise (MSE) financing.

2. FINANCIAL RESULTS AND HIGHLIGHTS:
a. FINANCIAL SUMMARY
The summary of the Company’s financial performance for the FY ended March 31, 2025 as compared to the

previous FY ended March 31, 2024, is given below:
(X in crores)

Particulars FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24
Total income 44891 270.94
Total expenditure 361.00 223.95
Profit before exceptional items and tax 87.91 46.99
Exceptional items - 6.20
Profit / (Loss) before taxation 87.91 40.79
Less: Provision for taxation (net) 22.08 9.49
Profit / (Loss) for the year 65.83 31.30
Add: other comprehensive income for the year (0.92) (0.14)
Add: Balance brought forward from previous year 31.68 6.78
Less: Transfer to Reserve Fund under section 45-IC of the

RBI Act, 1934 13.17 6.26
Surplus/ (deficit) in the statement of profit and 83.42 31.68
loss

g:;gril‘:ngs per share: 0.96 0.62
Fully Diluted basis 0.96 0.62

b. HIGHLIGHTS OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, the Company had earned a total income of X 448.91 crores, as compared to X
270.94 crores in the previous FY ended March 31, 2024. The net profit of the Company for the FY ended March
31, 2025 stood at X 65.83 crores as against the net profit of X 31.30 crores for the previous FY ended March 31,
2024.

C. APPROPRIATIONS

According to the provisions of section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, the Company transferred
an amount of X 13.17 crores to Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) Reserve fund, for the FY ended March 31, 2025.
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d. DIVIDEND

In order to conserve its resources, the Board of the Company did not recommend any dividend for the year
under review.

e. BORROWING

As on March 31, 2025, the Company had a total outstanding borrowing (including debt securities) of X
2,206.18 crores, out of which the secured borrowings (secured against the pool of loan assets), including debt
securities stood at X 2118.52 crores. No interest payment or principal repayment of the term loans was due
and unpaid as on March 31, 2025.

f. CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

The Company’s total Capital Adequacy Ratio (“CAR”) as at March 31, 2025 stood at 30.63% as against 38.07%
as on March 31, 2024, of the aggregate risk weighted assets on the balance sheet and risk adjusted value of
the off-balance sheet items, which is above the stipulated regulatory requirement of 15%.

CAPITAL AND DEBT STRUCTURE:

a. AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL

As on March 31, 2025, the authorized share capital of the Company stood at X 1000,00,00,000/- (Rupees One
Thousand Crore Only) comprising of:

i. Class A Equity Shares of X 994,00,00,000/- (Rupees Nine Hundred and Ninety-Four Crores Only)
divided into 99,40,00,000 (Ninety-Nine Crores and Forty Lakhs) Equity Shares of the face value of X 10/-
(Rupees Ten Only) each (“Class A Equity Shares”);

ii. Class B Equity Shares of X 3,00,00,000/- (Rupees Three Crores Only) divided into 30,00,000 (Thirty
Lakhs) Equity Shares of the face value of X 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each, with differential voting rights
(“Class B Equity Shares”); and

iii.  Class C Equity Shares of X 3,00,00,000/- (Rupees Three Crores Only) divided into 30,00,000 (Thirty
Lakhs) Equity Shares of the face value of X 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each, with differential voting rights
(“Class C Equity Shares”).

There has been no change in the Authorized Share Capital of the Company, during the year under review.
b. PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL
During the year under review, the Company has issued and allotted 5,00,00,000 (Five Crores) Class A Equity

Shares of the face value of X 10/- (Rupees ten only) each fully paid, at a premium of X 2/- (Rupee Two Only)
each on a rights basis, aggregating to X 60,00,00,000/- (Rupees Sixty Crores only), detailed as under:

Date of | Date of | Method of | Issue Number of | Number of | Amount of
Issue allotment | allotment Price shares shares or | allotment
) allotted securities )
allotted to
the promoter
group
March 26, | March 26, | Right Issue 12/- 5,00,00,000 5,00,00,000 60,00,00,000/-
2025 2025 (Twelve (Five Crores) | (Five Crores) | (Rupees  Sixty
only) Crores only)

Post allotment of the equity shares as aforesaid, the total issued and paid up share capital of the Company as
on March 31, 2025 stood at X 7,32,11,81,830/-(Rupees Seven Hundred Thirty-Two Crores Eleven Lakhs
Eighty-One Thousand Eight Hundred and Thirty Only) divided into 73,18,18,183 (Seventy Three Crores
Eighteen Lakhs Eighteen Thousand One Hundred and Eighty-Three) Class A Equity Shares of the face value
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0of X 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each fully paid up and 30,00,000 (Thirty Lakhs) Class B equity shares of the face
value of X 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each, out of which X 1/- (Rupee One Only) has been called and paid up.

C. ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL VOTING RIGHTS

During the year under review, your Company has not issued any equity shares with differential voting rights
and hence the information as required under the provisions of Section 43(a)(ii) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) read with Rule 4(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014, is not furnished.

d. UPDATE ON PREFERENTIAL ALLOTMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 42, 62(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, and the relevant Rules made
thereunder, the Board at its meeting held on July 28, 2025, approved the creation, issue, and offer of
18,90,35,917 as fully paid up class A equity shares having face value of Rs. 10/- each for cash at a price of Rs.
42.32 (including at a premium of Rs. 32.32 per equity share), aggregating to Rs. 800,00,00,007.44 to Nama
Taano Pte. Ltd, Singapore, subject to approval of the shareholders’ by means of a special resolution.

The share price was determined based on the valuation report dated July 18, 2025, issued by a registered
valuer, which was reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board at their respective meetings
held on July 28, 2025. The shareholders at its Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on the same day, approved
the private placement by means of a special resolution.

Pursuant to receipt of the application money, the Board at its meeting on August 8, 2025, approved the
allotment of the said shares. The funds raised will be used to augment long-term resources, meet working
capital needs, and support general business purposes, with oversight by the Audit Committee.

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR:

a. Asset under Management (AUM)

During the year under review, the total Asset under Management (AUM) had increased to X 2758 crores in
FY 2024-2025 from X 1903 crores in FY 2023-2024.

b. Branches

As on March 31, 2025, the Company' had established a network of 129 branches in 9 states (+1 Union
territory), as compared to 103 branches in 9 states as on March 31, 2024.

C. Change in Nature of Business
There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company, during the year under review.

d. Listing on Stock Exchange

i. Equity Shares

The Equity Shares of the Company are not listed on any of the recognized stock exchanges in India.

ii. Debentures

The Board at its meeting held on May 9, 2024, had approved the issue, offer of Senior Secured, Rated, Listed,
Redeemable, Taxable, Non-Convertible Debentures of the face value of Rs. 1,00,000 (One lakh) each, in one
or more series/tranches on a private placement basis, during a period of one year, for an amount not
exceeding Rs. 500 crores (Rupees five hundred crores only) within the overall borrowing limits as approved
by the Shareholders of the Company at its Annual General Meeting held on July 2, 2024.

During the year under review, the Company has issued and allotted 5,000 Senior Secured, Rated, Listed,
Redeemable, Taxable Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of the face value of Rs. 1,00,000 each aggregating
to Rs. 50,00,00,000 (Rupees Fifty crores only), which are listed on the Debt Market Segment of BSE Limited,
effective from September 24, 2024.
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The Company raised additional debt capital through issuance of 5,000 NCDs of the face value of Rs. 1,00,000
each aggregating to Rs. 50,00,00,000 (Rupees Fifty crores only), which are listed on the said segment of BSE
Limited, effective from February 27, 2025.

The Company has paid the Annual listing fees to BSE Limited in respect of the said NCDs, for the FY 2025-26.
BUSINESS OUTLOOK & INDUSTRY OVERVIEW:

The NBFC sector registered strong growth in FY 2024, with AUM rising by 23%. However, FY 2025 witnessed
a moderation in disbursements due to elevated credit risk across segments and external factors such as
elections, heatwaves, and floods. Rising delinquencies in unsecured and microfinance loans have emerged as
key concerns, prompting NBFCs to tighten credit norms and recalibrate their portfolios. AUM growth is
expected to stabilize at a healthier 15-17% by FY 2026, driven by cautious lending practices and an evolving
macro-regulatory environment.

The Government of India aims to provide an additional X1.54 lakh crore in MSME credit during FY 2025,
aiming to boost financial inclusion and support economic growth.

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has reduced the repo rate by 100 basis points from 6.50% to 5.50%; across
the last three meetings of the Monetary Policy Committee held during February, April, and June 2025, in an
effort to stimulate growth.

Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) continue to play a crucial role in expanding credit access to
MSMEs, particularly in Tier Il and Tier III cities where traditional banking penetration remains limited. Their
flexible underwriting practices, faster disbursal processes, and deep understanding of localized borrower
needs have made them integral to the MSME credit ecosystem.

In the current interest rate environment, maintaining a diversified borrowing mix, optimizing cost of funds,
and sustaining lender confidence will be critical for future scalability and profitability. Co-lending
arrangements, Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs), and capital market instruments are gaining momentum,
offering more competitive financing terms to MSMEs.

NBFCs that invest in operational efficiency and strengthen risk management frameworks will be best
positioned to scale sustainably and meet the evolving credit needs of India's dynamic MSME sector.

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES:

As on March 31, 2025, the Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint venture or associate company.
Further, during the year under review, no company has become or ceased to be a subsidiary, joint venture or
associate of the Company.

The details of the investments made by the Company are given in Notes to Account forming part of the
financial statements of the Company for the FY ended March 31, 2025.

ISSUE OF NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES:

During the year under review, the Company has issued and allotted Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable,
Taxable Non-Convertible Debentures, on private placement basis, detailed as under: -

Name of . Redemption Amount
Security Scrip name Number | Allotment date Date (in Rs.)
Secured,
10.25% l’ag(?d; hsi)eld, Septemb 24, | Septemb 24
HFS NcD | fedeemable, 5,000 eptember 2%, | >eprember *| 50,00,00,000.00
taxable non- 2024 2027
2027 .
convertible
debentures
9.95% HFS | Secured, February 24,
NCD 2028 rated, listed, 5,000 2025 February 24, 2028 | 50,00,00,000.00
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redeemable,
non-
convertible
debentures

8. CREDIT RATING:

The brief details of the ratings received as on March 31, 2025 from the credit rating agencies by the
Company for its outstanding instruments are as follows:

Facilities Rating Agency Rating Assigned

Short term Bank Facilities Credit Analysis and Research Limited | CARE A1+
(CARE)

Long term Bank Facilities Credit Analysis and Research Limited | CARE A+/Stable
(CARE)

Long term Bank Facilities Credit Rating Information Services of | CRISIL A/Stable
India Limited (CRISIL)

Non-Convertible Debentures Credit Analysis and Research Limited | CARE A+/ Stable
(CARE)

The credit rating of the Company was upgraded from CARE A/Stable to CARE A+/Stable for long term loan,
CARE A1l to CARE A1+ for short term loan and CARE A/Stable to CARE A+/Stable for non-convertible
debentures by CARE Rating Limited in August 2024. In May 2025, the credit rating of the Company was
upgraded from CRISIL A/Stable to CRISIL A+ Stable for long term loan.

9. RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK:

A well-defined and properly laid out Risk Management Framework (RMF) is critical for the sound functioning
of retail lending business. It ensures that all material risks such as credit, market, operational, liquidity,
interest rate, compliance, strategic, reputational, and technological are effectively identified, assessed,
monitored and mitigated and most importantly are made aware to all stakeholders as a risk awareness
culture.

The Board of Directors oversee risk governance, while a Risk Management Committee ensures
implementation and review of risk strategies. Every material risk has a defined documentation to guide the
user towards prompt and better control mechanisms. For example, credit risk is managed through proper
product framework, proper credit appraisal, operating within exposure norms and periodical portfolio
monitoring. Operational risk is mitigated through internal controls, standard operating procedures and
incident reporting mechanisms.

A dedicated Risk Management unit undertakes periodic assessments to gauge potential losses under adverse
conditions. An effective Asset Liability Management (ALM) policy is in place to manage timely treasury actions
to better manage interest rate and liquidity risks.

The framework is reviewed periodically to adapt to dynamic market, business, and regulatory conditions.
Regular portfolio reviews are conducted to assess asset quality performance, delinquency trends, and credit
quality. Segmentation by product, risk rating, and ageing enables targeted analysis. Early warning signs are
assessed through triggers such as overdue trends, sectoral stress and borrower behavior.

10. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY:

Over the past few years, technology has become an integral part of every Company’s business operations. In
line with this, the Company has also put in place a robust technology framework, which provides for seamless
business operations across the entire business value chain including sourcing, sanction, disbursement,
collections and other back-office operations.
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On the cyber security front, the IT Strategy Committee has formulated a comprehensive policy relating to
Cyber Security, Business Continuity, Outsourcing and Information Security / Technology, in line with its terms
of reference.

In its continuous efforts to ensure a secure environment, Company has built a robust IT infrastructure and
carries out periodic comprehensive external and independent vulnerability assessments and penetration
testing, to identify and minimize external IT and Cyber security related threats.

During the year under review, the Company also conducted an independent Information System audit, the
outcome of which was reviewed by the IT Strategy Committee at its meeting held on February 06, 2025.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

Company’s is a responsible corporate citizen and is committed to adhere to the values and ethos while
conducting business consciously to respect social and environmental aspirations of the communities we
serve.

As aresponsible corporate citizen, a company must conduct its business with all stakeholders in a responsible
and equitable manner. The Company is devoted to and performs its business activities legally, in compliance
with highest ethical standards.

The Company believes in integrating its business values and operations to meet the expectations of its
stakeholders. Our CSR philosophy is at the core of everything we do. We envision a future where every person
has access to responsible financial guidance and resources that contribute to their growth and success. Our
commitment is rooted in fostering literacy, promoting sustainable practices, and creating a positive social
impact. We view ourselves as more than just a financial institution - we are a committed partner in building
a better future. By actively engaging with communities, empowering diversity and managing risk
conscientiously, we strive to create a positive impact beyond profits.

The Company believes in integrating its business model with the social welfare of people and the society in
which it operates. The CSR Policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company and can be accessed at
www.hfs.in.

During the year under review, the Company was exempted from constituting a CSR Committee, in terms of
Section 135 (9) of the Act, as such all matters under the CSR Policy, were administered by the Board.

In terms of Section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014, the ‘Annual Report on CSR activities’ for the year under review is enclosed as Annexure-3 to this report.

The Chief Financial Officer of the Company has certified that the CSR Funds disbursed have been utilized for
the purpose and in the manner as set out in the CSR Policy and as approved by the Board for the FY ended
March 31, 2025.

COMPLIANCE & REGULATORY:

The Company has obtained a Certificate of Registration on June 07, 2018 as an NBFC - Investment Credit
Company (“ICC”) from the RBI.

As per Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation)
Directions, 2023 (“SBR”), NBFCs are divided into four layers viz., top layer, upper layer, middle layer and base
layer based on the size, activity, and perceived riskiness. The Company is s a Middle Layer NBFC as per SBR.

During the year under review, the Company formulated and adopted policies and codes aligned with the
regulatory requirements and has reviewed and updated the same, as necessary, The Board also assessed the
effectiveness of the systems and processes in place to ensure compliance with the applicable provisions.
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The NCDs issued by the Company are listed on the BSE Limited (“BSE”). The Company is not a High Value
Debt Listed Entity in accordance with the provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations,
2021, as amended from time to time.

Furthermore, a consolidated compliance certificate, outlining the status of compliance with applicable legal
and regulatory requirements, is presented to the Board for its review on a quarterly basis. Additionally,
structured training programs were conducted throughout the year for all employees, including those at
branch locations, to enhance their understanding of legal obligations. These sessions cover key areas such as
Know Your Customer (KYC) & Anti-Money Laundering (AML) norms with the objective of strengthening
adherence to the Company’s compliance and regulatory standards.

During the year, the Company also underwent an inspection by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and the report
of which was awaited as on March 31, 2025.

DEPOSITS:

The Company being a non-deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company (“NBFC-ND”) did not accept any
deposits from the public at the beginning of the year nor has it accepted any deposits from the public during
the year under review. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the details relating to the deposits as
prescribed under Chapter V of the Act, is not required.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS:

The Company being a Non- Banking Financial Company, the provisions of Section 186 of the Act, pertaining
to granting of loans to any persons or bodies corporate, giving of guarantees or providing security in
connection with loan to any other bodies corporate or persons and acquiring by way of subscription, purchase
or otherwise, the securities of any other body corporate, are not applicable to the Company.

MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY:

a. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of the Company as at March 31, 2025, comprises of five Directors consisting of two Non-Executive
Non-Independent Directors and three Independent Directors. The composition of the Board is in accordance

with the provisions of the Act.

As on March 31, 2025, following are the directors on the Board of the Company:

Sr. No. | Name of Director Designation

1 Mr. Harsh S. Hiranandani Non-Executive Director
(DIN: 07661253)

2 Ms. Neha S. Hiranandani Non-Executive Director
(DIN: 01954865)

3 Mr. Utpal Hemendra Sheth Independent Director
(DIN: 00081012)

4 Mr. Prem Kumar Chophla Independent Director
(DIN: 09555408)

5 Mr. Anil Kaul Independent Director
(DIN: 00644761)

During the year under review, the Board of Directors pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, approved the re-appointment of Mr. Utpal Hemendra Sheth (DIN: 00081012) as
an Independent Director of the Company for the second consecutive term of five years, with effect from
January 14, 2025, subject to approval of the Members of the Company at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting
held on January 06, 2025, by means of a Special Resolution.
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Pursuant to the ‘Fit and Proper’ Policy adopted by the Company under the RBI Directions for NBFCs, the
Company has received the ‘Fit and Proper’ declaration from Mr. Utpal Hemendra Sheth for his re-
appointment, as an Independent Director of the Company, which was taken on record by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee.

The Members of the Company at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on January 06, 2025, approved the
said re-appointment of Mr. Utpal Hemendra Sheth, by means of a Special Resolution.

During the year under review, all the directors of the Company have complied with the Fit & Proper criteria
as stipulated under the Reserve Bank of India (Scale Based Regulation) Master Direction - Reserve Bank of
India (Fit and Proper Criteria for Board of Directors of Banks) Directions, 2023.

The directors have also confirmed that they have neither incurred any of the disqualifications as referred to
in Section 164 of the Act for being director of the Company nor have they attracted any situation prescribed
under Section 167(1) of the Act, which could lead to vacation of their office as a director of the Company.

b. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Mr. Utpal Hemendra Sheth, Mr. Prem Kumar Chophla and Mr. Anil Kaul are the Independent Directors of the
Company.

The Company received the necessary declarations from the said Independent Directors, affirming that they
meet the criteria of independence as laid down in Section 149 (6) of the Act, as amended from time to time
and that they have complied with the Fit & Proper criteria as stipulated under the Reserve Bank of India (Scale
Based Regulation) Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Fit and Proper Criteria for Board of Directors of
Banks) Directions, 2023.

None of the Non-Executive Independent Directors of the Company have pecuniary relationship or
transactions with the Company. None of the Non-Executive Independent Directors are related to each other.
The Independent Directors have confirmed that they are not disqualified from being appointed as a Director,
in terms of Section 164 of the Act and are not debarred from holding the office of Director by virtue of any
order passed by SEBI or any other regulatory/ statutory authority.

The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors of the Company possess requisite qualifications,
experience and expertise and that they hold the highest standards of integrity. In terms of Section 150 of the
Act read with the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the Independent
Directors of the Company have registered themselves with the data bank of Independent Directors created
and maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs, Manesar.

In terms of the provision of Section 178 of the Act, the performance of the Board of Directors, Individual
Directors and the Committees for the financial year 2024-25 was evaluated to assess the quality, quantity and
timeliness of flow of information between the company management and the Board that is necessary for the
Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

A separate meeting of Independent Directors of the Company was held on April 9, 2025.
c. RETIREMENT BY ROTATION

In accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company, none of the
Directors of the Company are liable to retire by rotation.

BOARD MEETINGS:

During the year under review, 7 (seven) meetings of the Board were held. For details of meetings of the Board,
please refer to the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of this Annual Report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES:

The Company has the following board committees, which reviewed matters as per their respective terms of
reference, reviewed and approved by the Board:

i. Audit Committee

ii. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
iil. Risk Management Committee

iv. IT Strategy Committee

V. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee*
vi. Asset Liability Committee

vii. Finance and Investment Committee
*The Board constituted the said Committee w.e.f. June 16, 2025.

For details of the said Board Committees, their terms of reference and meetings held during the year, please
refer to the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of this Annual Report.

The Board has also constituted the following Committees, which reviews matters as per their terms of
reference, duly reviewed and approved by the Board.

i. Information Security Committee
il. IT Steering Committee

iii. Review Committee**

iv. Identification Committee**

V. Internal Complaints Committee

vi. ESOP Committee
vii. Committee of Executives**
viii. New Product Committee*

ix. Consumer Protection Committee#
**During the year under review, the Board constituted the said Committees, w.e.f. October 28, 2024.
#During the year under review, the Board constituted the said Committees w.e.f. March 25, 2025.

SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The Independent Directors of the Company convened a separate meeting without the presence of Non-
Independent Directors and members of the management to discuss issues as they considered relevant.

For the year under review, the said meeting of the Independent Directors was held on April 09, 2025.

At the said meeting, the Independent Directors discussed and reviewed the performance of the Board of
Directors, Individual Directors and the Committees and assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of the
flow of information between the management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to perform their
duties effectively and reasonably.

POLICY ON APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND REMUNERATION POLICY:

In compliance with the Fit & Proper criteria as stipulated under the Reserve Bank of India (Scale Based
Regulation) Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Fit and Proper Criteria for Board of Directors of Banks)
Directions, 2023 and other applicable laws, the Company has formulated and approved the Policy on ‘Fit and
Proper’ Criteria for Directors, to bring uniformity in the process of due diligence, while appointing directors.

The Company has formulated and adopted the Remuneration/ Compensation Policy in accordance with the
Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation)
Directions, 2023 and other applicable laws.

The remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other applicable employees of the
Company is approved by the Board in terms of the said Policy.
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KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (“KMP"):

As on March 31, 2025 the Company had the following KMPs:

Sr. No. | Name of KMP Designation
1 Mr. Uday Suvarna Chief Executive Officer
2 Mr. Rajesh Rajak Chief Financial Officer
3 Ms. Ketaki Prasad Satam* Company Secretary (w.e.f. December 11, 2024)

*Mrs. Richa Arora, resigned as the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f. December 10, 2024. The Board of
Directors at its meeting held on December 10, 2024, appointed Ms. Ketaki Prasad Satam, as the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
of the Company, w.e.f. December 11, 2024.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and maintained by
the Company, work performed by the Internal, Statutory and Secretarial Auditors, including audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting by the Statutory Auditors and the reviews performed by the
Management and the relevant Board Committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion
that the Company’s internal financial controls were adequate and effective during FY 2024-25.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to the requirement of clause (c) of Section 134(3) read with Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of
Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, confirm that:

a. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed and
there had been no material departure;
b. such accounting policies had been selected and applied consistently and made judgments and estimates

that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at
the end of the financial year and profit of the Company for the FY 2024-25;

c. proper and sufficient care was taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;

d. the annual accounts were prepared on a going concern basis;
e. the Company being the unlisted, sub-clause(e) of the Section 134(5) is not applicable; and
f. proper systems were devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that

such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
FRAUD REPORTING:

During the year, no frauds were reported by the Auditors under Section 143(12) of the Act requiring disclosure
in the Director’s Report of the Company.

VIGIL MECHANISM:

The Company has formulated and adopted a Policy on Vigil Mechanism to address genuine concerns, as reported
by its employees and directors. The said Policy also provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of
persons who use it.

The Company had nominated Mr. Sudhakar V, Head - HR Business Partnering, as the Vigilance Officer to whom
the employees and directors of the Company, can approach for reporting their concerns or grievances and shall
have direct access to him. The employees and directors can also directly access the Chairperson of the Audit
Committee, for reporting their concerns or grievances, in exceptional cases.

During the year under review, the Company did not receive any complaints from its employees or directors under
the said Policy. The Board at its meeting held on May 10, 2025, reviewed and noted the status of the compliance
under the said Policy.
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The details of establishment of the vigil mechanism has been uploaded on the website of the Company and can
be accessed at www.hfs.in.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company is committed to provide a conducive work environment in terms of anti-sexual harassment and
has established appropriate mechanisms to ensure protection against sexual harassment of women at
workplace.

The Company has formulated and adopted the Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy and constituted an Internal
Complaints Committee to define and prohibit any inappropriate behaviour, as per the requirements of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (POSH Act) read with
the Sexual Harassment of Women (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Rules, 2013 and the said policy is
available on the website of the Company and can be accessed at www.hfs.in.

During the year under review, the Company did not receive any sexual harassment complaint, detailed as under.

No Title Particulars
1 No of sexual harassment complaints received during the year NIL
2 No of sexual harassment complaints disposed off NIL
3 No of sexual harassment complaints pending beyond 90 days NIL
AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Audit Committee provides direction to the audit function and monitors the quality of internal and statutory
audit. For details pertaining to the composition of the Audit Committee, the terms of reference and meetings
held, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of this Annual Report.

STATUTORY AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT:

RBI on April 27, 2021 issued guidelines for Appointment of Statutory Central Auditors (SCAs)/ Statutory
Auditors (SAs) for Banks and NBFCs (RBI Guidelines). The Company has formulated and adopted a Policy for
appointment of Statutory Auditors of the Company in compliance with the RBI Guidelines. As per the
requirement of the said guidelines, the Company can appoint Statutory Auditors for a continuous period of
maximum three years, subject to the firms satisfying the eligibility norms on a continuous basis.

Further, as per the aforesaid RBI Guidelines and pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Act and the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and as recommended by the Audit Committee and the Board, the
members at their Seventh Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on July 02, 2024, had approved the appointment
of M/s. KKC & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 105146W/W100621) as the statutory auditors of
the Company (due to the completion of tenure of M/s. V Sankar Aiyar & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN:
109208W)) for a term of three years, i.e. from the conclusion of seventh AGM till the conclusion of the tenth AGM
to be held in the year 2027. The auditors meet the eligibility criteria as required under the Act.

The report issued by the Statutory Auditor, M/s. KKC & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants on the Financial
Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 forms part of this Annual Report.

There are no qualifications, or adverse remarks made by the Statutory auditors in its report. The notes to the
accounts referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any further
clarifications under section 134(3)(f) of the Act.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS:

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2016, and in terms of Section 133 of the Act.
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The Accounting Policies adopted in the preparation of the Financial Statements have been consistently followed
in the Previous Year.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors had appointed M/s. Keyur H. Mirani & Co., Practicing
Company Secretary having Certificate of Practice Number (ACS No: A26354, COP No. 24035) to undertake the
Secretarial Audit of the Company for FY 2024-25.

The Secretarial Audit Report, in the prescribed Form No. MR-3 dated August 08, 2025 for the financial year ended
March 31, 2025, is annexed to this Report and marked as Annexure-4, of this report.

There are no qualifications, adverse remarks made in the Secretarial Auditor’s Report, except certain procedural
observations/comments, in respect of which the explanations are as under:

1. Wherever required, the Company has taken corrective steps, including ratification or formalization
through appropriate Board and Committee processes.
2. The relevant policies and codes under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015 and the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 have been adopted by
the Board following the listing of its debt securities on September 27, 2024 and relevant disclosures were
also made in due course.

3. The implementation of Structured Digital Database (SDD) software was completed within a reasonable
time after listing of the non-convertible debentures (NCD) issued by the Company on the Wholesale Debt
Market Segment of the BSE on September 27, 2024. Further, with respect to closure of the trading window,
the events referred to did not materially impact the share price or terms of the listed NCDs, requiring
trading window closure.

The Company has taken note of the comments/observations and has taken effective steps to ensure adherence
to prescribed timelines and applicable regulatory requirements.

COST RECORDS AND AUDITORS:

Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions of Section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

As such the Company was not required to appoint a Cost Auditor, during the year under review.
INFORMATION ON MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS:

There are no material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which have
occurred between March 31, 2025 and August 08, 2025, being the date of this Report, except for the preferential
issue on a private placement basis as stated in point 3 (d) above.

MATERIAL ORDERS OF JUDICIAL BODIES / REGULATORS:

No material order was passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals or statutory or quasi-judicial body, which
would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

The Company has formulated a ‘Policy on Related Party Transactions’ for proper conduct and documentation of
all contracts or arrangements with related parties. The said policy is available on the website of the Company
and can be accessed at www.hfs.in.

The Audit Committee has granted omnibus approval for related party transactions of the Company, which are
repetitive in nature and incidental to the general operations of the Company.
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During the year, the Company has not entered into any transaction with Related Parties which is not in the
ordinary course of its business or not on an arm’s length basis other than as stated in the financial statements of
the Company as required under Regulation 53(1)(f) read with Para A of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing
Regulations.

During the year under review, there were no transaction requiring disclosure under Section 134(3)(h) of the Act.
Hence, the prescribed Form AOC-2 does not form a part of this report. Details of Related Party Transactions, as
required to be disclosed by Indian Accounting Standard - 24 on “Related Party Disclosures” specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, are given in the
Notes to the Financial Statements.

Further, as regards to the disclosure required under Regulation 53(1)(f) read with Para A of Schedule V of SEBI
Listing Regulations, the Company has in its Annual Report made relevant disclosure pertaining to the related
party transactions.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY-

(i) the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

The operations of the Company are not energy-intensive. However, adequate measures have been
initiated for conservation of energy;

(ii) the steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate sources of energy:

Though the operations of the Company are not energy intensive, the Company shall explore
alternative source of energy, as and when the necessity arises;

(iii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipment
NIL

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION-

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption -

The minimum technology required for the business has been absorbed.

(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or
import substitution - NIL

(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year) - NIL

the details of technology imported - Not applicable

the year of import - Not applicable

whether the technology been fully absorbed - Not applicable

if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof -
Not applicable; and

e o

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development - NIL
C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO-

During the year under review, the Company spent an amount equivalent of X 12,44,099/- (for previous
financial year X 5,10,443/-) in foreign exchange towards subscription fees and advertising services and
interest on a foreign currency loan amounting to X 4,40,923 /-. There were no foreign exchange earnings
during the year under review.
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEE REMUNERATION

The Company, being private limited company, is not required to provide details of remuneration of its employees
pursuant to Section 197 of the Act, read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

HUMAN RESOURCES

We believe our employees are our most important assets and the driving force behind our success. We are deeply
committed to attracting, developing, and retaining top talent by fostering a culture that is collaborative,
transparent and performance-driven.

Our human resource philosophy is anchored in empowering individuals to realise their potential, grow in their
careers, and contribute meaningfully to the organisation’s goals. We reward merit and consistent high
performance through well-structured recognition and incentive programs, and continuously invest in learning
and development that build future-ready capabilities.

We are also focused on building an inclusive and engaging workplace where employees feel valued, inspired, and
connected to a shared purpose.

As on March 31, 2025, the Company had a total of 1,904 employees on its rolls.

COMPLIANCE WITH MATERNITY BENEFITS

As required under the Rule (5)(xiii) of Companies (Accounts) Second Amendments Rules, 2025, the Company
hereby confirms adherence to the stipulations under the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, as amended, regarding
maternity leave, medical benefits, and other related entitlements for eligible female employees.

During the year under review, 1 (one) eligible female employee availed maternity benefits offered by the
Company.

INSIDER TRADING REGULATIONS

As required under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015
(“SEBI (PIT) Regulations”), the Company has adopted a ‘Code of Conduct and Prevention of Insider Trading’ in
its Board meeting held on October 28, 2024 to foster investor confidence, promote fair trading practices, and
avoid legal repercussions. The said Code is available on the website of the Company at www.hfs.in.

In accordance with SEBI (PIT) Regulations, the Company is required to appoint a senior officer as the Compliance
Officer who shall be financially literate and capable of understanding and complying with the legal and regulatory
obligations under these regulations. The Compliance Officer is responsible for monitoring adherence to the rules
for the preservation of unpublished price sensitive information (UPSI), maintaining the structured digital
database, and overseeing the implementation of the Code of Conduct.

The Board at its meeting held on May 10, 2025, designated Ms. Ketaki Prasad Satam, Company Secretary as the
Compliance Officer of the Company, under the SEBI (PIT) Regulations.

INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF INDIA REGULATORY GUIDELINES

The Company is registered with Insurance Regulatory Development Authority of India (“IRDAI”) as a Corporate
Agent (Composite) vide registration No. CA0887. The Company has complied with the applicable rules and
regulations as prescribed by IRDAI, from time to time.

During the year under review, the Company has not obtained any registration / license/ authorisation, by
whatever name called from any other financial sector regulators, other than mentioned above.
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INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)

During the year under review, no amount was required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund.

Further, pursuant to the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (“IEPF Authority”) (Accounting,
Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (“Rules”), Ms. Ketaki Prasad Satam, Company Secretary, has been
appointed as the Nodal Officer of the Company, for the purpose of verification of claims and co-ordination with
the [EPF Authority. The contact details of person handling Investor Grievance are available on the website of the
Company at www.hfs.in.

CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS INITIATED UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND
BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016:

During the year under review, there was no application made or pending against the Company under Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

ONE TIME SETTLEMENT WITH BANKS/ FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS:

There was no instance of one-time settlement with any Bank/ Financial Institution in respect of loan taken by
the company, if any.

ANNUAL RETURN (FORM MGT-7):

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the annual return of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2025 in the prescribed Form MGT-7 will be available on the website of the
Company and can be accessed at www.hfs.in.

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME (ESOP)

The Company had introduced Hiranandani Financial Services (“HFS”) Employees Stock Option Scheme

2020, as amended (“ESOP 2020”) for eligible employees with a view to attract and retain talent, align individual
performance with the Company objectives and promote increased participation by them in the growth of the
Company.

Further, the Board at its meeting held on March 25, 2025 and the Members at its Extra-Ordinary General meeting
held on March 28, 2025, had approved and adopted the Hiranandani Financial Services (“HFS”) Employees Stock
Option Scheme 2025 (“ESOP 2025 /scheme”).

The information pertaining to ESOP 2020 and ESOP 2025, respectively, in terms of Rule 12(9) of the Companies
(Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 as on March 31, 2025 enclosed as Annexure-1, of this Report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

In accordance with the applicable provisions of the Master Direction (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale
Based Regulation) Directions, 2023, issued by the Reserve Bank of India, an analysis of the Company’s
performance is set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report, enclosed as Annexure - 5, of this
Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Corporate Governance Report, prepared in accordance with the relevant provisions as required under the
Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions,
2023, forms part of this Annual Report. Further, the additional disclosure requirements for NBFCs in accordance
with the aforesaid RBI Directions forms part of the Corporate Governance Report marked as Annexure-2, of this
report.
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The Company is compliant with SS - 1 i.e. Secretarial Standard on Meetings of the Board of Directors and SS - 2
i.e. Secretarial Standard on General Meetings, issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
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Annexure-1

Hiranandani Financial Services Employee Stock Option Plan 2020 (HFS ESOP 2020)

Nature of Disclosures Particulars
Options approved to be issued as ESOPs 1,75,00,000
Options Granted 1,81,65,000*
Options Vested 1,26,26,614
Options Exercised NIL
The total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of Options NIL
Options Lapsed 10,05,000
Exercise Price 10
Variation in terms of Options NA
Money realised by exercise of Options; NIL
Total number of options in force 1,71,60,000
Employee wise details of options granted during the year to:
i. Key Managerial Personnel
0
ii. any other employee who receives a grant of options in any one year
of options amounting to five percent or more of total options granted | 0
during the year;
iii. identified employees who were granted options, during the year,

equal to or exceeding one percent of the issued capital, excluding

outstanding warrants and conversions, of the Company at the time of | Nil

grant

*including options that have lapsed and re-granted.
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Hiranandani Financial Services Employee Stock Option Plan 2025 (HFS ESOP 2025)
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Nature of Disclosures Particulars
Options approved to be issued as ESOPs 2,75,00,000
Options Granted during the FY NIL
Options Vested NIL
Options Exercised NIL
The total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of Options NIL
Options Lapsed NIL
Exercise Price NA
Variation in terms of Options NIL
Money realised by exercise of Options; NIL
Total number of options in force
Employee wise details of options granted during the year to:
i. Key Managerial Personnel
0
ii. any other employee who receives a grant of options in any one year
of options amounting to five percent or more of total options granted | 0
during the year;
iii. identified employees who were granted options, during the year,
equal to or exceeding one percent of the issued capital, excluding
outstanding warrants and conversions, of the Company at the time of | 0

grant
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Annexure-2

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

This report outlines compliance with requirements under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(the “Act”), the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“the SEBI Listing
Regulations”) and the RBI (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulations) Directions, 2023 (the
“RBI SBR Directions”), as amended from time to time, as applicable to the Hiranandani Financial Services
Private Limited (“HFS”/ “the Company”).

1) COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

HFS is committed to maintaining the highest standards of corporate governance. The Company believes that
sound governance practices emerge from well-defined processes that ensure that the Board of Directors are
equipped with timely and accurate information, sufficient resources, and unrestricted access to management.
The Board is dedicated to safeguarding and enhancing long-term stakeholder value through independent,
objective, and informed decision-making.

Our Board comprises of members with diverse backgrounds, professional expertise, and strong ethical
standards, collectively ensuring effective oversight and strategic guidance. The management team, under the
supervision of the Board and leadership of the Chief Executive Officer, diligently manages the Company’s day-to-
day operations. HFS remains steadfast in its endeavor to foster a culture of transparency, fairness, and
accountability across all levels of the organization, in line with evolving corporate governance best practices.

2) BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of the Company is an apex body, which inter alia, oversees its overall
functioning, provides a strategic direction, guidance, leadership and owns the fiduciary responsibility to ensure
that the Company’s actions and objectives are aligned in creating long term value for its stakeholders.

A. Composition of the Board and attendance

The Board comprises of qualified and experienced persons with diverse skills, expertise, experience and practical
knowledge in the matters relating to the business of the Company (competencies) whose insights have been
invaluable to the management and has helped the Company retain its competitive advantage. The fundamental
role of the Board is to exercise their business judgment whilst discharging their fiduciary obligation in the best
interest of the Company and its stakeholders.

The Board has an optimum combination of Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The composition
of Board is in conformity with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the relevant Rules made
thereunder, the Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Finance Companies- Scale Based Regulations) Directions,
2023 (RBI SBR Directions), and the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company, as
amended, from time to time.

As on March 31st 2025, the Board comprised of 5 (five) directors, of which 3 (three) are Independent Directors
and 2 (two) are Non-Executive Directors (including 1 (one) woman director). All Independent Directors of the
Company possess requisite skills, experience, expertise and practical knowledge in diverse fields, which are
relevant to the business of the Company. Necessary disclosures relating to their interest, independence and
confirmation of adherence to the Code of Conduct etc., have been obtained from all the directors and placed
before the Board for their noting.

The profile of the Directors of the Company is available in the Company’s website and can be accessed at
https://hfs.in/our-team/

The Board met 7 (seven)* times during the Financial Year (FY) 2024-2025 i.e. on May 09, 2024, May 11, 2024,
July 31, 2024, October 28,2024, November 13, 2024, December 10, 2024, February 06, 2025 and March 25, 2025.
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The gap between two consecutive meetings did not exceed more than 120 (one hundred and twenty) days, as
per the provisions of the Act. The requisite quorum was present throughout the said meetings.

*Note: The Board Meeting held on May 09, 2024 was adjourned and reconvened on May 11, 2024 to complete
the remaining business as set out in the agenda. Hence, the said meetings are being considered as a single
meeting for the purpose of reporting the number of meetings held during the year under review.

Sr. Name of Director Capacity DIN No. of Board No. of Remuneration No. of shares
No. Director since Meetings other in and
Director convertible
Held# | Attended | ships## | Salary |Sitting Fee |Commiss|instruments
and ion held in the
other NBFCi###
compens
ation
1. [HarshS. 10.02.2017 |Non- 07661253 7 7 19 0 0 0 58,54,54,546
Hiranandani Executive (Class A
Director Equity
Shares)
2. [NehaS. 10.02.2017 |Non- 01954865 7 4 7 0 0 0 14,63,63,637
Hiranandani Executive (Class A
Director Equity
Shares)
3. |Utpal 14.01.2020 |Independent (00081012 7 4 15 0 0 0 0
Hemendra Director
Sheth
4. |Prem Kumar 20.05.2022 |Independent [09555408 7 7 1 0 23,00,000 |2,00,000* 0
Chophla Director
5. |Anil Kaul 24.08.2023 [Independent (00644761 7 7 4 0 8,00,000 |17,00,000 0
Director

#no. of board meetings held only includes the meetings which the director was entitled to attend.
##no. of other directorships includes directorships held in public limited company, private limited company, section 8 companies but excludes
directorship held in foreign companies.
###the Company does not have convertible instruments.
*An amount of Rs. 87,500 was also disbursed to Mr. Prem Kumar Chophla in respect of the previous financial year.
Note: Leave of absence was granted to the Directors/Members wherever applicable.

i)

iii)

Details of change in composition of the Board during the current and previous financial year.

There are no changes in composition of the Board during the current financial year.

During the previous financial year, the changes in the composition of the Board are as follows:

Sr. | Name of Director Capacity Nature of Effective Reason of
No change date Resignation
1 Gulab Singh Non- Resignation April 30, Increase  in  other
Zorawar Singh Executive 2023 commitments
Lodha Director (appointed
on December
062017)
2 Anil Kaul Independent | Appointment | August 24, NA
Director 2023

Details of any relationship amongst the directors inter-se

There are no inter-se relationships between the Board members except between Ms. Neha S. Hiranandani
and Mr. Harsh S. Hiranandani. Ms. Neha S. Hiranandani is the sister of Mr. Harsh S. Hiranandani.

Details of no. of shares and convertible instruments held by non-executive directors

Details of equity shares held by Mr. Harsh S Hiranandani and Ms. Neha S Hiranandani, Non-Executive

Directors of the Company have been provided in the table above.
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None of the directors hold any convertible instruments of the Company.
iv)  Confirmations from the Independent Directors:

All the Independent Directors of the Company have given their declaration to the Company under Section
149(7) of the Act that they meet the criteria of independence and are not disqualified from continuing as
Independent Directors. Also, they have registered themselves as an Independent Director in the data bank
maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs.

The Board at its meeting held on May 10, 2025, obtained the declarations of independence from all the
Independent Directors declaring that they have complied with the criteria of Independence as envisaged
under Section 149 of the Act.

The said independent directors have also confirmed that they are not on the Board of more than 3 (three)
NBFCs (NBFC-Middle Layer or NBFC-Upper Layer), in line with RBI SBR Directions.

During the year under review, no independent director has resigned, before the expiry of his tenure.

B. Committees of the Board and their composition

The Board has constituted various Committees to monitor the activities of the Company, as per the scope
defined in their terms of reference. The Company secretary acts as Secretary to all the Board Committees.

The Board has constituted the following 7 (Seven) Committees:
a. Audit Committee

b. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

c. Risk Management Committee

d. IT Strategy Committee

e. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee*

f. Asset Liability Committee

g. Finance and Investment Committee
*The Board constituted the said Committee w.e.f. June 16, 2025.

The Company has constituted the following Committees, comprising of Directors and Senior Management
Personnel:

Information Security Committee
IT Steering Committee

Review Committee**
Identification Committee**
Internal Complaints Committee
ESOP Committee

Committee of Executives**

New Product Committee*

Consumer Protection Committee#
**During the year under review, the Board constituted the said Committees, w.e.f. October 28, 2024.
#During the year under review, the Board constituted the said Committees w.e.f. March 25, 2025.

TOPE T A o

a. Audit Committee

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the Act, the RBI SBR Directions and the SEBI Listing Regulations,
the Board has constituted the Audit Committee of Board (ACB).

The ACB comprises of 3 (three) members, including 2 (two) independent directors, and 1 (one) non-executive
director. The Chairman of meetings of the ACB is an independent director.
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All the members of the ACB are financially literate and have accounting and related financial management
expertise.

During the FY 2024-25, the ACB met 5 (five)* times viz. May 09, 2024, May 11, 2024, July 31, 2024, October
28, 2024, November 13, 2024 and February 06, 2025. These meeting were scheduled well in advance and
the gap between two meetings did not exceed 120 (one hundred and twenty days).

*Note: The Committee meeting held on May 09, 2024 was adjourned and subsequently reconvened on May
11, 2024 to complete the remaining business. Hence, these two meetings are considered as a single meeting
for the purpose of reporting the number of meetings held during the year under review.

In addition to the members of the Audit Committee, these meetings were attended by Chief Financial Officer,
Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, representatives of Statutory Auditor, Internal Auditor and other
senior executives of the Company, wherever necessary for providing inputs to the Committee.

Composition of the Audit Committee and attendance record of the members for FY 2024-25:

Sr.No. | Name of the | Member of | Capacity No. of meetings of the | No. of Shares held
Director Committee Committee in the Company
since Held# Attended
1 Utpal 15/06/2022 | Non-Executive, | 5 5 NIL
Hemendra Independent
Sheth Director
2 Prem Kumar 15/06/2022 | Non-Executive, | 5 5 NIL
Chophla Independent
Director
3 Harsh S. 22/05/2023 Non-Executive 5 5 58,54,54,546 (Class
Hiranandani Director A Equity Shares)

#no. of meetings held only includes the meetings which the director was entitled to attend.
Note: Leave of absence was granted to the Directors/Members wherever applicable.

The terms of reference of ACB inter-alia includes the following:

Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company;

Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

Examining the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems

Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and other related matters;

Functioning of the Vigil Mechanism Framework of the Company;

Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to

ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before

submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:

i. Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board's
report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

ii. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

iii. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;

iv. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

v. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

vi. Disclosure of any related party transactions;

vii. Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report.

1. Approval of payment to Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by the Statutory Auditors;

m. Discussion with the auditors periodically on internal control systems, scope of audit including

observations of the auditors, and reviewing the financial statements before submission to the Board and

ensuring compliance of internal control system;

R

~
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n. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage
and frequency of internal audit;

o. Ensuring Information system audit of the internal systems and processes to assess operational risks faced
by the Company in accordance with the requirements stipulated by RBI;
p- Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is

suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure or internal control systems or a material nature and reporting
the matter to the board;

g- To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture-holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;
Recommendation on financial management including audit report which shall be binding on the Board;
Investigation into any matter in relation to the items given above or referred to it by the Board and power
to seek information from an employee or seek professional advice from external sources and have full
access to information contained in the records of the Company;

t. Right to call for the comments of the auditors about internal control systems, the scope of audit and
discuss any related issues with the internal and statutory auditors and the management of the Company;
u. Carrying out any other function as prescribed by Board from time to time or as required under any

applicable Regulation;

During FY 2024-25, the Board accepted all recommendations made by the Committee.

b. Nomination & Remuneration Committee

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Act, the RBI SBR Directions and the relevant provisions of SEBI
Listing Regulations as applicable, the Board has constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(NRC). The NRC comprised of three members, including 2 (two) independent directors. The Chairman of the
NRC is an independent director.

During the year under review, the NRC met 3 (three) times on June 26, 2024, December 10, 2024 and March 25,
2025.

Composition of the NRC and attendance record of the members for FY 2024-25:

Sr. Name of the Director | Member of | Capacity No. of meetings of the | No. of Shares
No. Committee Committee held in the
Since Held# Attended Company
1 Utpal Hemendra Sheth | 15/06/2022 Non-Executive, 3 2 NIL
(Chairman) Independent

Director

2 Prem Kumar Chophla 15/06/2022 Non-Executive, 3 3 NIL
Independent
Director

3 Harsh S. Hiranandani 15/06/2022 Non-Executive 3 3 58,54,54,546
Director (Class A Equity

Shares)

#no. of meetings held only includes the meetings which the director was entitled to attend.
Note: Leave of absence was granted to the Directors/Members wherever applicable.

The terms of reference of NRC includes the following:

a. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director
and recommending to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial
personnel and other employees;

b. To formulate the Criteria for evaluation of the performance of the Board, its Committee and individual
Director including Independent Director;

C. To identify persons who are qualified to become Director and persons who may be appointed in Key
Managerial and Senior Management positions in accordance with the criteria laid down in this policy;

d. To ensure ‘fit and proper’ status of existing / proposed reference directors by obtaining necessary

information and declaration from them and undertake a process of due diligence to determine suitability
of the person for appointment / continuing to hold appointment as Director on the Board.
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e. To undertake process of due diligence at the time of initial appointment and also prior to reappointment;

f. To recommend to the Board, appointment and removal of Director, Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”)
and Senior Management Personnel (“SMP”);

g. To determine and recommend to the Board the remuneration payable to the directors

h. To recommend the compensation for the CEO & MD, and each of the Leadership Team members, which
will be further ratified by the Board of the Company;

i. Carrying out any other function as prescribed by Board from time to time or as required under any

applicable Regulation.

During FY 2024-25, the Board had accepted all recommendation made by the Committee.

C. Risk Management Committee

Pursuant to the provisions of the RBI SBR Directions and the relevant provisions as applicable, the Board has
constituted the Risk Management Committee (RMC). The RMC comprises of Eight members including 3 (three)
directors i.e. Two Independent Director and one Non-Executive Director. The composition of the RMC was
reconstituted on November 13, 2024.

The Company has formulated and adopted the Integrated Enterprises Risk Management (IERM) framework to
oversee the risk management of the organization. During the year under review, the RMC met 4 (four) times i.e.

on May 08, 2024, July 31, 2024, October 28, 2024 and February 06, 2025.

Composition of the RMC and attendance record of the members for FY 2024-25:

Sr.No. | Name of the | Member of | Capacity No. of meetings of | No. of Shares
Director/Member Committee the Committee# held in the
Since Held Attended | Company
1 Harsh S. Hiranandani | 28/06/2021 Non-Executive 4 4 58,54,54,546
(Chairman) Director (Class A Equity
Shares)

2 Prem Kumar Chophla 15/06/2022 Non-Executive, 4 4 NIL
Independent
Director

8 Anil Kaul* 13/11/2024 Non-Executive, 1 1 NIL
Independent
Director

3 Uday Suvarna 16/07/2019 Chief Executive | 4 4 30,00,000
Officer (Class B Equity

Shares)

4 Manish Odeka 16/07/2019 Chief Risk | 4 4 NIL
Officer

5 Kartik Nagda 16/07/2019 Chief Business | 4 4 NIL
officer

6 Dheeraj Mittal 16/07/2019 Chief Operating | 4 4 NIL
officer

7 Rajesh Rajak 03/12/2022 Chief Financial | 4 4 NIL
Officer

*Appointed as a member of the committee w.e.f. November 13, 2024.
#no. of meetings held only includes the meetings which the director/member was entitled to attend.
Note: Leave of absence was granted to the Directors/Members wherever applicable.

The terms of reference of RMC, includes the following:

a. Identifying, measuring and monitoring the various risks faced by the Company;
Mitigating various risks associated with functioning of the Company;
C. To deal with issues relating to credit policies and procedure and manage the credit risk, operational risk,
management of policies and process;
d. Developing the Policies and verifying the Models that are used for risk measurement from time to time;
e. To ensure the Risk Management Policy and the other policies including Know Your Customer & Anti

Money Laundering Policy (KYC Policy) are properly implemented and followed; and
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Such other functions as delegated by the Board from time to time.

During FY 2024-25, the Board had accepted all recommendations made by the Committee.

d.

IT Strategy Committee

Pursuant to Master Direction - Information Technology Framework issued by RBI for NBFC Sector, the Company
has constituted an IT Strategy Committee. The Committee was reconstituted on March 26, 2024 pursuant to the
revised requirements under the Master Direction on Information Technology Governance, Risk, Controls and
Assurance Practices dated November 07, 2023. The Committee comprised of 6 (six) members, including 1 (one)
independent director, 2 (two) non-executive directors and 3 (three) senior executives of the Company. During
the year under review, the IT Strategy Committee met 4 (four) times viz. May 08, 2024, July 31, 2024, October
28,2024 and February 06, 2025.

Composition of the IT Strategy Committee and attendance record of the members for FY 2024-25:

Sr. Name of the | Member of | Capacity No. of meetings of the | No. of Shares
No. | Director/Member Committee since Committee# held in the
Held Attended | Company
1 Prem Kumar Chophla | 15/06/2023 Non-Executive, 4 4 NIL
(Chairman) Independent
Director
2 Harsh S. Hiranandani 15/06/2023 Non-Executive 4 4 58,54,54,546
Director (Class A Equity
Shares)
3 Neha S. Hiranandani 26/03/2024 Non-Executive 4 0 14,63,63,637
Director (Class A Equity
Shares)
4 Manish Odeka 15/06/2023 Chief Risk Officer | 4 4 NIL
5 Dheeraj Mittal 15/06/2023 Chief Operating | 4 4 NIL
Officer
6 Aditya Nabar 15/06/2023 Chief 4 4 NIL
Information
Officer

#no. of meetings held only includes the meetings which the director/member was entitled to attend.
Note: Leave of absence was granted to the Directors/Members wherever applicable.

The terms of reference of IT strategy Committee, includes the following:

a.

Approving and periodically reviewing Information Technology (“IT”) strategy and all IT policies;
Ensuring that the management has put an effective strategic planning process in place;

Ascertaining that management has implemented processes and practices that ensure that the IT delivers
value to the business;

Ensuring IT investments represent a balance of risks and benefits and that budgetary allocations for the
IT function, cyber security is commensurate with the Company’s IT infrastructure and prospects;
Monitoring the method that management uses to determine the IT resources needed to achieve strategic
goals and provide high-level direction for sourcing and use of IT resources;

Ensuring proper balance of IT investments for sustaining NBFC’s growth and becoming aware about
exposure towards IT risks and controls;

Instituting an effective governance mechanism, IT and cyber security risk management processes
including for all outsourced IT operations and to review its efficiency and effectiveness; and

Carrying out any other function as prescribed by Board from time to time or as required under any
applicable Regulation.

During FY 2024-25, the Board had accepted all recommendations made by the Committee.
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e. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

During the year under review, the Company was exempted from constituting the CSR Committee as per
provisions of sub-section (9) of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

f. Asset Liability Committee (ALCO)

Pursuant to the RBI Guidelines, the Company has in place an Asset Liability Management Committee. The
Committee comprises of senior executives of the Company. The Chief Executive Officer chairs the meetings of the
Committee. The role of the Committee is to oversee the implementation of the Asset Liability Management
system and review its functionality periodically covering liquidity risk management, management of market
risks, funding and capital planning etc. The proceedings of the Committee are placed before the Board, for their
noting and review.

The said Committee meets on a quarterly basis and as when required. During the year under review, the said
Committee met 5 (five) times on April 15, 2024, April 23, 2024, July 30, 2024, November 14, 2024 and February
05, 2025.

Composition of the ALCO and attendance record of the members for FY 2024-25:

Sr. Name of the Member Member of | Capacity No. of meetings of the | No. of Shares
No. Committee Committee# held in the
Since Held Attended Company
1 Uday Suvarna 28/03/2019 Chairman -5 5 30,00,000
Committee & Chief (Class-B Equity
Executive Officer Shares)
2 Manish Odeka 16/07/2019 Chief Risk Officer 5 5 NIL
3 Kartik Nagda 28/03/2019 Chief Business | 5 5 NIL
officer
4 Dheeraj Mittal 28/03/2019 Chief  Operating | 5 5 NIL
Officer
5 Rajesh Rajak 03/02/2022 Chief Financial | 5 5 NIL
officer

#no. of meetings held only includes the meetings which the director/member was entitled to attend.
Note: Leave of absence was granted to the Directors/Members wherever applicable.

The terms of reference of ALCO includes the following:

Liquidity Risk Management

Management of interest Rate Risk

Funding & Capital Planning

Forecasting and analysing ‘What If’ scenarios relating to liquidity
Preparation of contingency plans

Review and approval of Benchmark Rate

mo a0 o

g. Finance and Investment Committee (FIC)

The Board of the Company had constituted Finance and Investment Committee (FIC) on February 02 2022. As
on March 31 2025, the Finance and Investment Committee comprised of 4 (four) members which includes two
Non-Executive Directors, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer.

During the year under review, the Committee met 18 (eighteen) times viz. May 14, 2024, May 28, 2024, June 26,
2024, June 29, 2024, July 15, 2024, August 13, 2024, September 23, 2024, September 24, 2024, September 27,
2024, October 07, 2024, October 25, 2024, November 28, 2024, December 11, 2024, December 24, 2024,
February 18, 2025, February 21, 2025, February 24, 2025 and March 24, 2025.
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Composition of the FIC and attendance record of the members for FY 2024-25:

Sr. Name of the Member Member of | Capacity No. of meetings of | No. of Shares held
No. Committee the Committee# in the Company
Since Held Attended

1 Harsh S. Hiranandani 22/05/2023 Non-Executive 18 18 58,54,54,546 (Class
Director A Equity Shares)

2 Neha S. Hiranandani 22/05/2023 Non-Executive 18 1 14,63,63,637
Director (Class A Equity

Shares)

3 Uday Suvarna 22/05/2023 Chief  Executive | 18 18 30,00,000 (Class-B
officer Equity Shares)

4 Rajesh Rajak 22/05/2023 Chief  Financial | 18 18 NIL
officer

#no. of meetings held only includes the meetings which the director/member was entitled to attend.
Note: Leave of absence was granted to the Directors/Members wherever applicable.

The terms of reference of the Finance and Investment Committee are as under:

—

Corporate Office: 9" Floor, Sigma, Hiranandani Business Park, Technology Street, Powai, Mumbai - 400076

To borrow moneys for the purpose of the Company's business from Banks/financial institutions/other
lenders through various instruments / products as may be decided by the Committee not exceeding the
overall limit approved by the Board of Directors of the Company from time to time;

To issue, offer and allot non-convertible debentures/bonds, Commercial Papers and other securities;
To secure the fulfilment of any contracts or engagements entered into by the Company by mortgage or
charge of all or any of the property of the Company, for the time being or in such other manner as may
be deemed fit;

To enter into all negotiations, issue necessary power of attorney(s), sign necessary documents and
contracts, rescind and vary all such documents and contracts and execute and do all such acts, deeds and
things in the name and on behalf of the Company as may be considered expedient for the purpose of the
business of the Company;

To make, sign, draw, accept, endorse and negotiate cheques, bills of exchange, drafts, promissory notes
and other mercantile documents or negotiable instruments, securities, Government promissory notes,
shares and to transfer shares, debentures and other securities;

To all such activities, deeds, transactions, intimations required to open, close and operate existing and
new current accounts, overdraft, cash credit, fixed deposit or otherwise of the Company with any Bank
including but not limited to following:

avail the financial, monetary and any other products and services offered by the Bank through its
website/internet banking and/or the Corporate Customer Care Services (phone banking channels and E
mail)

avail Commercial Card /Credit Card facility

avail various services Corporate Internet Banking (CIB) and Cash Management Services (CMS)

delegate the rights (including viewing rights) for the bank accounts through various modes including
Phone Banking, Internet Banking, Email to such personnel as it may deem appropriate

furnish, sign, execute and deliver such applications, documents, indemnities and/or declarations and/or
affidavits on behalf of the Company in favor of the Bank as may be required by the Bank in any matter
related hereto and generally to do all such acts and deeds as may be necessary.

To execute from time to time counter guarantees in favor of the Company’s bankers as security for the
guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the Company in connection with the Company’s business;

To receive and give effectual receipts and discharges for and on behalf of the Company for moneys, funds,
goods and property, lent to or payable or belonging to the Company;

To represent the Company either personally or otherwise before Central and State Governments and all
other Authorities whether Municipal, Revenue or Judicial or such other local authorities or any Bodies
Corporate, as the case may be;

To execute, sign, certify any agreement, Memorandum of Understanding, undertaking, document, deed
and other writings in relation to the day-today activities of the Company;

Approve the investment products identified and recommended for investment;

Periodically review the accuracy and appropriateness of methods being used for Investments;

Monitor the Accounting of Investments in accordance with applicable regulatory framework; and

Hiranandani Financial Services Private Limited
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n. Populate List of Approved investments;

o. To delegate any of the powers stated above to any official(s) as may be deemed appropriate.
p. Any other responsibility(ies) as may be assigned by the Board of Directors from time to time.
OTHER COMMITTEES:

h. Information Security Committee

The Company has constituted the Information Security Committee pursuant to the Master Direction on
Information Technology Governance, Risk, Controls and Assurance Practices issued by Reserve Bank of India
dated March 26, 2024. The Committee comprises of senior executives of the Company. The Chief Risk Officer chairs
the meetings of the Committee.

The role of IT Security Committee involves managing cyber and information security, mitigating potential risks,
and ensuring the protection of information resources. Responsibilities include developing and implementing
information/cyber security policies, procedures, and standards, as well as overseeing and approving security
projects, budgets, and priorities. It also entails reviewing security awareness initiatives, monitoring cyber
incidents, conducting risk assessments, and addressing audit findings. Regular assessment of emerging security
issues and third-party cyber risks is crucial, alongside supervising vulnerability assessments and penetration
testing. The role requires reporting to the IT Strategy Committee and CEO, and fulfilling additional functions as
directed by the Board or regulatory requirements.

i. Information Technology (IT) Steering Committee

The Company had constituted IT Steering Committee on March 26, 2024 pursuant to the Master Direction on
Information Technology Governance, Risk, Controls and Assurance Practices issued by Reserve Bank of India.
The Committee comprises of senior executives of the Company. The Chief Executive Officer chairs the meetings
of the Committee. During the year under review, the IT Steering Committee was convened at various intervals
as necessary.

The IT Steering Committee’s terms of reference include assisting the Board and IT Strategy Committee with
strategic IT planning and ensuring IT aligns with business needs. It oversees business continuity processes, risk
management, and prioritization of critical functions and disaster recovery. The committee reviews progress on
key IT projects and ensures a robust IT architecture that complies with statutory and regulatory requirements.
It also provides regular updates to the IT Strategy Committee and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and performs
any other duties assigned by the Board or required by regulations.

j- Review Committee

The Company had constituted Review Committee on October 28, 2024 pursuant to Master Direction on
Treatment of Willful Defaulters and Large Defaulters issued by Reserve Bank of India. The Committee comprises
of 2 (two) non-executive director, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company. The
Chief Executive Officer chairs the meetings of the Committee.

The Review Committee shall consider the proposal of the Identification Committee along with any written
representations received from the borrower, guarantor, promoter, director, or other responsible persons. It will
also provide an opportunity for a personal hearing to these individuals. After reviewing all relevant facts and
materials, the committee will take a decision and pass a reasoned order, which will be communicated to the
willful defaulter. Additionally, the committee shall perform any other functions as delegated by the Board from
time to time.

k. Identification Committee

The Company had constituted Identification Committee on October 28, 2024 pursuant to the Master Direction
on Treatment of Willful Defaulters and Large Defaulters issued by Reserve Bank of India. The Committee
comprises of senior executives of the Company. The Chief Risk Officer chairs the meetings of the Committee.
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The Identification Committee is responsible for examining and approving the identification of borrowers,
guarantors, promoters, directors, or key management personnel as "Willful Defaulters" and referring such cases
to the Review Committee. It shall issue Show Cause Notices to the identified individuals, allowing them 21 days
to respond, and subsequently proposes their classification as willful defaulters with written justification. The
committee also evaluates whether criminal proceedings should be initiated based on case specifics and carries
out any additional tasks assigned by the Board.

1. Internal Complaints Committee (ICC)

The Company had constituted the Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) pursuant to the adoption of Policy for
Prevention of Sexual Harassment at the workplace at the entity level on December 29, 2020. It takes appropriate
remedial measures in cases of substantiated allegations and works to prevent and discourage sexual harassment
in the workplace. Additionally, the ICC may recommend action against a complainant if a complaint is found to
be false or malicious, or if false evidence is provided.

m. ESOP Committee

For the purpose of smooth implementation and administration of various ESOP Schemes to be introduced by
Company from time to time, the ESOP Committee was constituted on June 3, 2020. The Committee’s terms of
reference include selecting employees eligible for stock options, determining the number and terms of such
options under various ESOP schemes, and approving related documentation. It will set conditions for vesting and
exercising options, which may include performance criteria, and may waive forfeiture restrictions or impose
limitations based on its discretion. The Committee is also responsible for interpreting the ESOP terms, handling
fair adjustments during corporate actions (like mergers or stock splits), managing procedures for cashless
exercises, and ensuring tax compliance by the optionees before issuing equity shares.

n. Committee of Executives (COE)

The Company had constituted Committee of Executives (COE) on October 28, 2024 pursuant to the Master
Direction on Fraud Risk Management in Non-Banking Financial Companies which shall meet once in a quarter
or such other interval as Board may deem fit.

The Committee of Executives is tasked with overseeing the Fraud Risk Management Framework and reviewing
the Internal Control System. It is responsible for examining instances of fraud, conducting root cause analyses,
and recommending measures to strengthen internal controls and reduce fraud occurrences. Additionally, the
committee will carry out other functions as delegated by the Board from time to time.

0. New Product Committee

The Company had constituted New Product Committee on March 25, 2025, pursuant to the Framework for
Compliance Function and Role of Chief Compliance Officer in Non-Banking Financial Companies in Upper Layer
and Middle Layer (NBFC-UL & NBFC-ML) issued by RBI on April 11, 2022. The Committee comprises of senior
executives of the Company. The Chief Executive Officer chairs the meetings of the Committee.

The New Product Committee is responsible for reviewing and approving new products before launch and closely
monitoring them for at least six months post-launch. It identifies and manages compliance and credit risks
related to both new and existing products by implementing appropriate mitigants. The committee also assesses
the financial benefits, liquidity costs, and evaluate business projections to ensure profitability and support
strategic growth. Additionally, it ensures that new products align with the company’s overall business strategy
and long-term goals, while also performing any other duties assigned by the Board.
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The Company had constituted Consumer Protection Committee on March 25, 2025 pursuant to Master Direction
of Reserve Bank of India (Credit Information Reporting) Directions, 2025, dated January 06, 2025. The
Committee comprises of senior executives of the Company. The Chief Business Officer chairs the meetings of the
Committee.

The Consumer Protection Committee shall establish a structured grievance redressal mechanism to ensure swift
and effective resolution of consumer complaints, with a focus on updating and correcting credit information to
prevent litigation. It will implement dispute resolution processes, set strict turnaround times, monitor and
improve the grievance handling system, and ensure regulatory compliance. The committee will provide
quarterly reports to the Board, promote consumer awareness, periodically review policies for efficiency, and
carry out any additional functions as recommended by the Board.

3) GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

a. Details of the Annual General meetings held in the previous three financial years is as follows:
Sr. No. Type of Meeting Date and Place Special Resolutions
passed*
1 Annual General Meeting July 02,2024 at 5:00 p.m. at the Corporate office | Ordinary Resolution - 02
(through Audio Visual | at 9th floor, Sigma, Hiranandani Business park,
Means) Technology Street, Powai, Mumbai -400076 Special Resolution - 01
2 Annual General Meeting September 09, 2023 at 5:30 p.m. at the | Ordinary Resolution-01
(through Audio Visual | Corporate office at 9th floor, Sigma,
Means) Hiranandani Business park, Technology Street, | Special Resolution - 01
Powai, Mumbai -400076
3 Annual General Meeting September 30, 2022 at 10:45 a.m. at the | Ordinary Resolution - 01
(through Audio Visual | Corporate office at 9th floor, Sigma,
Means) Hiranandani Business park, Technology Street, | Special Resolution - 01
Powai, Mumbai -400076
4 Annual General Meeting September 27, 2021 at 5:00 p.m. at the | Ordinary Resolution - 02
(through Audio Visual | Corporate office at 9th floor, Sigma,
Means) Hiranandani Business park, Technology Street, | Special Resolution - 01
Powai, Mumbai -400076

*All the resolutions, including special resolutions, were passed by the shareholders as set out in the respective notices.
During the year, the Company has not passed any resolutions through Postal ballot

Brief particulars of the Special resolutions passed during the said period:

Sr. No. |Annual General meeting Brief particulars of Special Resolutions passed*
date
1 July 02, 2024 Special Resolution - 01
(To approve issue of Non-Convertible Debentures on private placement basis)
2 September 09, 2023 Special Resolution - 01
(Appointment of Mr. Anil Kaul (DIN: 00644761) as an Independent Director of
the Company)
3 September 30, 2022 Special Resolution - 01
(Appointment of Mr. Prem Kumar Chophla (DIN: 09555408) as an Independent
Director of the Company)
4 September 27,2021 Special Resolution - 01
(Appointment of Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta (DIN: 02895343) as an
Independent Director of the Company)
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b. Details of the Extra-Ordinary General meetings held in the previous three financial years, is as
follows:
Sr. No. Type of Meeting Date and Place Special Resolutions
passed*
1 Extra-Ordinary  General | March 28, 2025 at 6:00 p.m. at the Corporate | Ordinary Resolution - 01
Meeting office at 9th floor, Sigma, Hiranandani Business
park, Technology Street, Powai, Mumbai - | Special Resolution - 02
400076
2 Extra-Ordinary  General | January 06, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. at the Corporate | Ordinary Resolution - NA
Meeting office at 9th floor, Sigma, Hiranandani Business
park, Technology Street, Powai, Mumbai - | Special Resolution - 01
400076
3 Extra-Ordinary General | February 27,2024 at 2:33 p.m. at the Corporate | Ordinary Resolution - NA
Meeting office at 9th floor, Sigma, Hiranandani Business
park, Technology Street, Powai, Mumbai - | Special Resolution - 01
400076
4 Extra-Ordinary General May 04, 2023 at 1:40 p.m. at the Corporate | Ordinary Resolution - NA
Meeting office at 9th floor, Sigma, Hiranandani Business
park, Technology Street, Powai, Mumbai - | Special Resolution - 04
400076
5 Extra-Ordinary General March 04, 2022 at 5:00 p.m. at the Corporate | Ordinary Resolution - 01
Meeting office at 9th floor, Sigma, Hiranandani Business
park, Technology Street, Powai, Mumbai - | Special Resolution - 02
400076
6 Extra-Ordinary General February 02,2022 at 5:00 p.m. at the Corporate | Ordinary Resolution - NA
Meeting office at 9th floor, Sigma, Hiranandani Business
park, Technology Street, Powai, Mumbai - | Special Resolution - 02
400076
7 Extra-Ordinary General May 04, 2021 at 11:30 a.m. at the Corporate | Ordinary Resolution - NA
Meeting office at 9th floor, Sigma, Hiranandani Business
park, Technology Street, Powai, Mumbai - | Special Resolution - 01
400076

*All the resolutions, including special resolutions, were passed by the shareholders as set out in the respective notices.
During the year, the Company has not passed any resolutions through Postal ballot

C. Brief particulars of the Special resolutions passed during the said period:
Sr. No. | Extra-Ordinary General Brief particulars of Special Resolutions passed*
meeting date

1 March 28, 2025 Special Resolution - 02
(To approve the enhancement of borrowing powers of the Company)
(To grant powers to create charges, mortgages and hypothecation on the assets
of the Company)

2 January 06, 2025 Special Resolution - 01
(To approve re-appointment of Mr. Utpal Sheth as the Independent Director of
the Company for a 2" term of 5 years)

3 February 27, 2024 Special Resolution - 01
(To approve the increase in the ESOP pool grant options and amendment in
HFS Employee Stock Option Scheme 2020)

4 May 04, 2023 Special Resolution - 04
(To approve the enhancement of borrowing powers of the Company)
(To grant powers to create charges, mortgages and hypothecation of the assets
of the Company)
(Approval of issue of Non-Convertible Debentures on private placement basis)
(To alter the Articles of Association of the Company)

5 March 04, 2022 Special Resolution - 02

(To amend Articles of Association of the Company)
(To offer, issue and allot Class B Equity shares on preferential allotment basis)

Hiranandani Financial Services Private Limited

Regd. Office: 514, Dalamal Towers, 211, FPJ Marg, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400021
Corporate Office: 9" Floor, Sigma, Hiranandani Business Park, Technology Street, Powai, Mumbai - 400076
Email: wecare@hfs.in, Website: www.hfs.in | Tel: (91-22) - 6209 3493, CIN: U65999MH2017PTC291060




I IFS Hiranandani
Financial Services

6 February 02, 2022 Special Resolution - 02

(Approve overall borrowing powers of the Company)

(To grant powers to create charges, mortgages and hypothecations on the
assets of the Company)

7 May 04, 2021 Special Resolution - 01

(Increase in Authorized Share Capital and Consequent Alteration of
Memorandum of Association)

*All the resolutions, including special resolutions, were passed by the shareholders as set out in the respective notices.

During the year, the Company has not passed any resolutions through Postal ballot

4) DETAILS OF DEBENTURE TRUSTEES

Name of Debenture Address & Contact Details Contact Details
Trustee
Catalyst Trusteeship | 901, 9th Floor, Tower - B, Peninsula Business | +91 22 49220555
Limited Park, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel (W),
Mumbai - 400013

5) DETAILS OF NON-COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, including rules, regulations,
guidelines, standards made thereunder, except for the observations as stated in the Secretarial Auditors Report
in prescribed Form MR-3, as annexed to the Annual Report and marked as Annexure-4.

6) DETAILS OF PENALTIES AND STRICTURES

No penalties or stricture have been imposed on the Company by the Reserve Bank of India or any other statutory
authority(ies) or regulator(s) except as mentioned below:

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) had imposed fine of Rs. 11,800/- for non-compliance of
issuing notice of Record Date under Regulation 60(2) of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Month Regulation Penalty paid (Rs.)
October 2024 60(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure | 11,800/-
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 - Delay in issuing | (Including taxes)
notice of the Record Date*
*In reference to the SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS_Div1/P/CIR/2022/0000000103 dated July 29, 2022; BSE Limited through its
email dated December 02, 2024, levied a fine on the Company for non-compliance of delay in submission of the notice of Record Date under
Regulation 60(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Company made the payment of the fine
levied to the BSE Limited on February 02, 2025.

7) BREACH OF COVENANT

There have been no instance(s) of breach of covenant in respect of the loans availed by the Company.

8) DIVERGENCE IN ASSET CLASSIFICATION AND PROVISIONING

i) No additional provisioning requirements have been assessed by Reserve Bank of India exceeding 5% of
the reported profits before tax and impairment loss on financial instruments for the FY ended 31 March
2024 and 31 March 2025, respectively.
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ii) Reserve Bank of India has not identified additional GNPAs exceeding 5% of reported GNPAs for the FY
ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2025, respectively.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Hiranandani Financial Services Private Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Harsh S. Hiranandani Neha S. Hiranandani
Director Director

DIN: 07661253 DIN: 01954865
Place: Mumbai Place: London

Date: August 08, 2025 Date: August 08, 2025
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Annexure-3

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR (FY) 2024-25
1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

Hiranandani Financial Services Private Limited (“HFS”/ “Company”) believes in integrating its business values and
operations to meet the expectations of its stakeholders. We envision a future where every person has access to
responsible financial guidance and resources that contribute to their growth and success. Our commitment is rooted
in fostering literacy, promoting sustainable practices and financial empowerment, and creating a positive social
impact.

For details of the CSR Policy, kindly refer to the website of the Company - www.hfs.in

Focus areas in FY 2024-25:
e Supporting sustainable livelihood enhancement projects
e Enhancing vocational skills among rural youth including women.
e Promoting women empowerment

CSR Activity undertaken in FY 2024-25: In the year under review, Company had partnered with Ambuja
Foundation, a non-governmental organisation (NGO) as part of their Skill Development Programme which supports
rural youth including women from low-income communities with the impetus they need to be financially
independent. Through this partnership, Company has supported local youth from marginalised areas of Surat &
Morbi, Gujarat and Nagaur, Rajasthan by equipping them with both technical & soft skills tailored to the current
demands of the local job market, thereby creating significant employment opportunities.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

During the year under review, the Company was exempted from constituting the CSR Committee as per provisions
of sub-section (9) of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Sl No. Name of Director Number of meetings Number of meetings
Designation / Nature of of CSR Committee held of CSR
Directorship during the year Committee attended
during the year

Not applicable

3. The web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board
are disclosed on the website of the Company: www.hfs.in

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in
pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable: Not applicable

5. (a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135: X 2,173.72 lakhs
(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135: X 43.47 lakhs

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programs or activities of the previous financial years: X 0.07
lakhs

(d) Amount required to be set-off for the Financial Year, if any: X 0.07 lakhs
(e) Total CSR obligation for the Financial Year [(b)+(c)-(d)]: X 43.47 lakhs

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): X 36.87
lakhs
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(b) Amount spent in Administrative overheads: Nil
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not applicable
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b) +(c)]: X 43.50 lakhs

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year: X 43.50 lakhs & Nil unspent

Amount Unspent (X in lakhs)
Total Amount Spent | Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR | Amount transferred to any fund
for the Financial Account as per sub-section (6) of section specified under Schedule VII as
Year 135 per second proviso to sub-section
(X in lakhs) (5) of section 135
Amount (X in lakhs) Date of Name | Amount Date of
transfer of the (Rin transfer
Fund lakhs)
43.50 Nil Nil
(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any:
Sl Particular Amount (X in lakhs)
No.
(i) | Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section 43.47
(5) of section 135
(ii) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 43.50
(iii) | Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] 0.03
(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the 0.07
previous Financial Years, if any
(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii)-(iv)] 0.10
7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years:
Sl. | Preceding Amount Balance Amount Amount Amount Deficiency,
No. | Financial | transferred | Amount Spent in transferred to a remaining if any
Year(s) to Unspent in the Fund as specified | to be spent
CSR Unspent | Financial | under Schedule VII in
Account CSR Year (X as per second succeeding
under sub- Account | inlakhs) proviso to sub- Financial
section (6) under section (5) Years (X in
of section sub- of section 135, if lakhs)
135 (X in section any
lakhs) (6) Amount | Date of
of section (Rin Transfer
135 (X in lakhs)
lakhs)
FY 23-24 - - - - - -
FY 22-23 - - - - - -
FY 21-22 - - - - - -
8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social

Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: No

If yes, enter the number of capital assets created / acquired: Not applicable

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through CSR amount spentin the Financial

Year:
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Sl. No. Short Pin code Date of | Amount | Details of entity/ Authority/ beneficiary
particulars of of the creation of CSR of the registered owner
the property or | property amount
asset(s) or spent
[including asset(s)
complete CSR Name Registered
address and Registration address
location of the Number, if
property] applicable
Not applicable

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per sub-
section (5) of section 135: Not applicable

For Hiranandani Financial Services Private Limited

Sd/-

Uday Suvarna
Chief Executive Officer Director

Place: Mumbai

Date: August 08, 2025

Sd/-

Harsh S. Hiranandani
DIN: 07661253

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 08, 2025

Hiranandani Financial Services Private Limited

Regd. Office: 514, Dalamal Towers, 211, FPJ Marg, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400021
Corporate Office: 9" Floor, Sigma, Hiranandani Business Park, Technology Street, Powai, Mumbai - 400076
Email: wecare@hfs.in, Website: www.hfs.in | Tel: (91-22) - 6209 3493, CIN: U65999MH2017PTC291060



Annexure-4

Keyur H Mirani
Practising Company Secretary
Office : 410, Bhaveshwar Arcade Annexe

Opp. Shreyas Cinema, LBS Marg,
Ghatkopar (West), Mumbai 400086

Tel 1 022- 4970 7990
Mob : 9930178317
Email : mirani.keyur@gmail.com

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Board of Directors

HIRANANDANI FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED,
CIN: U65999MH2017PTC291060

9th Floor, Sigma Building, Hiranandani Business Park,
Technology Street, Powai, Mumbai- 400076

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Hiranandani Financial Services Private Limited (hereinafter
called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing my opinion
thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and provided to me and also the information provided by
the Company, its officers and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, |
hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period, covering the financial
year ended on March 31, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 according to the
provisions of:

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the rules made there under;

(ii)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) and the rules made there under;

(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
to the extent of the Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings (Not applicable during the year under review);

(v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”):-
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(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 (Not applicable during the year under review);

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI PIT Regulations”);

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable during the year under review);

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable during the year under review);

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021;

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2021 (Not applicable during the year under review);

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018
(Not applicable during the year under review);

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants)
Regulations, 2018; and

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements), Regulations, 2015;

We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on the
examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the
Company has generally complied with the following laws applicable specifically to the Company:

Master Direction/Circulars/Guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”), as applicable to
Non-Banking Financial Companies (“NBFC”), including the following:

i. The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934;

ii. Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit
taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016;

iii. Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based
Regulation) Directions, 2023;

iv. Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company Returns (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016;

V. Master Direction - Know Your Customer (KYC) Direction, 2016;

vi. Master Direction - Monitoring of Frauds in NBFCs (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016;

vii. Master Directions on Fraud Risk Management in Non-Banking Financial Companies;
viii. Master Direction on Information Technology Governance, Risk, Controls and Assurance
Practices;

ix. Master Direction - Information Technology Framework for the NBFC Sector;

X. Raising Money through Private Placement of Non Convertible Debentures (NCDs) by NBFCs —
RBI Guidelines; and

Xi. Master Circular — Non-Banking Financial Companies — Corporate Governance (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2015
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I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India; and;

(ii)  The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s) and the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing
Regulations”);

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, standards etc. as mentioned above subject to the following observations:

1. The Board approved availing a secured loan from Indusind Bank Limited through resolution
passed by circulation instead of a resolution passed at a duly convened meeting of the Board, as
required under Section 179 of the Act.

2. In terms of Rule 6A of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, the Audit
Committee may grant omnibus approval for related party transactions only after the Board has
approved the criteria for such approvals. However, the Audit Committee granted omnibus
approvals prior to the Board's approval of the criteria. The Board subsequently approved the
criteria for granting omnibus approvals at its meeting held on May 10, 2025.

3. Interms of Rule 9 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (effective from
October 27, 2023), the Company shall designate a person who shall be responsible for furnishing
information regarding beneficial interest in shares to the Registrar of Companies or any officer
authorized by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the company shall inform the details of the
designated person in annual return. The Board at its meeting held on March 25, 2025 has
designated the Company Secretary of the Company for the aforesaid purpose.

4. In terms of Regulation 51(2) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the following disclosures were

required to be made to Stock Exchange within 24 hours of the occurrence of such events, however

the Company has submitted such disclosures as mentioned below:
Sr. | Disclosure of events or information Date of event Date of
No. submission
1 | Proceedings of the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of | 06.01.2025 14.04.2025

the members of the Company held on January 6, 2025

2 | Intimation regarding the appointment of an 06.01.2025 07.07.2025

Independent Director for the second term

3 | Disclosure of the credit rating 25.02.2025 11.07.2025

03.03.2025

5. Subsequent to the year under review, the Board at its meeting held on May 10, 2025 has
adopted/approved the following:

i.  Archival Policy as required under Regulation 9 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

ii. ~ Framework for the transfer of unclaimed amounts to an Escrow Account and appointment of
the Nodal Officer as required under the SEBI circular dated November 8, 2023.

iii. Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive
Information as required under Regulation 8 of the SEBI PIT Regulations.
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6. The definition of “Designated Person” as mentioned under the Policy for Code of Conduct and
Prevention of Insider Trading’ was not in line with the provisions of the Regulation 9(4) of the SEBI
PIT Regulations.

7. The Board at its meeting held on October 28, 2024 approved and adopted the “Policy for Code of
conduct and Prevention of Insider Trading”, wherein the following has been incorporated:

»  “The Company Secretary of the Company or such other senior official nominated as such by
the Company from time to time shall be the Chief Investor Relations Officer (“CIRO”) for the
purpose of the Code.”

»  “The Company Secretary and in his/her absence Chief Financial Officer of the Company is
designated as the Compliance Officer for the purpose of this Policy and the PIT Regulations.”

The Board at its meeting held on May 10, 2025, has designated the Company Secretary as the

Compliance Officer and the Chief Investor Relations Officer pursuant to the provisions of SEBI PIT

Regulations.

8. The Company has not closed its trading window for the following events as required under SEBI
PIT Regulations:

(a) Change in the Key Managerial Personnel i.e. appointment and resignation of the Company

Secretary; and
(b) Change in capital structure i.e. allotment of the Equity Shares on the rights basis amounting
to INR 60 crore on March 26, 2025.

9. The debentures of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on September 27, 2024 and
the Structured Digital Database (SDD) as required under Regulation 3(5) of the SEBI PIT
Regulations was implemented in November 2024.

10. In terms of Regulation 9A(4) of the SEBI PIT Regulations, the Audit Committee shall review
compliance with the provisions of the SEBI PIT Regulations at least once in the financial year and
shall verify that the systems for internal controls are adequate and are operating effectively. The
Audit Committee at its meeting held on July 28, 2025 reviewed the said compliance.

11. A fraud detected by the Company on June 18, 2024 which was reported to the Risk Management
Committee and the Board on October 28, 2024 which was not in line with the requirements under
Master Direction - Monitoring of Frauds in NBFCs (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

12. In terms of the Master Direction on Information Technology Governance, Risk, Controls and
Assurance Practices, the IT Steering Committee shall meet at least on a quarterly basis. The IT
Steering Committee met 3 (three) times.

13. The BSE Limited levied a fine of INR 3,540/- (inclusive of taxes) for a delay in the appointment of
the Compliance Officer as required under Regulation 6 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. Based on
the representation made by the Company, the BSE Limited waived the fine levied by it.

14. The BSE Limited levied a fine of INR 11,800/- (inclusive of taxes) for a one-day delay in reporting
the record date as required under Regulation 60(2) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, which was paid
by the Company to the BSE Limited.

| further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that
took place during the year under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act
and the SEBI Listing Regulations.
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Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings (including committees
meetings), agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance except
where consent of directors was received for circulation of notice, agenda and notes on agenda at a
shorter notice, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on
the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at the Meetings of the Board and its Committee were carried out unanimously as
recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees of the Board, as the
case may be.

| further report that having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company, the Company
has adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of
the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

| further report that during the year under review, the Company has done the following transactions
in due compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act:

1. The Company has inter-alia passed the following special resolution in the Annual General Meeting
held on July 2, 2024:
(a) To approve issue of Non-Convertible Debentures on private placement basis.

2. The Company has issued and allotted Non Convertible Debentures on Private Placement basis in
various tranches the details of which are as follows:

Sr. | Particulars Quantity | Face Value per
No. Debenture
(Amt in INR)
1 Rated, Listed, Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible 5,000 1,00,000
Debentures allotted on 24" September, 2024
2 | Rated, Listed, Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible 5,000 1,00,000
Debentures allotted on 24" February 2025

3. The Board at its meeting held on December 10, 2024, approved the resignation of Ms. Richa
Arora, Company Secretary and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. Further, at the same
meeting, the Board on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
approved the appointment of Ms. Ketaki Prasad Satam as the Company Secretary and Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company w.e.f. December 11, 2024.

4. The Company hasissued 5,00,00,000 (Five Crore) fully paid-up Class A Equity Shares of face value
of INR 10/- (Indian Rupees Ten only) each (the “Equity Shares”) at a price of INR 12/- (Indian
Rupees Twelve only) per share for an aggregate amount not exceeding INR 60,00,00,000/- (Indian
Rupees Sixty Crore only) by way of a rights issue on March 26, 2025.
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5. The Company has adopted Hiranandani Financial Services - Employee Stock Option Plan 2025 to
grant options exercisable into not more than 2,75,00,000 equity shares of face value of INR 10/-
each fully paid-up

KEYU R Digitally signed

by KEYUR MIRANI
MIRANI “essoq o530

Keyur H Mirani

Practising Company Secretary
ACS No: A26354, COP No. 24035
PR No: 3247/2023

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 08, 2025
UDIN: A026354G000929674

The Report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure and forms an integral
part of this report.
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ANNEXURE TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Board of Directors

HIRANANDANI FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED,
CIN: U65999MH2017PTC291060

9th Floor, Sigma Building, Hiranandani Business Park,
Technology Street, Powai, Mumbai- 400076

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

| have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test-check basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. | believe

that the processes and practices, | followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

| have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of

Wherever required, | have obtained Management representation about the compliance of laws,

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards, is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification

1.
2.
3.
Accounts of the Company.
4.
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.
5.
of procedures on test-check basis.
6.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

Digitally si d
KEYUR Db sisnec,
MIRAN I Tesans o530

Keyur H Mirani

Practising Company Secretary
ACS No: A26354, COP No. 24035
PR No: 3247/2023

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 08, 2025
UDIN: A026354G000929674
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Annual Report 2024-25

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

1. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS:

Global Economic Overview:

The global economy in FY 2024-25 navigated a complex mix of geopolitical tensions, shifting policies, and
uneven growth. Advanced economies show moderate growth with easing inflation, while emerging
markets experience varied recoveries amid commodity and capital flow challenges. Central banks in
developed countries have largely moved to neutral rates, while some emerging markets keep rates high
to control inflation. Global inflation eased from 6.8% to 5.9%, in several major economies. However,
rising protectionism and geopolitical tensions continue to create structural shift in global supply chain,
trade and investor confidence. Collaborative efforts remain vital for stability and sustainable growth.

Indian Economic Overview:

Despite global uncertainties and rising protectionism, India remains the world’s fastest-growing major
economy, projected to grow at 6.4% in FY25 National Statistical Office (NSO) estimates and 6.5% in
2025-26 International Monetary Fund (IMF) forecast. Growth is driven by resilient domestic demand, a
strong services sector, sustained investment, and a recovering rural economy. India’s demographic
dividend, expanding middle class, and ongoing policy reforms underpin this momentum. The external
sector remains robust with stable capital inflows and healthy foreign exchange reserves. Financially, bank
credit growth aligns with deposits, non-performing assets have declined, and profitability of commercial
banks has improved. The Financial Inclusion Index rose from 53.9 in March 2021 to 64.2 in March 2024,
reflecting progress in expanding access to financial services. Capital markets hit record highs in
September 2024, while insurance and pension sectors continue to strengthen. However, growing
consumer credit, rising non-bank financing, and increased IPO activity call for balanced regulation to
sustain growth and financial stability. RBI's 100 bps Repo Rate cut in CY 2025, from 6.5% to 5.5% is set
to boost NBFCs by widening margins through lower funding costs and slower loan repricing.

Brief Overview of MSMESs in India:

Micro, Small, and Medium Enterprises (MSMEs) form a crucial backbone of India’s economy, driving
entrepreneurship, employment, and contributing over 30% to the country’s GDP, up from 27.3% in 2020-
21, with government ambitions to raise this to 50%. As of February 2025, the sector comprises over 5.93
Crore enterprises employing around 24.14 Crore people. MSMEs have shown remarkable resilience,
particularly in exports, which surged from Rs.3.95 Lakh Crore in 2020-21 to Rs.12.39 Lakh Crore in 2024-
25, while the number of exporting MSMEs grew more than threefold. The sector’s total funding
requirement is projected at Rs.134.40 Lakh Crore, with debt demand estimated at Rs.106.11 Lakh Crore.
Despite significant government efforts, including increased budget allocations and digital initiatives like
the Unified Lending Interface to improve credit access, many MSMEs still face challenges such as limited
formal credit availability, infrastructural bottlenecks, and the need for technological upgrades. NBFCs
have emerged as key lenders to MSMEs, outpacing banks in growth, with MSME-related assets under
management expected to surpass Rs.5.3 Lakh Crore by FY 2026. Addressing these challenges will require
coordinated action among financial institutions, policymakers, and stakeholders to foster innovation,
competitiveness, and sustainable growth in the sector.

Growth in the MSME Credit Market:

The Indian MSME sector’s overall debt demand is estimated at USD 1-1.1 trillion, with an addressable demand
of around USD 530 billion. Out of 63 million MSMEs, only 16% have access to formal credit. The formal sector
currently addresses USD 168-170 billion, leaving a substantial credit gap of approximately USD 397-400 billion.

Strong credit expansion is evident in semi-urban and rural geographies, which contribute 52% of Micro segment
origination volumes and 42% in Small segment. Risk profile improvements continue, with the share of high-risk
MSMEs (CMR 7-10) reducing to 12% in Q2 FY25 from 13% in Q2 FY24. Medium risk MSMEs (CMR 4-6) account
for 53%.

Regulatory Landscape:

In recent developments aimed at enhancing transparency and customer protection, the Reserve Bank of India
(RBI) has introduced several measures to improve disclosure standards among regulated entities (REs),
particularly in the pricing of loans and associated charges. A significant step in this direction is the expansion of
the mandate related to the Key Fact Statement (KFS). the RBI has now mandated that all REs provide a KFS for
all retail and MSME loans. This expanded mandate ensures that key terms and conditions, especially the total
cost of borrowing, are transparently communicated to customers at the outset of the loan agreement. The
measure is expected to significantly enhance borrower awareness, reduce information asymmetry, and support
more responsible lending practices across the financial ecosystem.

Further, The Scale Based Regulation (SBR) framework for NBFCs was further refined in FY 24-25 to enhance risk
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management, transparency, and supervision aligned with their asset sizes and complexities.

During the year under review, the Company was materially compliant with applicable laws.

LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGE

During the year under review, the Company had issued 5,000 Non-Convertible Debentures each
aggregating to Rs. 50,00,00,000 (Rupees Fifty Crores only), which were listed on the Debt Market
Segment of BSE Limited effective from September 24, 2024. The Company raised additional debt capital
through issuance of 5,000 Non-Convertible Debentures each aggregating to Rs. 50,00,00,000 (Rupees Fifty
Crores only), which were listed on the said segment of the BSE Limited, effective from February 27, 2025.

The Company has paid the listing fees to BSE Limited for the issue and listing of the said NCDs and for the
FY 2025-26.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS:

The Company operates amid evolving market dynamics, targeting underserved MSME and retail segments
with secured financial products. The following summarizes the key opportunities and threats:

Opportunities:

Growing credit demand in the expansive MSME and retail sectors with underserved pockets in rural and
semi-urban India.

Expansion of branch network into tier 3 and 4 cities, capitalizing on regional economic growth.
Co-lending partnerships and syndication avenues to diversify funding sources and enhance liability mix.

Leveraging Al and advanced analytics to boost underwriting efficiency, risk assessment, and customer
experience.

Rising women entrepreneurs and workforce participation driving increased credit demand from women
borrowers.

Digital transformation enabling seamless customer onboarding and faster credit decisioning.

Threats:

Geopolitical uncertainties impacting economic sentiment and credit cycles.
Intensifying competition from NBFCs and traditional banks, particularly in MSME lending.
Potential regulatory changes affecting credit norms and capital adequacy.

Anticipated pressure on collections in certain segments may lead to a potential rise in NPAs,
necessitating strengthening of the Company’s recovery strategy.

Rapid technological changes posing operational risks if not effectively managed.
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BUSINESS PERFORMANCE:
Top-line Highlights:

The Company recorded strong growth with AUM expanding by 45% YoY and disbursals increasing by 9%
in FY 2024-25.

Business Model:

Continuing with a branch-led Direct-to-Consumer (D2C) model, the Company deepens customer
engagement by delivering tailored secured loan products primarily backed by residential assets. The
approach targets MSMEs and retail borrowers predominantly in tier 3 and 4 cities.

Network & Target Audience:

Our branch network scaled further to 129 branches as of March 31, 2025, reflecting calibrated expansion
based on granular market assessments.

Digital Journey:

The Company enhanced its digital infrastructure, API driven automation tools for credit assessment and
customer self-service portals, resulting in faster loan processing times and improved collections efficiency.

OUTLOOK:

The NBFC sector is poised for sustained growth given persistent financing needs across MSMEs and retail
sectors. However, collection pressures and potential asset quality challenges in some pockets from an
economic slowdown remain key monitorable. Our Company’s investments in technology, human capital,
and governance provide a strong foundation to capture opportunities in FY 2025-26.

RISKS AND CONCERNS:

Our business relies on effective risk management to handle financial and non-financial risks. A comprehensive
framework driven by our Board, Risk Management Committee, other subcommittees, and respective unit
controls identifies, assesses and manages internal and external risks. With input from various committees and
thorough periodic reviews, we follow an Integrated Enterprise Risk Management Policy to address a range of
risks and ensure oversight by senior management and the Board:

¢  Credit Risk e Strategy Risk

e Operational Risk e Financial & Reporting Risk

e  Portfolio Concentration Risk e Information Security Risk

e  Compliance / Regulatory Risk e Asset Liability Mismatch Risk

e  Reputation Risk

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

The Company has a robust organizational structure with clear policies and authority matrix for efficient
operations and compliance with laws. Internal controls are deemed crucial for daily functions, leading to
the implementation of a strong system covering processes, financial reporting, fraud prevention, and
regulatory compliance.

These measures reflect the Company’s commitment to high governance standards, protecting assets and
ensuring proper transaction execution. Internal audits, managerial reviews, and policies further support
this framework, enhancing the reliability of financial and other records.

The Company maintains an effective internal control system throughout the organization, promoting a
safe and authorized operational environment.
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7. DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE:

Portfolio Growth

HFS has made an impact on the lives of 27,159 customers as of March 31, 2025. The Company has a loan
portfolio of Rs.2,758 Crores as of March 31, 2025 growing from Rs.1,903 Crores as of March 31, 2024. We
closed the year with a disbursement of Rs.1,185 Crores as against Rs.1,091 Crores in the previous year.
Disbursements and Assets under management (AUM) over the years since inception is given below:

AUM

FY 2023 1,016

FY 2024 1,903

Fy 2025 [  75:
| 4

Asset Quality

Disbursal

FY 2023 709

FY 2024 1,091

Fr 2025 (Y 55
| 4

Despite a challenging collection environment, robust customer assessment and monitoring practices helped
maintain Gross NPA at 2.0% and Net NPA at 1.2%, respectively. The Stage 3 provision coverage ratio stands
at 39%, reflecting a consistent and cautious approach to portfolio management.

Net worth

FY 2023 514

FY 2024 745

Fr 2025 [ 570

Diversified Funding Profile

Capital

The Company’s total net worth increased from Rs.745
Crore as of March 31, 2024, to Rs.870 Crore as of March
31, 2025, driven by a Rs.60 Crore rights issue fully
subscribed by the promoters. The Company continues to
maintain a strong capital position, with a capital adequacy
ratio of 30.63% as of March 31, 2025, well above the
regulatory requirements set by the RBI.

The Company continues to follow a policy of diversifying its funding sources. It maintains relationships with
31 lenders, including Banks, NBFCs, DFIs, and SFBs, and is actively deepening ties with both private and
public sector banks. As of March 31, 2025, the Company’s loan outstanding stands at Rs.2,218 Crore, with
a debt-to-equity ratio of 2.6x. During the year, the Company also undertook NCD issuances. Its NCDs are

listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).

Operational Overview

The key operational highlights of the year 2024-25 are:

Particular FY 2025 FY 2024 YOY%
AUM Rs.2,758 Rs.1,903 45%
Revenue Rs.449 Rs.271 66%
PAT Rs.66 Rs.31 110%
Customer 27,159 19,315 41%
Employee 1,904 1,435 33%
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MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES/INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT, INCLUDING
NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED:

The Company values its human resources and believes that the success of an organization is directly linked
to the competencies, capabilities, contributions, and experience of its employees. The Company’s core
philosophy is centered around promoting a safe, healthy, and happy workplace while fostering a conducive
work environment among its employees. The HR department promotes a culture of integrity, honesty and
a constant learning attitude, while also maintaining cordial relationships, equal opportunities and policies to
prevent harassment.

The Company constantly works towards promoting a respectful and secure workplace and aims to provide
its employees with careers, not just jobs, and creating an environment of trust, confidence and
transparency. The HR policies of the Company are designed to empower its workforce with knowledge and
build their capabilities to grow and prosper in a healthy work environment.

Through a performance-driven culture, the Company motivates its employees to deliver excellence, which
adds value to its brand while responding successfully to business challenges. As we scale up our business
and strive to build a future-ready organization, talent attraction and retention, employee development and
well-being, equal opportunities and harmonious relationships are key areas of focus.

Our HR processes are guided by well-defined competencies and Company values.

e HFS Academy - our dedicated online learning platform which enables our employee capability building
initiatives including Induction, Functional/Refresher and Mandatory training programs.

e Regional and Annual Meets - fostering collaboration, alignment, and engagement across teams.

e Performance Management & Rewards / Recognition Programs - maintaining employee engagement
and fostering a culture of healthy competition.

As of March 31, 2025, the total number of employees was 1904, with a net addition of 469 employees during
FY 2024-25.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:

Statements made in this Management Discussion and Analysis Report may contain certain forward-looking
statements based on various assumptions on the Company’s present and future business strategies and
the environment in which it operates. Actual results may differ substantially or materially from those
expressed or implied due to risk and uncertainties. These risks and uncertainties include national and global
effect of economic conditions, political conditions, volatility in interest rates, changes in regulations and
policies impacting Company'’s businesses and other related factors. The information contained herein is as
referred. The Company does not undertake any obligation to update these statements. The Company has
obtained the data and information referred here from sources believed to be reliable or from its internal
estimates, the accuracy or completeness of which cannot be guaranteed.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To
The Members of
Hiranandani Financial Services Private Limited

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Hiranandani Financial Services
Private Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025, and
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of
Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and notes to
the Financial Statements, including a summary of material accounting policy information and
other explanatory information (‘the Financial Statements’).

2. Inouropinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
{‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (‘Ind AS') and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the State of Affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its
Profit and Other Comprehensive Income, Changes in Equity and its Cash Flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (‘SAs’) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act, and the rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Financial Statements of the current year. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming
our apinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matter described below to be the Key Audit Matter to be
communicated in our report,
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Sr. No

Key Audit Matter

How the Key Audit Matter was addressed
in our audit

lr;lpairrnerlt of financial assets (including provision for expected credit loss)

(as described in note 6, 29 and 39(i) of t

he Financial Statements)

Subjective estimates:

Under Ind AS 109, “Financial
Instruments”, allowance for loan
losses is determined using expected
credit loss (‘"ECL') estimation madel,
The estimation of ECL on financial

instruments  involves  significant
judgement and estimates,

The key areas significant
management  judgements  are

involved and therefore increased
levels of audit focus in the Company's
estimation of ECLs are:

s Data inputs: The computation of
ECL model requires several data
inputs, This increases the risk of
completeness and accuracy of
the data that has been used to
create assumptions in the model,

« Model estimations: Judgements
and Estimates in the models that
are used to estimate ECL which
involves determining
Probabilities of Default (‘PD’),
Loss Given Default (‘LGD’), and
Exposures at Default ('EAD').

The underlying assumptions used in
the estimates of impairment loss
allowance is subject to uncertainties.
Given the size of loan portfolio
relative to the balance sheet and the
impact of impairment allowance on
the financial statements, we have
considered this as a key audit matter.

The disclosures (including as
prescribed by RBI) regarding the
Company’s application of Ind AS 109
are key to explaining the key
judgements and material inputs to
the Ind AS 109 ECL results,

=

8

w

=

Our key audit procedures included:

Reviewing hoard approved policies for
impairment of financial Instruments
and assessing compliance with the
policies in terms of Ind AS 109;

Testing the stage-wise bifurcation of
product-wise portfolios;

Reviewing the determination the PD
and LGD rates;

Testing of provisions and disclosures in
the ind AS Financial Statements.

Substantive verification:

Sample testing over inputs, data and
assumptions impacting ECL
calculations.

Model calculations testing through re-
computation.

Testing the arithmetical accuracy of
the computation of ECL provision
performed by the Company,

Assessing whether the disclosures on
key judgements, assumptions and
quantitative data with respect to
impairment of loans in the Ind AS
Financial Statements are appropriate
and sufficient.
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Other Information

5.

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report but does not
include the Financial Statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The Other Information is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements, or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Other Information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and
take appropriate action as applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

8.

10.

11.

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act, with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view
of the State of Affairs, profit and Other Comprehensive Income, Changes in Equity and Cash
Flows of the Company in) conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection of the appropriate accounting software for ensuring compliance
with applicable laws and regulations including those related to retention of audit logs;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so,

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

12.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

—
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13.

14.

15.

auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements. As
part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

12.1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

12.2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(i) the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls,

12.3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

12.4. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

12.5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current
year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report.
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because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

16. The Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024 were audited by
erstwhile Statutory auditors whose reports dated 11 May 2024 expressed an unmodified
opinion on those financial statements. Our opinion is not medified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

17. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
‘Annexure A’ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable,

18. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

19,

18.1,

18.2.

18.3.

18.4.

18.5.

18.6.

18.7.

18.8.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper baoks of accounts as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters
stated in paragraph 19.8 below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act read with the relevant rules thereunder.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31 March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

The modification relating to the maintenance of books of accounts and other matters
connected therewith are as stated in the paragraph 18.2 above on reporting under
Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 19.8 below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in ‘Annexure B,

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s report under section 197(16) of
the Act, in our opinion, according to the information and explanation given to us, the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company as it is a private limited company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

19.1.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2025 on its
financial position in its Financial Statements - Refer Note 41 to the Financial Sta;ements;

fu2 ,‘m
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19.2,

19.3.

15.4.

19.5.

19.6.

19.7.

19.8.

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable Taw or Tnd AS, Tor
material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts
- Refer Note 52.14 to the Financial Statements;

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

The Management has represented, to best of their knowledge and belief, that no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘Intermediaries’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Management has represented, to best of their knowledge and belief, that no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (‘Funding Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on such audit procedures, that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, performed by us, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representation under para 19.4 and 19.5 contain any material
misstatement.

In our opinien and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company
has not declared or paid dividend during the year, accordingly compliance with section
123 of the Act by the Company is not applicable.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an
accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility except for two accounting softwares, where the
audit trail has not been enabled at the database level to log any direct data changes.
Based on our procedures performed, for the accounting softwares other than the
aforesaid databases where the question of our commenting does not arise, we did not
notice any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.
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Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention other than the aforesaid databases where the
question of our commenting does not arise.

For KKC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621

%—-

Vinit K Jain

Partner

ICAl Membership No: 145911
UDIN: 2514591 1BMNQYT4006

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10 May 2025
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Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements of Hiranandani
Financial Services Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Referred to in paragraph 17 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including

(e)

(a)

(b)

(b)

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment (‘PPE").

The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its PPE by which all
PPE are verified in a phased manner over a period of 3 years. In our opinion, this
periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, certain PPE were physically
verified by the Management during the year. In our opinion, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

The Company does not own immovable properties (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee), hence reporting under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not revalued its PPE (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or
both during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, no proceedings have been
initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder,

The Company does not have any inventory, hence physical verification of inventory and
reporting under paragraph 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

In our epinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of rupees five crore, in
aggregate, from banks or financial institutions which are secured on the basis of security
of current assets. The quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such
banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account of the
Company.

Since the Company's principal business is to give loans, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a)
of the Order are not applicable to it.

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions of
the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are
not prejudicial to the Company's interest.
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(c)

(d)

(e)

The Company, being a NBFC, registered under the provisions of the RBI Act, 1334 and
rules made thereunder, in pursuance of its compliance with provisions of the said
Act/Rules, particularly, the Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning
Norms, monitors repayments of principal and payment of interest by its customers as
stipulated. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
in respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and in cases where repayment of
principal and payment of interest is not received as stipulated, the cognizance thereofis
taken by the Company in course of its periodic regulatory reporting. Refer Note 6 and
39(i) to the Financial Statements for summarized details of such loans/advances which
are not repaid by borrowers as per stipulations. According to the information and
explanation made available to us, reasonable steps are taken by the Company for
recovery thereof.

The Company, being a NBFC, registered under provisions of RBI Act, 1934 and rules made
thereunder, in pursuance of its compliance with provisions of the said Act/Rules,
particularly, the Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning Norms,
monitors and reports total amount overdue including principal and/or payment of
interest by its customers for more than 90 days. In cases where repayment of principal
and payment of interest is not received as stipulated, the cognizance thereof is taken by
the Company in course of its periodic regulatory reporting. Refer Note 6 and 39(i) to the
Financial Statements for summarised details of such loans/advances which are not
repaid by barrowers as per stipulations. According to the information and explanation
made available to us, reasonable steps are taken by the Company for recovery thereof,
Having regards, to the nature of business and volume of transactions and information
involved, it is impracticable to provide the list of loan assets where delinquencies in the
repayment of principal and interest have been identified.

Since the Company’s principal business is to give loans, the provisions of paragraph
3(iii)(e) of the Order are not applicable to it.

Based on our audit procedures and the information and explanation made available to
us, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to
Promoters/Related Parties (as defined in section 2(76) of the Act) which are either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not either directly or indirectly, granted any loan to any of its directors or
to any other person in whom the director is interested, in accordance with the provisions
of section 185 of the Act and the Company has not made investments through more than
two layers of investment companies in accordance with the provisions of section 186 of
the Act. Accordingly, provisions stated in paragraph 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
from the public during the year in terms of directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India
or the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the
rules framed there under. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to

the Company. —
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vi.

vil.

viii,

(b)

The Company is not required to maintain cost records under Section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 and
hence reporting under paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, amounts
deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues
including Goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-
tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any
other statutory dues generally have been regularly deposited by the Company with the
appropriate authorities in all the cases during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, Goods and
Services Tax, duty of customs, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as
at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six months fram the date they became
payable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, we confirm
that there are no dues of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax, cess and any other statutory dues, that have not been deposited to/with the
appropriate authority on account of any dispute.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the
hasis of our examination of the records of the Company, we confirm that we have not
come across any transactions not recorded in the books of account which have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings to financial institutions, banks, government and dues to debenture holders
or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any
bank o financial institution or government or any government authority or any other
lender,

{c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

Company has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the
purposes for which they were obtained

(d) Accordingtothe information and explanations given tous, and the procedures performed

by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we

report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes
by the Company.

(e) & (f) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures.

(a)

Accordingly, the provisions of the clauses (ix)(e) & (f) of the Order are not applicable.

The Company did not raise money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year.

[ n———
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ki
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®iil,

Xiv.

XV,

xvi,

(b)

(@)

(b)

(c)

(@)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

During the year the company has issued 500 lakhs equity shares on rights basis to its
existing equity shareholders for consideration of Rs.6,000 lakh and the requirements of
section 62 of the Act have been complied with, and the funds have been used for the
purposes for which such funds were raised. The company has not issued any convertible
debentures (Fully or Partially or optionally convertible) during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there has
been no fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company that has been noticed or
reported during the year other than the instances of fraud noticed and reported by the
management in terms of the regulatory provisions applicable to the Company
amounting to 24.42 lakhs comprising of 4 cases. Also refer Note 48.29 to the financial
statements.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no report
under sub section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditars) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government.

As represented to us by the Management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

In our opinion and according to the infarmation and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance
with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date, for the
period under audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with its directors. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company

The Company is required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 and the Company has obtained the required registration

The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without obtaining a valid CoR from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (‘CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by Reserve Bank of India and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the
order is not applicable,

7/ ~EL Y
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(d) Inouropinion there are no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions 2016) and accordingly reporting
under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the order is not applicable

xvil. The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

sviii. During the year, the erstwhile Statutory auditors of the Company have completed their
term and rotated out in accordance with RBI circular dated April 27, 2021. As informed,
there have been no issues, objections or concerns raised by the said outgoing auditors.

Xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
axamination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nathing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit repart that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance thatall
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

XX. According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent amount
under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act pursuant to any project and
accordingly reporting under clause 3(xx) of the order is not applicable

For KKC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

(formerly Khimiji Kunverji & Co LLP)

Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621

s

Vinit K Jain

Partner

|CAl Membership No: 145911
UDIN: 2514591 1BMNQYT4006

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10 May 2025
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Annexure ‘B’ to the Independent Auditors’ report on the Financial Statements of Hiranandani
Financial Services Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Referred to in paragraph "18.7' under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid Financial Statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’).

Opinion

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements of
Hiranandani Financial Services Private Limited (‘the Company') as at 31 March 2025 in
conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

2. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls with reference to the Financial Statements and such internal financial controls were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal controls over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘the Guidance
Note').

Management’s responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

3. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note, These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s responsibility

4. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to the Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing ('SA 9, prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with
reference to the Financial Statements. Those SAs and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to the Financial
Statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

5. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to the Financial Statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference
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to the Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk, The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error,

6. Wa believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to the
Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements

7. Acompany’s internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of the Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to the
Financial Statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflact the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the Financial Statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements

8. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial
Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial
Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to the Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For KKC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621

Vinit K Jain

Partner

ICAl Membership No: 145911
UDIN: 25145911BMNQYT4006

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10 May 2025
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HIRAMANDANI FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Halance Shest as at 31 March 2025
AAmaynts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS

Finaneinl asséta
{a} Cash and cash aquivalents
(b} Bank balance ather than included in {a) above
{c) Recelvables
= Trada recaivabiles
= Qther receivables
{d} Loans
(8) Investments
(0) Gthar financial assets
Total financial szsets

Non-financial assets

(a) Current tax assets {Net)

(b) Defervad tas asaets (Not)

(€] Proparty, plant and aquipment

{d) Intangble pisets

(e} Intangible assets under development
(1) Right-of-use agsats

{g) Other non-financial assets

Total non-financial assets

Tatal Azsats

LIARILITIES AND EQUITY
Liahilities

Financial liabilities

{a) Darivative Financial Instrumant

{b) Payables
(1) Trade payabies

(1) Total outstanding dues of micro anterprise and small enterprises
{Ii) Total outstanding dues of crediters other tRan MICFo Bnterprises

and small enterprises
{11} Othar pavables

(1) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and small enterprises
{ii) Total outstanding dues of creditord athar than micro enterprises

and amall arterprises
{€) Dabt Saciirities
{dl} Borrawings (Cthar than debt securities)
(&) Lease liabilities
(f) Cther Mnancial labilities
Total financinl liabilities

Hon-financlal llabilities

(@) Current tax liabilites (Net)
{h) Provisions

() Other non-financial Nabilities
Total non-financial liabilities

Total Liabilities
Urjulty

(a) Equity share capital
(13} Other wquity

Total Liabilities and Equity

Sig ACCOMPANYING ngn_&g;_rpjﬁ_pamr Ih! ﬂﬁEmﬁl Slatgmantd

The notes referred to above form an intagral part of the financial statemants.

As per our report of even diate attached
For KKC & Associatas LLP
(fermetly KRIM)| Kufiver)l & Co LLP)

Chartared Accountants
ICAL Firm Registration No. 105146W/W100621

—

Vinit Jain

Partner

Membership No: 145811
Place ; Mumba|

Date | May 10, 2025

W

Chi ecutive Officer

Place : Mumbal
Date ; May 10, 2025

Anat Ax at
Haote No, 31 March 2025 31 Maich 2024
3 15,262.85 26,887.94
4 20,004.78 B,073.10
5 {a) - #2.50
5 () 333.04 520,04
] #,71,24%.06 1,88,373.88
7 1,051.49 1.81
1,07,098.02 2,24,439.44
i 141,59 -
33 1,300.44 1,203,864
a9 412 28 344,40
10 175,69 132,11
0.1 36.92 -
a3 1,166.38 53,61
i = 378,52 407 51
3,834.83 2,136.27
T si17385 72285 7.26,875.71
iz 506.95
13
34.18 23.29
14 9,908,52 ‘
15 2;10,622.00 1,43,651.13
41 1,117.52 £4.50
16 1,1&.50 6,127 68
2,23,466.98 1,49,856.60
17 T 0.27
18 854,41 1,026,14
10 07,00 269,54
1,242.21 2,225.95
2,24,709.18 1,53,003.55
0 73,211.62 6,211,682
21 13,801.84 528134
87,013.66 74,493,106
:I.II.I‘T:?.II Z‘ZIllTEJI
01-58

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
HIRANANDANI FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: UASDOOMHI017PTCI91060

Harsh 5. Hiranandani
Director

OIN | 07661253

Place | Murmbal

Date : May 10, 2025

my

Rajesh Rajak
Chiaf Financgial Officar

Place | Mumbal
Date | May 10, 2025

HMaha S, Hiranandani

Director

GIN | 01954865
Placa : Landan

Date : May 10, 2025

\!

U
&
oW

Ketaki Prasad Satam
Company Secretary
M.No. AZBATG

Plage  Mumbal

Date © May 10, 2025
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HIRANANDANI FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025

{Amounts in IMR lakhs, nlass stharwise stated)

Note MNo. For the yaar anded For tha year ended
11 March 2028 31 March 2024

Incoma
Haovenue from operations
INtarast (Negme 23 40,760.27 24 648 52
Foes and commission incoma 23 1,313.25 622.73
Nt gain on fair value changes 24 714,75 473183
Nat gain on deracagrition of financial instrumants 25 226.62 -
Othaer eperating ravenus 26 1,829.47 1,320.29
Total revenue from operations (1) 44,844,236 27,066.37
Other income 27 47,09 28,08
Total Incoma (1411) 44,801,458 27,094,458
Exponses
Finance casts 28 17,500.57 G485 4%
Impairment on financial inELEum ents 29 2,635.37 1,291,238
Employae banafits axpanas 30 12,010.03 8,884.27
Depreciation and amortisation expenses k3| 333.72 215.50
Dther expenses 1 3,630,094 2,508 45
Total expenses 36,100.63 232,305.08
Profit before exceptional items and tax (II1-1V) 0,790,802 4,699,40
Excaptional iterms 18 620,26
Profit before tax (V-VI) B,790.82 4,079.14
Tax axpanss ! 33
Currant tax 2,283.07 1,605.52
Deferrad tax (75.01) (656.20)
Total tax expense 2,208.06 049.32
Profit for the year {V-VI) 6,582,706 3,129.82
Othar comprehansive income {(OCI)
[A) Items that will not ba subsaguently reclassifliad to profit or loss
Remeasurement of the post employment defined benefit obligations (29.52) {18.25)
Income tax affect 7.43 4,49
(B) Ttams that will ba subsequantly reclassifiad to profit or loas
The effective portian of gain and lass on hedging INStruments in a cash Mow hadge (92.83)
Incoma tax affect 23.38 =
Othar comprahangive incoma for tha yaar (01,56} (13.66)
Total comprohansive incoma for the yaar (VIT+VIID) nlﬁl..zu — 311616
Earnings per share (Equity sharas, face value of £ 10/- sach) a4
Basic 0.96 0.62
Diluted 0,96 0.62
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statemants 01-58
The notes referred to above form an integral part of tha financial statemants,
As par our repart of even date attached Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For KKC B Associates LLP HIRANANDANT FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 7
(farimarly Khimji Kunver) & Co LLP) CIN: UGSDOOMH2017PTC201060 .
Charterad Aveountints -
ICAI Firm Registration Mo. 105146W/W100621
Vinit Jain Harsh 5, Hiranandani Haha 8. Hiranandani
Fartner Director Director —
Mambetship No: 145911 DIN : 07661253 DIN : 01954865 - ';.'\N_Ei;'-_“hm"t
Placa @ Mumbai Placa | Mumbal Place © Londan '!‘4’_,;-..__"?} :
Date : May 10, 2025 Date : May 10, 2025 Date | May 10, 2025 . 3
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Chial Exacutive Officer

Place | Mumbal
Date | May 10, 2028

Rajesh Rajak
Chief Financial Officer

Place * Mumba
Date : May 13, 2025

A

:"::"Ja

Kataki Prasad Satam
Campany Secratary
M.No. AZB476

Place © Mumbai

Date | May 10, 2025



HIRANANDANT FINANCIAL STRVICES PRIVATE LIMITER
Statemant of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 202%

{Amauots oINS, akhs, uoiess aherwse tates)
Particulars

A, Cash Mow from operating activitios
Prafit/{Lows) bafore
Adjustmants for
Intaradl income on igane
Intareat incomae on flised deposits
Teag and commission income
Dapraciatian of proparty, plant and squipment
Dapraciatian on right of u LTIl
Amaitisation of ntangible assets

Ml {Chaing/Loss on financial instraments at fair value thraugh praft or o
Effective partion of gain and loss on hedging instrumants in 4 cash Row hadge

Loss/{Peofit) on snles of fixed sanais

Shinresbasad payiment axpenta

Tmpairmant on financial instrumanis

Finande iosis

Excaptioial il

Expennes on gratuily and compansated Abrgncan

Hei (Gainj/Loss on derecognition of Lease Liabilities

Het (Gain/Loss on derscogniton of Nnancial natruments

Operational Cash Flows

Cash inflaw fram intorast o loans

Cash inflow fram inerest on Need deposits

Cash inflow from Faes and commission

Cash autflow towards financs cont an horrowings and debit securities
Oparating profit/ (loss) before working capital chanoes

Changas in working capital

(Incronss)/Decreass in irade racaivabiss
(Increase)/Dacreasa [0 other recalvablis
{Ingraass]/Decramia it other financial sets
(Incraase)/Decraasa in loans

(Increase)/Dacreasa in other non-financial ssses
Lieranni/ (Docriaa] in trade payalilis

Increase/ (Decroass) in ather financial labilities
Increase/ (Decraasa) in ather non financlal |abilities
trcraaie) | Decrinia] in provisions

Cauh ganaratad from/ (usad in) opsrations
Income tax paid (et

Hat canh generated/ (used in} from aperating activitios {A)

B, Eash flaw from Investing antivities
Purthane of froparty, plant and equlpment and intangible msais
Gale of pragerty, plant and squipmant and intangible assets
Capital wirk (n progress
Irvastimants i mutual funids
Redomption of miutual funds
investmant in iafm deposit with banks {pet)
Nei cash goneratad/ {used) in investing activitios (B)

€, Cash faw from finanding aotivities
Procamds fram lssue of equity shards {Ineluding securitiod pramium)
Procesds from Borrowings
Rapayment of borrowings
Proceds from Dabt Sacuriliag
Laana Linbiiity Paid
Hatl dash g v {umed ) in 1 i ivities (€}

Mat incroass/ {(dacreasa) in cash and cash aquivalents (A+D+C)
Cash and CaRh #gulvalants st (ha baginning of the yaar
Cash and ¢aih squivalents at the and of tha yoar {nota 1)

MNotas: -

Far tha ysar sndad
W1 Hardh 2028

For the year endad
31 Harah 2024

8,790.82 A,07%.14
(an,328.91) [23.%324,90)
(1.AB0.41) (34,51)
(1,310.45) (B22.7%)
132,19 11130
14361 7541
58,92 28.80
{207.80) (472.03)
(9281} €
184 a1
29,39 2041
262517 1,291,218
17,500,587 9,495.45
620.26
112:13 5140
(%.25) :
(226.62)
(12,241,348} {9,763.00)
a0 246045
1,274.25 G640
1,313.28 623,73
(017 3 (2,081 .59}
,601.20 4,126,08
A2.59 {28.45)
167.00 {360.78)
{126,590} (73,27}
(Beb 400, 73] {BB,117.68)
{45,19) {173.68)
10,89 (A15.24)
it 7 1066} 5.714.03
8,36 102,67
(1,213,243 21648
(BO,576,92) (70,508,06)
(4,631.93) {1,625 87)
(B3,208.06) (00,134.30)
(30%.09) {273,98)
0,64 &.10
[36.93) 40,00
{1,23,250,00) (1,49,330.54)
1,203,064 75 149,804,327
(11,031 .60 (7,381.77)
(11,558.23) (7,141.82)
,000,00 20,000,00
1, 20,499 45 07,949,890
(53,310.15) (23,761.80)
10,000,00 .
(347.08) {2230
B3,132.00 94,115,608
(11,625.09) 6,839,40
16,847 .94 20,048.46
18,362.05 16,8087.94

1. Thi abava Cash Flaws Statemant has boen praparsd undar the [ndiréct mathad sek sut in [ndian Accounting Standard {Ind A%) 7 "Gtatemant of Cash Flows'

2. Figures in brackets indlcate cash outflow

3. Incoma takes rafund/ (paid) 18 treated 55 SFRING OM operaning activitias and & nof bifieatal Betwesn invasting and Binancing activities

-}

S agEampanying nores larming par of i inancisl $I8I4manG

Tha nates rafermi 16 abova farm an Integeal oart of the financial statemanis,

As par our repart of even date sttached

For KKC I Associntes LLP

Uarmarty KRl Runveryi & Co LLP)

Charared Accountants

ICAL Firm Registeation No. 105 146W/W 100621
o

Vinit Jain

Parner

Mambarship Mol 145911

Place | Mumbal

Dt s May 10, 202%

Far and on behall of the Baard of Directors of
HIRANANDANI FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN] UBSORRMHI0LPPTC2R1060

Harsh %, Hiranandani
Dirmciar

GIN . 37661350

Placa | Mudibal

Dirta : May 10, 2035

a
of Exacubive Officir

Made | Muitibai
Dats : May 10, 202%

ftajesh Rajak
Chief Financial Officor

Place | Muimba|

Date

May 10, 2025

;1/’

Maha & Hirsnsndani
Dirsctor

DIN - D1954865

Place | London

Data © May ::’ :‘4&

Kataki frasad Satam
Campany Socrelary

M. N, AZRATR

Placd | MMk

Dk : May 10, 203%
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HIRANANDANI FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements

1(A). Corporate Information
Hiranandani Financial Services Frivate Limited ('the Company') was incorporated in, India under Companies
Act, 2013, on February 10, 2017, having its registered office at 514, Dalamal Towers, 211 FPJ Marg, Nariman
Point, Mumbai — 400021. The Company is categorized as Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking non-
banking financial company (NBFC-ND-5I) in accordance with the guidelines of Reserve Bank of India.

The Registration Details are as follows:
RBI Registration Number: N-13.02257
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U65999MHZ017PTC291060

The Company is engaged in the business of providing loans to small businesses including micro, small and
medium enterprises, personal loans and loans for onward lending to borrowers in small businesses/MSME
segment,

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 were authorised for issue in accordance with a
resolution of the board of directors on 10 May 2025.

1(B). Basis of Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
a)  Basis of Presentation

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format
prescribed in the Division |1l to Schedule |l to the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended from time to time)
applicable for Non-Banking Finance Companies (“NBFC”). The Statement of Cash Flows has been
prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”. The disclosure
reguirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, as
prescribed in the Schedule 1l to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the financial
statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified accounting
Standards.

The regulatory disclosures as required by Master Directions for Non-Banking Financial Company - Non-
Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company Directions, 2016 issued by the RBI ('RBI Master
Directions’) are included as a part of the Motes forming part of the financial statements as prepared as
per the requirements.

Functional & Presentation Currency

Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in Lacs rounded off to two decimal
places as permitted by Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013, Per share data are presented in Indian
Rupee to two decimal places.

b)  Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis as a going concern and under the
historical cost convention except for the assets and liabilities measured at fair value as follows:
» certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value;
» Share-based payments = measured at fair value,
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c)

d)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using ancther valuation technique.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date,

For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2, or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:
« Level 1inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Company can access at the measurement date;
= Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than gquoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
= Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as
far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall inte different
levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement,

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
20132 and the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs in
exercise of the powers conferred by section 133 read with sub-section (1) of section 210A of the
Companies Act, 2013. In addition, the guidance netes/announcements issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) are also applied along with compliance with other statutory
promulgations. Any application guidance/ clarifications/ directions issued by RBI or other regulators
are implemented as and when they are issued/ applicable.

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of income, expenses, assets
and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although
these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. Therefore, actual results
could differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
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iii,

period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and eritical
judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements are included in the following notes:

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The Company recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return that represents the best
estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the loans given / taken. This
estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life
cycle of the instruments, as well as expected changes to other fee income/expense that are integral
parts of the instrument.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The measurement of impairment losses on loan assets and commitments requires judgment in
estimating the amount and timing of future cash flows and recoverability of collateral values while
determining the impairment losses and assessing a significant increase in credit risk. The Company’s
Expected Credit Loss (ECL) calculation is the output of a complex model with a number of underlying
assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the
ECL model that are considered accounting judgments and estimates include:

The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk

The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis

Development of ECL model, including the various formulae and the choice of inputs

Selection of forward-loaking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive
the economic inputs into the ECL model.

It has been the Company's policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss
experience and adjust when necessary.

Fair value of equity-settled share-based transaction

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most
appropriate valuation model, which depends on the terms and conditions of the grant. This
estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model
including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions
about them,

The Company measures the fair value of equity-settled transactions with employees at the grant
date using Black-Scholes model. The assumptions for estimating fair value for share-based payment
transactions are disclosed in Note 34,

Defined benefit obligations

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plans, the present value of the defined benefit abligations
are based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future, These
include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to
the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
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vi.

vii,

highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
date,

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount
rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds
in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is current best estimates of the expected mortality rates of plan members, both
during and after employment. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected
future inflation rates, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand
in the employment market. Refer Note 35 for further details.

Provision for Income Tax and Deferred Tax Asset

The Company uses estimates and judgements based on the relevant rulings in the areas of
allocation of revenue, costs, allowances and disallowances which is exercised while determining
the provision for income tax.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. In assessing the prabability
the Company considers whether the entity has sufficient taxable temporary differences relating to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, which will result in taxable amounts
against which the unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised before they expire,
Significant management assumptions are required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies,

Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Company estimates the provisions that have present obligations as a result of past events and
it is probable that outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligations. These provisions
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates.

The Company uses significant judgements to disclose contingent liabilities. Contingent liabilities are
disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will
be canfirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where
it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a
reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor
disclosed in the financial statements,

Useful lives of property, plant, and equipment

The Company depreciates property, plant, and equipment using Straight Line Method (SLM) basis
over the estimated useful lives of the assets which in in line with the estimated useful life as
specified in Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation
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is derived based on an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value
at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end.

viii. Going Concern
The Company's financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates
the realization of assets and the satisfaction of obligations in the normal course of business.
Management is of the view that it is considered appropriate to prepare these financial statements
on a going concern basis as the Company expects to generate sufficient cash flows from operating
activities and unused lines of credit to meet its obligations in the foreseeable future.

2. Material Accounting Policies
a) Financial Instruments

I. Recognition and Initial Measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. All financial assets and liabilities are recognised at fair
value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables (without a significant financing component)
which are initially recognised at transaction price.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
and loss are recognised immediately in profit and loss.

Il. Financial Assets

i. Classification of financial assets

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the business model test
and the Solely Payments of Principal and Interest ('SPPI’).

Business Model Test: The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how
Company's financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This
assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the
assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets
and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Company
monitars financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income
that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether
the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring
is part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining
financial assets are held continues ta be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been
a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.

The Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) test as a second step of its classification process, the
Company assesses the contractual terms of financial assets to identify whether they meet the 5PPI test.
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‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial
recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of
principal ar amortisation of the premium/ discount). In making this assessment, the Company considers
whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest includes
only consideration for the time value of maney, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin
that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to
risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Basis the above tests for purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four
categories:

+ Financial asset at amortised cost
* Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVYTOCI)
s Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Amortised Cost
A financial asset that meets the following conditions is subsequently measured at amortised cost (except

for financial asset that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

= the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

s The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Fair value th h oth ive income (FVTOCI

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subseguently measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (except for financial asset that are designated as at fair value through profit
or loss on initial recognition):

* the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achleved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

* The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is made on an
investment-by-investment basis. The Company does not have any financial assets measured at FVTOCL.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOC! criteria (see above) are measured
at FVTPL. In addition, financial assets that meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria may
irrevocably be designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise,
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Subsequent measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Net gains and losses,
including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised
cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The amortised cost Is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognized in profit or loss,

Debt instruments at FVTQC!

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interast income
under the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCl. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI
are reclassified to profit or loss,

Equity instruments at FVTOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment, Other net gains
and losses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss,

iii. Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The expected credit losses on these financial assets are estimated based on the Company’s historical
credit loss experience as well as data from peer groups, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money and management overlay
where appropriate.

The Company applies a three-stage approach to measure ECL on loan assets. The underlying receivables
of borrowers migrate through the following three stages based on the change in credit quality since initial
recognition

Stage 1
For exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and

that are not credit impaired upon origination, the portion of the lifetime ECL associated with the
probability of default events occurring within the next 12 months is recognized. Exposures with days past
due (DFD) less than or equal to 30 days are classified as stage 1.
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Stage 2
For credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but

that are not credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognized. Exposures with DPD range of 31-90 days are
classified as stage 2. At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk for underlying loan assets since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default
occurring over the expected life between the reporting date and the date of initial recognition.

Stage 3

Loan asset is assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that asset have oceurred. For loan assets that have become credit
impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognized on principal outstanding as at period end. Exposures with DPD
more than 90 days are classified as stage 3.

Significant increase in credit risk

For loan assets, the date that the Company becomes a party to the contract with borrowers is considered
to be the date of initial recognition for the purposes of assessing the financial instrument for impairment.

In assessing whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition of a
loan asset, the Company considers the changes in the risk that the specified borrower will default on the
contract. The Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the loan asset as at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on the loan asset as at the date of initial recognition and considers
both quantitative and gualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.

The definition of default for the purpose of determining ECLs has been aligned to the Reserve Bank of
india definition of default, which considers indicators that the borrower is unlikely to pay and is no later
than when the exposure is equal to or more than 90 days past due. If one facility of borrower is classified
as Stage 3, all the facilities of that borrower are treated as Stage 3.

Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

The measurement of all expected credit losses for loan assets held at the reporting date are based on
historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts, The measurement
of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default (PD), loss given default (LGD) (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default (EAD). The measurement of ECL
invalves increased complexity and judgement, including estimation of PDs, LGD, a range of unbiased
future economic scenarios, estimation of expected lives and estimation of EAD, management overlay and
assessing significant increases in credit risk. The assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on histarical data adjusted by forward-looking information, As for the exposure at
default, for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date;
for loan assets, the exposure includes the amount outstanding as at the reporting date, together with
expected drawdowns an committed facilities (if any) in the future by default date determined based on
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historical trend, the Company’s understanding of the specific future financing needs of the borrowers,
and other relevant forward-looking information.

The Elements of ECL: The Company calculates ECLs based on probability weighted scenarios to measure
the expected cash shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference
between the cash flows that are due to the Company and the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive. The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:
Probability of Default (PD) - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a
given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility
has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio.

a) The Company has applied 12 months PD to Stage 1 Advances

b) The Lifetime PD is computed using basic exponentiation technique after considering the residual

maturity of the respective loan for Stage 2 Advances.
c) PDof 100% is considered for Stage 3 Advances.

Exposure at Default (EAD) — EAD is taken as the gross exposure under a facility upon default of an obligor.
The amortized principal and the interest accrued is considered as EAD for the purpose of ECL
computation

Loss Given Default (LGD) - The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a
default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and
those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. it is usually
expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

The Company recagnises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except for
investments in debt instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate component of equity wherein fair value
changes are accumulated, and does not reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in the balance
sheet.

In its ECL models, the Company relles on a broad range of forward-looking macro parameters and
estimated the impact on the default at a given point of time. The Company regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase
in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.,

. De-recognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its
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retalned interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds
received.

De-recognition due to modification of terms and conditions

The Company de-recognises a financial asset, when the terms and conditions have been renegotiated to
the extent that, substantially it becomes a new loan, with the difference recognised as a derecognition
gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recognised. If the modification
does not result In cash flows that are substantially different, the modification does not result in
derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the Company recognise
a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recognised.

Il Financial liabilities and equity instruments

i. Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

ii. Equity Instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

iii. Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except
for contingent consideration recognised in a business combination (if any) which is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are
subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a methad of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

iv. De-recognition of financial liabilities
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange with a lender of debt instruments with substantially
different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition
of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability
(whether attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of
the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the
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carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss,

. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and
it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

vi. Write offs

b)

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when there is no realistic prospect of further
recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor/ borrower does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject
to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Company's recovery procedures, considering legal advice where appropriate. Any
recoverles made against or from written off assets are recognised in Statement of profit and less.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue can be reliably measured. However, where the ultimate collection of revenue lacks
reasonable certainty, revenue recognition is postponed.

Revenue is recognized by allocating the transaction price, net of variable consideration, to the
performance obligations. Variable considerations include discounts and schemes offered as part of the
contract. The net transaction price for each obligation represents the revenue recognized for its
satisfaction.

I. Interest income

Interest income is recognised in Statement of profit and loss using the effective interest method for all
financial instruments measured at amortized cost. The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial assets.

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes transaction costs and fees that are an integral part
of the contract. The Company recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the best
estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the loan. Hence, it recognises the effect of
potentially different interest rates charged at various stages, and other characteristics of the product life
eycle (including prepayments, penalty interest and charges). Transaction costs include incremental costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial asset.

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit
risk, the adjustment is recorded as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset
in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income. The adjustment is subsequently
amortized through Interest income in the Statement of profit and loss.
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The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial
assets other than credit-impaired assets.

For credit-impaired financial assets the interest income is caleulated by applying the EIR to the amortised
cost of the credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. the gross carrying amount less the allowance for expected
credit losses.

ii. Interest income on deposits with banks
Interest income from deposits with banks is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the
outstanding amount and the applicable rate of interest.

iii. Net gain/loss on fair value changes
Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as fair value through the profit or
loss, held by the Company on the balance sheet date is recognised as an unrealised gain/loss. In cases
there is a net gain in the aggregate, the same is recognised in “Net gains on fair value changes” under
Revenue from operations and if there is a net loss the same |s disclosed under “Expenses - Net Loss on
fair value changes” in the statement of profit and loss.

Similarly, any realised gain or loss on sale of financial instruments measured at FVTPLIs recognised in net
gain / loss en fair value changes.

iv. Loan Processing Fees
Processing fees on loans is collected towards processing of loan, this is amortised on EIR basis over the
contractual life of the loan. Related cost incurred towards processing of loans is netted off against loan
processing fees.

v. Fee Income
Fees and commissions are recognised when the Company satisfies the performance obligation, at fair
value of the consideration received or receivable. Foreclosure charges are collected from loan customers
for early payment/ closure of loan and are recognized on realization. Initial money Deposit charges are
collected from customers for document processing, which is non-refundable in the nature. Initial money
Deposit charges are recognised in statement of profit and loss as fee income using EIR method on
disbursed cases. On non-disbursed cases, it is taken to statement of profit and loss on realisation.

vi. Other operational revenue
Other operational revenue represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and
is recognised when the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the contract.

¢) Employee benefits
The Company’s employee benefits mainly include salaries and bonuses, defined cantribution plans (ie.
provident funds and employee state insurance scheme), defined benefits plans (i.e. gratuity) and other
long-term employee benefits (i.e. compensated absences). The employee benefits are recognised in the
year in which the associated services are rendered by the Company employees.
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.

Short-term employee benefits
A liability is recognised for short-term employee benefits accruing to employees in respect of salaries,
short term compensated absences, performance incentives etc. in the period the related service is
rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-
term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional
amount that it expects Lo pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting
date.

Post-Employment Employee Benefits
i. Defined contribution plans
The contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised in profit or loss as and when the services
are rendered by employees. The Company has no further obligations under these plans beyend its
periodic contributions.

ii. Defined benefits plans

For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit
method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period.
Remeasurement, comprises actuarial gains and losses which Is reflected immediately in the balance
sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained
earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss, Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the
period of a plan amendment. Net Interest is caleulated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of
the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

s service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements);

= netinterest expense or income; and

= remeasurement

Other Long-term employee benefits

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-
term employee benefit for measurement purposes, Such long-term compensated absences are provided
for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial
gain/loss are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

Share-based payments

Employees of the Company also receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions

under Company’s Employee stock option plan (ESOP)-2020.
The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards granted to employees s
recognised as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the
employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as expense is based
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on the estimate of the number of awards for which the related service conditions are expected to be met,
such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards that do meet
the related service conditions at the vesting date. On cancellation or lapse of option granted to
employees, the compensation cost charged to statement of profit & loss is credited with corresponding
decrease in equity.

d) Finance costs

Finance costs on borrowings is paid towards availing of loan, is amortised on EIR basis over the
contractual life of loan. The EIR in case of a financial liability is computed:

a. Asthe rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability to the gross carrying amount of the amaortised cost of a financial liability.

b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash flows

c. Including all fees paid between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts,

e) Leases

The Company’s leased assets primarily consist of leases for office Space. The Company assesses whether
a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset,
the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (i) the Company
has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and
(i) the Company has the right te direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU") and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a
term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low
value leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease or another systematic basis.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the
lease term, ROU assets and lease liabilities includes periods covered by extension options when it is
reasonably certain that they will be exercised and includes periods covered by termination options when
it is reasonably certain that they will not be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus
any initial direct costs less any lease incentives, They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset unless
the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Company by the end of the lease term or the
cost of the right-of-use asset reflect that the Company exercise a purchase option, The Company applies
Ind AS 36 to determine whether a ROU asset s impaired and accounts for any identified impairment loss
as described in the accounting policy below on “Impairment of non-financial assets”.
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The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments
that are not paid at the commencement date. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the Company’s incremental borrowing rates.
Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset (orin
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero) if the Company
changes its assessment whether it will exercise an extension or a termination or a purchase option,

The interest cost on lease liability (computed using effective interest method), is expensed off in the
statement of profit and loss, Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance
Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows. The Company accounts fer each
lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease components of the contract
in accordance with Ind AS 116 and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease companent
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.

f) Property, plant, and equipment (PPE)
Recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates then separately based on their specific useful lives,

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. The cost of a self-
constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labour,
any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and
estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. Cost
includes, for gualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Company’s accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Subsequent costs relating to an item of Property, Plant and Equipment are recognised in the carrying
amount of the item if the recognition criteria are met.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance
sheet date are disclosed separately under other non-financial assets.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided an SLM method basis at the rates and in
accordance with the useful lives specified in Schedule |l to the Companies Act, 2013,

The estimated useful lives used for computation of depreciation are as follows:
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Assets category Estimated useful life (in years)

Vehicles 8 y;:;rs

Furniture and fixtures | 10 years

Office equipment 5 years

Computers 3 years

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of property, plant and equipment are reviewed,
and adjusted appropriately, at-least as at each financial year end so as to ensure that the method and
period of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from these assets,

The effect of any change in the estimated useful lives, residual values and /or depreciation method are
accounted prospectively, and accordingly the depreciation is calculated over the property, plant and
equipment’s remaining revised useful life,

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets
intangible assets are recognised when the Company controls the asset, it is probable that future
economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably.

The intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. These assets having finite useful life are carried at
cost less accumulated amortization and any impairment losses, Amortization is computed using the
straight-line method over the expected useful life of intangible assets.

Assets category Estimated useful life (in years)
Computer software 4 years
Trademark 4 years
Website 4 years

The estimated useful lives and amortisation method are reviewed, and adjusted appropriately, at least
at each financial year end so as to ensure that the method and period of amortisation are consistent with
the expected pattern of economic benefits from these assets. The effect of any change in the estimated
useful lives and/or amortization method is accounted for prospectively, and accordingly the amortisation
is calculated over the remaining revised useful life,
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Anintangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.,

Capital work-in-progress (CWIP)

Capital Work in Progress (CWIP) of intangible assets refers to the costs incurred on the aequisition or
development of intangible assets that are not yet ready for their intended use. Such costs are capitalized
until the intangible assets are ready for use, CWIP of intangible assets are capitalized if they meet the
following criteria:

+  The Company has control over the asset or rights to it

= [tis probable that the future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Company
= The cost of the asset can be reliably measured

Impairment of non-financial assets
Atthe end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indieation
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset Is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amaunt, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss Is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it Is probable that the Company will be reguired to settle that obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the reporting date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the liability, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
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surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, it carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the
time value of money is material). The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected
future operating losses are not provided for.

ii. Contingent liabilities
Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the oceurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not whally within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past
events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable
estimate of the amount cannot be made.

ii. Contingent assets
Contingent assets are not recognised, A contingent assel is disclosed, as required by Ind AS 37, where
an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

) Taxation
The income tax expense for the period comprises of current and deferred income tax. Income tax is
recopnised in the statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
the other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the related income tax is also
recognised accordingly.

Current tax
Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities based on the taxable income for the period.

The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the current tax amounts are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted as at the reporting date and applicable for the period.

While determining the tax provisions, the Company assesses whether each uncertain tax position is to
be considered separately or together with one or more uncertain tax positions depending upon the
nature and cireumstances of each uneertain tax position, The provisions are measured at the best
estimate of the amount expected to become payable, The assessment is based on the judgement of tax
professionals within the Company supperted by previous experience in respect of such activities and in
certain cases based on specialist independent tax advice.

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and liability simultaneously.

i. Deferred tax
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary
differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.
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Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequence that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be
available against which the deductible temporary difference could be utilized. The company recognises
a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is
convineing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax
asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets = unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting
date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that
the related tax benefit will be realised.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if it has a legally enforceable right
and these relate to the same taxable entity and levied by the same governing taxation laws.

m) Operating cycle

Based on nature of product /activities of the company and normal time between acquisition of assets
and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the company has determined its operating cycle as 12
maonths for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

Foreign currency transactions and translations
The functional currency and presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupee. Functional currency
of the Company has been determined based on the primary economic environment in which the
Company operates considering the currency in which funds are generated, spent and retained.

Transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency are recorded on initial
recognition using the exchange rate at the transaction date.

At each reporting date, foreign currency monetary items are reported at the prevailing closing spot rate,
Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting of monetary items at
each reporting date at the closing spot rate are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
period in which they arise.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-maonetary
assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction and are not retranslated at each reporting date.
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Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods
presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, sub-division of shares etc. that have changed the
number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effects of all potential equity shares except where the results are anti-dilutive.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances
(with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value,

Derivative financial instruments
The Company enters into derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts to
manage its exposure to foreign exchange rate risk,

Initial Recognition and Subsequent Measurement

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each reporting date. The resulting gain/loss is recognised
in the Statement of profit and loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and is effective as a
hedging instrument, In which event the timing of the recognition in the statement of profit and less
depends on the nature of the hedge relationship. The Company designates certain derivatives as either
hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities (fair value hedges) or hedges of highly probable
forecast transactions (cash flow hedges). A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial
asset whereas a derivative with a negative fair value is recognised as a financial liability.

Hedge Accounting

The Company uses derivative instruments to manage its risk on exposures to interest rate and foreign
currency. In order to manage particular risks, the Company applies hedge accounting for transactions
that meet specified criteria.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge
relationship. The documentation includes the Company’s risk management objective and strategy for
undertaking hedge, the hedging/economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction and the nature
of the risk being hedged. Hedge effectiveness is determined al the inception of the hedge relationship
and at the end of each reporting period through the assessment of the hedged items and hedging
instrument to determine whether there is still an econemic relationship between the two. The eritical
terms of the foreign currency derivatives entered into exactly match the terms of the hedged item. As
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such the economic relationship and hedge effectiveness are based on the gualitative factors and the use
of a hypothetical derivative where appropriate.

Cash Flow Hedge
A cash flow hedge is a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a particular
risk associated with a recognised asset or liability (such as all or some future interest payments on floating
interest rate) or a highly probable forecast transaction that can affect profit or loss.

For designated and qualifying cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the cumulative gain or loss on
the hedging instrument is initially recognised directly in OCI reserve within Other Equity (cash flow hedge
reserve). The ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised immediately
as Finance Cost in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When a hedging instrument expires, is sold, terminated, exercised, or when a hedge no longer meets
the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss that has been recognised in OCI at that
time is transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (C5R)
The Company accounts the expenditure incurred towards Corporate Social Responsibility as required
under the Companies Act 2013 as a charge to the statement of profit and loss, if applicable.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past / future cash receipts or
payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated based on the available information.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA') notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended
31 March 2025, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards
applicable to the Company.
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Amnunts in IHH lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

1 Cash and eash sgulvalonts Auat T3 Farch T078 Awal 31 Harch 1034
Canh oi hand 175,45 06,28
Balances with Banks [n cufrant accounts 709,28 16, §00.08
Dank geposits @ th original maturity of levs than thres moenths L) i
Total 15

Hu. 0,31 lakba {31 March 2024 Nil) kept 41 han againet bormowingi.

4  Bank balances other than cash and cash squivalants

Tank dapouits with oiginal matirity for moid than thrés moenths

Total

fe, 751700 lakihe (00 March 2024 e, 8067 29 lakhs) kepl a3 e against borowiigs,

Recaivablas

B (&) Trais isaaivablas

Unmgcured, considerced good
Les ! [mipairmient loak allowance
Total

An at 31 March 2025

20,004.78

Auat 31 March 3035

As at 31 March 2024

[FERT]
— 0TI
As st 31 March 2024

82,50

5258

(1) Thers is no due by directorns oF other officers of the Company of any firm or private company 0 owhich iy director 5 8 panie, 8 direclor of § member,

(2} Trats recehvablin are hon-interest baaring and are generally an terms of B0

days,

13) The manhgement expeits no defaull i recéipt of tiade recaivabilis, also e & o history of defauk abigived by the mandgemmi Henca, no LCL K bedn Fecogiliad an iade feddivabias,

LI
A i L] |
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1] UnaIsBuLED Teade (atenabies - Consiagied . . . = - =
|
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nilitfiil
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i
Agsing as 3 arch 2.
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(l):lmilbputul Traile icerablas = Consineed &350 . . - . 51,59
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T {ATAOURTS T TRRTRNS, TTERE STNETWISE STared)

Loans As at 31 March As at 31 March
2025 2024
(A) Loans {at amortised cost):
Loans 2,78,665.06 1,92,713.59
Less:- Effective interest rate adjustment (3,973.20) {2,802.95)
Total (Gross) 2,74,692,46 1,89,910.64
Less: Impairment loss allowance (3,446.60) (1,536.76)
Total (Net) 2|11|14!.HB 1‘32‘!?2.85
{B) Braakup of loans into secured/unsecured category
I} Secured by tangible assets 2,77,652.93 1,89,341.33
i) Unsecured 1,012.73 3,372.26
Less:- Effective interest rate adjustment (3,973.20) (2,802.95)
Total (Gross) 2,74,692.46 1,89,910.64
Less: Impalrment loss allowance (3,446.60) (1,536.76)
Total (Net) 2,71,245 86 1,88,373.88

{C) Breakup of loans geographical area-wise
(1) Loans in Incia

{a) Public sector - -

{b) Others 2,78,665.66 1,92,713.59
Less:- Effective interest rate adjustment !3‘973.2Dt §2|BDE.951
Total {Gross) 2,74,692.46 1,89,910.64
Less: Impalrment loss allowance {3,446.60) (1,536.76)
Total (Net) 2,71,245.86 1,88,373.88
(i) Loans outside India - -
Notes:

(1) There i5 no loan asset measured at FVYTOCT or FYTPL or designated at FVTPL.
(2) Loan amount Includes accrued Interest amounting Rs. 3,748.64 lakhs (31 March 2024: Rs. 2,387,56 lakhs),

Other financial assets As at 31 March Asat 31 March
2025 2024
Security deposits 237.37 221.00
Interest accrued but not due on
= deposits with banks 591.61 280.81
Excessive Interest Spread (E15) Receivable 213.87 -
Less; ECL on EIS Receivable (0.86) -
Others 9.50 =
Total 1Iun.49 IDI.HL
Currant tax assots (Net) As at 31 March Asat 31 March
2025 2024
Advance income tax 348,59 3
[Net of provision of incame tax |
Total 348.59 =
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Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Othaer non=financial assats As at 31 March Az at 31 March
2025 2024
Frepaid expenses 276.88 218.04
Balances with government authorities 24.78 104,45
Advance to vendors 53.87 68,53
Other advances 189.99 9,449
375.52 402,51
Derivative Financial Instruments As nt 31 March As at 31 March
2025 2024
Fair valua liability
Part I
Farwards
Hotional Amounts 22,155.69 =
Fair Value-Liability 506.95 =
Total derivative financial instruments 506,95 =
Part 11
Included in above (Part 1) are derivatives held for hedging and risk management purpose as follows:
Hotional Amounts 22,3155.69 -
Falr Value-Liability 506,95 =
Total 506.95 =
Thi eampany enters nto derivative Ninancial Instruments for its ferelgn currency risk exposures. The derivatives are measured to their falr value at the balance sheet date, These
instruments are designated as cash flow hedges and are measured at fair value. The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as
cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under hedge reserve, Fair values of darlvative financial instruments are determined on a
Marked to Market basis, (Refer Note 39)
As at 31 March As at 31 March
Payables 2025 2024
Trade Payables
= Total sutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note 43)* = N
= Tetal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 34,18 23.29
35,48 2338
*Based on and to the extent of the information recelved by the Company from the supplers dufing thee year regarding thelr status under the Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) there afe no outstanding dues te micre, small and medium enterprises as at March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024 - NiL), There is no interest due
or outstanding on the samae,
Ageing as at 31 March 2025
Outstanding for following perieds from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Yoars More than 3 Years Total
(i) MGME : . : -
(1) Dthers 3418 . - 34,18
iy DllEutg_d - = - =
(v} Disputed Dues - Others = " * =
Againg as at 31 March 2024
outstanding for following periods from dua data of paymant
Particulars
Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Yanrs More than 3 Years Total
I! MEME - . = a
(i) Others 21,29 . - 23.29
Hil} Disput + = - -
(iv] Disputed Dugs - Others - . - -

As at 31 March

As at 31 March

Dabt Sacuritias 2028 2024

{at amortized cost)

a) Non convertible debentures (Secured, listed, fully paid and privately placed) 10,000.00 c
Add: - Interest Accrued but not due on debt securities 46,07 -
Less:- Effective interest rate adjustment [60.54) -
Total (A) 9,988.53 =
Dabt Securities in India 0,968,53 .

Dabt Securitios outside India
Total (B)

9,988.33




Notes to the financial statemants for the year ended 31 March 2025
Amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

14.1 Terms of repaymaent of privataly placed redeemable non convertible debentures:

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Rate of interest

Tenura (From balance Shaat data) Amaunt Rata :w;“"“ Amount
Que Within 1 year . - - -
Du@ 1 yibr to 3 years 9.95%~10. 25% 10,000.00 - -
Total IUIDDH.OO -
Interest accrued 49.07 =
Effective interest rate adjustmant B0, 54 =
Net Amount v.i‘%'ﬁfﬂ')‘ - -
14.2 Details of Secured Redesmable Non Convertible Dabantures :
Type of Number of As at 31 March As at 31 March
Nama of Socurity Chargs sacurities Allotmant date Redamption Date 2025 2024
(1.) 10.25% HF5 NCD 2027 (Securad, rated, listed, Pari-
md’“m,mh nm_mmm“cum“mm, cassy 5000 September 24, 2024 September 24, 2027 §,000.00 -
(2,) 9.95% HF5 NCD 2028 (Secured, rated, listed Pari- 1
radeainable, ion-Lonvartible dnhﬂnt:.ll'ﬂ) i f Aatty 5000 February 24, 2025 Fabruary 24, 2028 5,000.00 -
Datails :

ia.3

(1.} 10.25% HFS NCD 2027 (Secured, rated, listed, redesmable, non-convertible debentures) Maturity Dated -Sept 24, 2027 © Face value of Non Convertible Dabenturss |5 1 Lakh,
These debentures are redeemable at the end of 36 months from the date of allotment. Payment of Interest is monthly and principal repayment at maturity,

(2.} 9.95% HFS NCD 2028 (Secured, rated, listed, redeemable, non-convertible debentures) Maturity Dated - Feb 24, 2028 @ Face valug of Non Convertible Debentures is 1 Lakh.
These debentures are redesmable at the end of 36 months from the date of allotment, Payment of [nterest i quarterly and principal repayment at maturity,

The secured non-convertible debentures (ssued by the Company are fully secured by way of a first=ranking pari-passu charge in favour of the debenture trustee over loan
receivables of the Company, to the extent required to maintain security cover as specified in the respective debenture trust deeds. Further the Company hag at all times, for the non-
convertible debentures issued, maintained asset cover as stated in the respective information memaorandum which is sufficient to discharge the principal amount, interest accrued
thereon and such other sums as mentioned therein,

Motas!

[1) Thera is N0 debt securities measured at FYTPL or designated at FYTRL,

[2) The debt securities have not been guaranteed by directors or others. Also the Company has not defaulted in repayment of principal and interest.

(3) The debt securities have baen utilised for the purpose for which they were iseued,

Az at 31 March Az at 31 March
15 Borrowings (Other than debt securitios) 2028 2024

{at amortized cost)
a) Term loans

i} from bank (Secured) 1,73,972.94 1,15,019.57

i1} from financial Institutions {Secured} J7.451.88 24,517,792

Add - Interest Accrued but not due on borrowings 426.69 249.54
b) Loans from related parties (Unsecured) - 4,600.00
c) Cash Credit (Unsecured) 1,77 0.d1
Liss - Effective intarast rate adjustment {1,224,28) {735,71)
Total (A) !Ii“l !Iz.gﬂ 1.13.5;&.13
Borrowings in [ndia 2,10,629,00 1,43,651.113
Barrowings outside 1ndia x 2
Total (B) 2,10,629.00 1,43,651.13

15.1 Tarms of repayment of Borrowings!
As st 31 March 2025 As ot 31 March 2024

Tanure (lrl;;_ t;;!nnn Sheat Rate ?ur;urnt PR, Rata r(:f“l'r;urul Amount
Due Within 1 year 8.13%-10,95% 64,190,687 B,30%-11.12% 19,474, 64
Due 1 year to 1 years B.13%=10,95% 1,04,546,97 B, 38%-10,85% 72,021,606
Due 3 year to 5 years B.39%=10.45% 33,702.35 0, 38% - 10,60% 24,949,.45
Above 5 years 9.03%-10,35% 8,986.40 0,75%-10,25% 1,089.55%
Unsecured
(e Within 1 year = = 0% 4,600,00
Total 2,11,426.50 1,44,137.30
Interest accrued qu ek 249,54
Effective interest rate adjustment (1,224.28 (735.71)
MNat Amount 2,10,629.00 = 1,43,651.13

Motes:

(1) There i§ no borrow ings measured at FYTPL or designated at FYTPL,

(2) The borrowings have not been guaranteed by directors or others. Also the Company has not defaulted in repayment of principal and interest,

(3) Unsacured term loan outstanding as at 31 March 2025 aggregating to Rs,Nil (31 March 2024 Ra, 4,600.00 lakhs was obtained from the director Mr. Harsh Hiranandani)

{4) The Company has utilised the funds raised from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpase for which they were borrowed.

(5) The Company has borrowed funds from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of loan assets . [t has submitted statements of loan assets with banks and
financial institutions an maonthiy basis and the said statements are in agreement with boaks of accounts.




HIRANANDANI FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Hotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Other financial liabllities

Employee benefil expenses payable
Accrued gxpenses

Book overdraft

Others

Current tax liabilitios (Net)

Provision far incame tax
[Mat of advance tax ]
Total

Provisions

Provigion for employes benefits

= Gratulty

- Provision far compensated absences

= Pravision Tar bonus and other incentives
Others*

Total

As at 31 March

As at 31 March

2025 2024
62.30 38.24
921.22 B76.06
. 5,023.45
207.28 189.93
1,190.80 6,127.68

As at 31 March

Ag at 31 March

2025 2024

o 0.27

= 0.27

Az at 31 March As 8t 31 March

2025 2024

30,90 81,52

226,51 134,40

597.00 492.00

. 1,218.22

B54.41 1,026.14

4 DU”"Q previous year, in ling with the RBI circular on ‘Fair Practices Code for Lenders - Charging of Interest’ dated April 29,
2024, the company estimated an amount of Rs, 1218.22 lakhs being the interest relating to the un-encashed period of
disbursal cheques and created a provision as on March 31, 2024, Tha company was also in the process of refunding/giving
credif to the customer accounts in compliance with the said circular, The amount of Rs. 620,26 lakhs rnlut\ng ta the period
prior to March 31, 2023 was disclosed as a nop-recurring exceptional item In the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year

ended March 31, 2024,

Other non-financial liabilitios

Statutory dues and taxes payable
Othars
Total

As at 31 March

As at 31 March

2025 2024
379.08 291.14
8.72 .40
387.80 299.54
i
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HIRANANRANE FINANGIAL SERVIGES PRIVATE LIMITER

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

{Amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwlse stated)
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4

25

27

9

Interest Income
On financial instruments measured at Amortized cost
= Interest income on loans

= Interest on deposits with banks
= Other Interest income

Fees and commission income

Fee Income and Other Charges

Net gain on Tair value changes

Het gain_on finandal instruments at FYTEL
Investment in Mutual Funds

Total

Fair value changes:
- Realised

Net gain on derecognition of financlal instrumants

Net gain pn derécognition of financisl instruments

Other operating revenus

Income from advertisement
Corporate Agency Commission

Other Income

Other_non-opérating income

Finance cosis

On financial llabilities measured at amaortized cost
- Intérest on borrowings

= Interest on debt securities

= Interest expense on lease liabilities

= Other borrowing costs

Total

Impairmant on financial instruments

On financial instruments measured at amortised cost
- Loans
Loans written off

For the year ended 31

For the year ended 31

March 2025 March 2024
30,202.02 23,727.44
1,460.41 914,51
7.84 7.57
40,760.27 24,649,52
For the year endad 31 For the yaar anded 31
March 2025 HMareh 2024
1,313.25 622.73
1‘313.15 622,73
For the yaar ended 31 For the year ended 31
March 2028 March 2024
714.7% 473.83
714.75 473.83
714,75 471.83
711.95 473.83
.
For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31
March 2025 March 2024
226.62 .
216.62 =
For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31
March 2025 March 2024
120.00 549.65
) 1,709.47 17064
1@33.41 1,330.29
For the year anded 31 For the year ended 31
March 2025 March 2024
47,00 28,08
47 T
s

For the year ended 31

For the year ended 31

March 2025 March 2024
16,566,22 9,180.58
314,45 -
32.37 6.30
587.53 308.57
17,500.57 9,405.45
T——

Far the year ended 31

For the year ended 31

March 2025 March 2024
1,509.84 §75.01
715,53 416,37

2,625.37 1@11.5'&"



— HIRANANDANI FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LTMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2028
{Amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

a0

I

321

Emplayea benefiis expenses

Ealaries, allowances and Bonus

Gratuity expense {refer note 35)

Compensated absence expense (refer note 35)
Contribution te provident and other funds
Emplayiee stock options expense (refer note 36)
Staff welfare expensed

Total

For the year ended 31
March 2025

11,135.,43
20.02
118.13
500,11
29.30
207.04

[ U

Gratuity expenses includes Rs, Nil (31 March 2024: Rs, Nil) paid to Key Managerial Personnel {KMP),

pepraciation and amortisation expenses

Depreciation of property, plant and equipmant (refer note 9)

Amaortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation on right of use assets (refer note 44)
Total

Other sxpenses

Advertisement B sales promotion

Commission expense

Electricity eharges

Insurance

Information technalogy expenses

Legal & professional charges

Payments to statutory suditors (Refer Note 32.1)
Credit verification charges

Office expense

Postage & telephones

Printing & statlonery

Rates B taxes

Rent expense

Rapairs & maintenance

Sacurity expense

Travelling, lodging, boarding & conveyvance expenses
CSR Expenses

Loss on sale/disposal of Fixed Assets
Miscallanenus expense

Paymants to statutory auditors

- Far Audit

- For Tax Audit

= For Certification

= Reimbursemaent of expenses

For the year endad 31

For the year anded 31
March 2024

B,198,52
1582
55.76

155.83
20,41
237,93

a'ﬁa.:r

For the year ended 31

March 2025 March 2024
132.19 111,20
58,92 28,89
142,61 75,41
333.72 215.50
For the year ended 31 For the yaar ended 31
March 2025 March 2024
150.98 129.15
254,24 40,54
10,87 129.71
159,67 82.16
312.24 179,46
448,89 117.67
41,84 1540
484,48 5116
419,47 200.43
60.00 103.06
62.16 64,46
130,22 211,89
229.85 218,42
27.88 33,55
5.11 .81
507.85 346,49
43,50 12.70
1.89 0.41
53,80 21.98
3063094 Tz s0m.a5
35.00 12,50
1.00 2.00
3.50 0.50
0.34 0,40
41,84 %




HIRANANDANI FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Wotas to the financial statemaents for tha year anded 11 March 2025
{Amounts in INR lakha, unlees otherwisd stated)

33

b}

€}

dy

Incama tax

The major components of income tax expense/(credit) ar |

Incoma tax expense/(credit) recognised in Statemant of profit and loss
Particulars

Currant tax

Current income tax for the year
Tax pertaining to sarlier periods
Total current thx exponses

Deferrad tax

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
Total deferred tax expenses/{benefits)

Total incoma tax expanke

Incoma tax racognised in other comprahansive income (OCI)
Deferrad tax related to items recognised in OCI during tha year

Particulars

Daeferred tax on remeasuremants of defined benefit plans
Deferred tax on the effective portion of gain and loss on hedging instruments (n & cash flow hidge

Recanciliation of Total tax Expense during the vear
Particulars

Profit before tax
Accounting profit bafore incoma tax
Tax @xpanss Al statulory iNCOMe tax rate of 25.168% (31 March 2024: 25.168%)

Adjustment of excess tax provision of earlier years
Adjustmant for deferred tax pertaining to sarlier years

Tax effects of permanent differecces:

Deguetion u/s B01JAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961

Disallowance related to CSR expenditure

Tax on Perquisite/Banafit u/s 194R

Iterna on which diflarad thx seset/Liability (nat) was not croated

Taw expensa at tha effective incoma tax rate of 25,12% (31 March 2024: 23.27%)

Broakup of deferrad tax r gnised in the Bal sheet
Particulars

Dafarrad tax assats

Praliminary axpanaes

Provdision for gratuity

Provision for compensated absences

Pravision for loan assots

Security Depouits

Other npn-financial liabilities = Unamortised processing fee
Rlght of use assets and lease liabilities

Add|tional Provision for interest Income

Total dafarred tax assats recognised (A)

Dafarrad tax linbilitios

Proparty, plant and sguipment and other intangible assetd
Right of use assets and lease liabilities

Excessive Interest Spread (EIS) Recelvable

Cthers

Prapaid procesaing fen on Loan labilitias

Total deferred tax labilities (B)

Deferrad tax assats /[ liabilities) r to itams r gnisad in OCI during tha yaar
pemeasuremants of dafined berefit plans

Effective portion of gain and 1088 on Redging INStrumants In a cash flow hedge

Total Dafarred tax relatad to items recognisad in OCI during the year (C)

Net deferred tax assots/(liabilities) (A+B+C)

Total including Deferved tax related to items recognisad in OCT

For the yaar ended 31 For the year ended 31

March 2025 March 2024
2,501,57 1,648.18

(308,50) (42,65)

w’ 1,605.52

{75.01) (856,20}

(75.01) (656.20)

7,200,06 49.32

For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31

Mareh 2025 HMarch 2024
(7.43) (4.59)
(23.36) =
(30.79) (4.59)

For the year ended 31 For tha year ended 31

March 2025 March 2024
8,790,687 4,079.14
B,700.82 4,079.14
2,212.47 1,026.64
(308.50) (42.66)
308,50 =

{107.53) (48.53)
10.95 445
3B.61 .
53,56 9.42
2,208,068 949,32

As at 31 March 2025 Af at 31 March 2024

8,74 17.49

7.78 20,52
57.01 33.83
580,71 296.41
17,16 0.97
999.97 70545

- 0.22

- 06,80
1,679.37 1,381,489
(9.73) (0.595)
(12.30) -
{51.83) =

- {5,24)
(323.34) (17D.14)
{399.20) {176.33)
5.81 {1.52)
23,36 s
28,27 (1.52)
1,309.44 1,203.64
1,309.44 1,203.64

The Company offsets tax assats and liabilities F and only if it has a legally enforceabis night to set off eurrent tax agsats and current tax labilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred

tax llabilitles relate to incoma taxes lavied By the ama thk authority,




HIHANANDANT FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Motos to tha financial statamants far tha ar anded 31 March 202%
riaunts in INH lakiv, unlizss stherwise statid]

34 Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic EPS amounts are caloulated by dividing the profit for the year sttributable o equity holoers of the Compary Dy the weighted average number of squity shares outstanding during
the yoar, Dilited [P5 aro calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable 1o the equity holders of the Company by welghted average numbsr of Equity shares autstanding
duting the year plus the welghted average number of eguity shares that would be ssued on eonversion of all the dilutive potential squity shares into equity shares. The following
reflects tha income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations)

Rasic Fap the year Far the year
andad 31 March ondad 31 March
20128 024
Net prafit after tax attributable to owners of the Company [A) 6,302.76 1,126.m2
Waightod average number of squity shares in ealculating basic LPS () (now,) 6, 20,40,101 50,322,687 084
Basie aarnings per eeuity share (A}{B) {In INI) .58 .62
Dilurad
Net piofit after tax atiributable to owners of the Company (A} 0S5HLTH 1,129.82
Weightad average numbar of squity shares in calculating basic [PS [nos, ) 6B, 29,40,101 50,22,07,084
Agil; Druity ghargs arising on grant of stock options under ES0P (noy, ) 27,231,867 14,59, 17%
Waighted average number of squity shares (n caleulating diluted EPS {0 {nos, ) B, S0, 51,968 n0,37 40, 259
Diluted warnings por oguity share (A}(B) (In INK) .98 f.4.

35 Employea banafits
A Definad contribution plans
The Company makes contibutions, detdrmined a5 a specified perceatoge of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employess towards provident fund, which is 8 defined
tontribution plan, The Company hae no obligations other than to make the specified contributions, The contributions are charged to the statemant of profit and joss as thay accrue, The
Company recognized Re. 444,97 lakhia (31 March 2024 R, 315,37 lakhs) for provident fund contributions in the Statemant of Profit and Loss,
0 Compansatad absancas

The amployens of the Company are entitied ta compensated atmences which arm both accumulating and non-accumulating in natum, The emplayees con carry forward up to the
specified poition of the uautilised accumilated compansated absences and uulise it in fulife periods of recslve cash al retiremant o Separation of employmeat. The sxpected cost of
accumulating compensatad absences s detarmined by actisrial valuation (using the projactad unit credit method) basad on tha addtional amount axpactad to ba paid ae o result af thae
unutilised entitlement that hiad aceuiiulated at the balance shaet date. Actuadal Galna/lodies arise due 16 differancs in the actusl experence and the aiduimed paraimeters and alio dues
o changes in the assimplions used for valuation. Actudial gaing/losses are iImmediately taken 1o the Othisr Comprenenaive Incomae,

Tha principal sssumption used far the purposs of actuarial valuation are as follows:

Particulars For tha year andad 31 March 2028 Far the yaar andad 31 March 2024
Present valus of unfunded obligations 216,51 134,40

Expense recoghisad in the Statement of Prefit and Loss 1113 55,740

Digcount rate 6. 54%: par anium Fo11% peF anfuim

1.5anior Managamaent; Kmp 0%

2. Othars 7o .00 % por annum

Salary growth rate
€ Dafinad banefit plana

fGratulty = definad benafit plan

This Comirany's gratuily scheime providas for [ump suim payment o amployees who Nas rendered at least five yeais of continuous service, of ai amoiunt equivalent (o one half month's
bauic walary payable for each completed year of service with celling of Rupsee 20 jakhs in terms of the provisions of Gratuity Act, 1972, The presant value of the defined benefit
abligation and the mlated current service cost wers Meatured using the Projectid Unit Credit Method with actuarial valuations being carried out at sach balance shest datw,

Charactaristics of dafined benafit plan : The eatity has a defined benefit gratulty plan in Indie (funded). The entity's defined benelit gratuity plan & o Ainal salary plan for
employaes, which mauires contributions to be made to o separately administered fund, The fund & managed by A trusi which is governed by the Board of Trustess, The Goard of
Trusteos are reiponaible for the adiminstration of the plan assets and for the definition of the investment stratugy.

A separate trust fund & created (o manage the Gratuity plan and the contributions towaras the trust fund is done as guided Dy rule 103 of [ncome Tax Rules, 1962,

During the yaar, thare ware no plan amandmants, curtalimants and sattlemants,

Dascription of risk evposures

a) Interost rais risk; A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.5ec, Rata will incresss the present value of the lability reguiring highar provision.

) Salary Risk: The present value of the defined benefit pinn Habdity 18 calculated by reference to the future salaries of Members, As sueh, an increass in the salary of the members
mora than assumed level will increass the plan's lability.

£) Ansat Liability Matching Risk: The plan faces tha ALM riik ax to tha matching cath fiow, Since tha plan i javestad in lings of Rule 101 of Income Tax Rules, 1962, this ganaerally
FEdUCES ALM risk.

o) Mortality rigk: Since the benefits undar the plan s not payable for life tme and payable Uil mtmmenst age anly, plan dors nat have any longevity risk,

&) Invastmant Risk: The present value of the dafined Benefil plan lability s ealculated uiing a discount rale which is deteriined by falerence to markel yields at the end of the
FRPOLING perod on Qovernment bonds. If the réturn on plan asset is DElow this rate, (L will create a plan defict: Currently, for the plan in India, it has & relatively batanoed mix of
inveitments 0 governmant securitios, and other debt instrumants,

f) Concantration Risk: Plan i3 having a conceritration fisk as all the assets dre nvested with the insurance company and 8 defaull will wipe oul all the asiets: Althiough probability of
this j= vary low as (neurance companies have 1o follow stringent regulatory guidelines which mitigate risk,

Gratulty - dafined banafit plan

As av X1 March Az ar 31 Maroh
2025 2014
Prasant valoe of Un-funded defined benefit abligation (131.03) (1152
{Fair Value of Plan Ansety st tha Und of the Pariod) 100,13
Fundad Status (Surplus/ (Deficie)) (30,90) (81,52}
Nat lability arising from dafined banafit obligation (30.00) (#1.82)

a) Raconcillation of the nat dafinad badalit Bability
Mg mant i the piesant vilus of definad benefit obligation & a5 follows |

Reconciliation of present valee of defined benefit obligation far Gratuity

Gratuity

For tha yaar For tha yaar

afdad 31 March andad 31 Marah
2028 2024
Balance at tha Peginning of the year B1.52 51,08
Current sarvice cost 14,22 12.10
Intarast cost 580 3,22
Banefit Paid Dirscily Dy the Employer (0.16) {3.063) r.«

Actuarinl {gaing) louses > =
= changes in fisancial assumptions 9.82 0.7¢

= changes in demographic assumprion: = E:
- wxprerlinie adjuitmenti 16.83 176

Presant Value of Renafit Obligation at the ind of year 131,03 ®i.57




HIRANANDANT FINAMCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Natas o tha financial ststamants for tha yaar andad 11 March 202%
1}

b} Reconciliation of the nat dafined banafit Asset
HMovement (n thie pranant value of defined benefl Asset 1§ as follows ¢

Reconctiation of present valiie of defined beneflt Asser for Grabuity

Gratuity

For tha yaar For tha yaar
andad 31 March anded 31 March
2028 2024

Nalance at the baginning of the year g '

Intesaat Incomea -

Coniributions by the Emplayar 106,60

Expaitad Contrbulions by the Employess .

Banefit Paid from the Fund

Assils Distributed of Sertlemants

ffects of Assal Cailing

Effuct of Changes 1n Feraign Exehange Ratey s .

Return on Plan Assats, Excluding Interest Income .11

Fair Valua of Plan Assats at the End of tha Pariad 100.13 D

Het (Liabiliy}/Asset Recognized {30.90) (m152)

Nots ©

Company hai contributed d sum of Re, 100 Lakhs towakdi gratuity fund managed by HDFC Life indaf the plas Daefensive Managed fund 11

c) A f ised in sia v of profit amd loss in respect of these employes benefits are as follows:
Gratliy
For the year For the year
anded 11 Mardh anided 31 March
2025 2024

E Recognized in tha 51 of Profit or Loss
Current service cout 14,22 i2.1d
Mt interis! BxpEnSe 5,80 .72
Companants of dafined benefit costs recognised in prafit or oss 20.02 15.82
Expenses Recognized in the Owher Comprehansive Incoms
Actuarial (gain} lous on defined banelit obligatian 20.6% 18,25
feturn on Plan Assers, Excluding Interest [ncomes {0.13) 3
Mt {Income)/Exponse Por the Poriod recognised in ot har 20,52 18.2%

orfiprahaniive intoiia

The mos! rece/t actuanal valiations of the present yalue of the defined benslit lability wers cairied out at 31

related current service cost, wore measured using the projected unit credit mathod

dj Tha principal assumption used for the purposs of actuarial valuation are as Tollows:
Principal actudrinl agaumptions at the reperting date {(expresied as welghtad averages )

Far tha yaar andad 11 March 2028

Expected Returs on Plan Assets

Discount rate

Ewpectad rate of salary increase
2. Others 7%

Ratirament age 58 yidais

Attrition rate

B % per annum
6. 54% per annum
1, Genior Managomant/EMP 9%

&, Othars 60%

HMortality talili
{Urbani)

1. Sanier Managemart/ KM 2%

Indian Assirad Lives Mortality 2012-14

March 2025, The present value of the defined benefit liabilty, and the

For ths yasr andad 11 March 2024
NA

7. 01% par annum
6,00 % per annum

S8 years
1. Senior Management/ KM 2%
2. Ohers 60%

Inclinn Assured Lives Mortality 2012-14 (Urban)

(1) The discount mite s basnd on the prevailing market yields of [ndian Government bonds ax at the balance sheat date for the estimated term of abligations.
{2) The estimates of future salary [ncreases considered vakes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors,

Sanaltivity analysis

Reasonably poss/ble changos at the reporting date to one of the relovant actuarial assumptions, holding obher sssum ptions conitant, would have affectsd ihe defined benefit obligation

bv tha amounts aliown Delow:
Gratulty

Far the yaar andaed 31 Mareh 2028 Inerenss

linpact of change in discount rate by 1% (5.94)
Impact of change (i salary Growth rate by 1% 2.78
Impact of change i emplovee tumover rate by 1% (0:77)
For the yesr anded 31 March 2024 Increass

Impact of change (n discount rate by 1% (4.21)
Impact of change in salary growth rate by 1% 2.10
tmpact of ehangs in efmployes tumaver rale by 1% (0.09)

Altheugh the analysis does fot take account of the full distribution of cash flews expected under the plan, it doss provide an apf

) Tha tabla below summarises the maturity profile and duration of the gratuity lability:

Dacraass

.46
(2.64)
0,78

Decroass

Gratulty Liabilliy

Particulars For thi yaar

andad 31 March

028
18t follawing yanr 19,67
2nil fallawing year 17,44
Ird \'ﬂ“l:lwlhq yaar 12.79
4th following yoar 9,548
Sth Fallowing Year 7.18
Gt 10 years a1,2%
11 yoari and aligvn 35,28

2024

4,61
(2.04)
0.08

For the year
andad 31 March

9.27
Q.18
8.26
fdd
443
20,27
LV T

ation of the

¥ of the assumpliong showi,
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HIRANANDANT FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Motas to the finoncisl statemants for the year andad 31 March 20218

Arfiouitd in J_VP!I-_l lakhs, unleds ofhirwise stated

3y

a)

Fair valus moassuraments

Catagory wise detsils a8 to carrying valus, fair valun and the lavel of fair valus measuramant hiararchy of the Company's finandial ins te are as foll
Carrying Yalus Fair Valus
As ar 31 March Asat 31 March  Am at 31 March As at 31 March
Levail 2028 1024 1018 1024

Financial asseis
&) Massurad at falr valua through profit or loss
(FVTPL)
= Investment in mutun| funds Leval 1 . -

) Massured at amortised cost

< Cash and cash aguivalonts Level 1 15,262,05 26,047,594 185,262 88 26,887.04
- [ank balanes other than neluded in (8) above Level 1 20,004, 78 0,073,118 20,00, 78 B,073.18
« Luang Laval 3 2,71,145,06 1,80,373,.688 2,71,245.88 1,B8,371.88
- SEcurity depomits Loval 3 237,37 221.00 237.37 12100
- Trade raceivables Level 3 5 82,50 - 12,59
- Dthed receivables Lewal 3 33304 520,04 133,04 S04
- Other financial assets Lovel 3 814,12 280.81 834,12
1,07,808,02 zgi""' 419 44 B Ia’ H“F i 2 Jﬂ-ﬁ%ﬁ}-

Total financisl assats ]IE,IEEIEE 124, R 07, A iiﬂlﬁﬁu

Financial liabilities

a) Mansurad at fair value through oithar
esmprahensive income (FVTOCT)

- Derivative Financial [nitrumants Leval 2 506,95 - S06,9%

) Mansurad at amortised cost = .
« Dubt Sacuritios Leval 1 9,088,51 . 0,988,53 -

< Narrowings (Other than dobit securities Laval J 4, 10,629,00 1,43 651,13 2,10,629.00 143,651,413

- Trade payables Leval 3 34,18 23.29 14,18 23,29

= Other payables Laval 3 . - - z

- Lease liabilities (refer note 44) Lavel 3 1,117.52 LER] 1,117,592 Ha.50

« Gthar financia) liakilities Leval 3 1,190,080 B, 177,60 L% 6,127.68
1,466,580 '“2'3 ﬂ"lel\D FREIELTS

Total financial liabilities FRERTIK 144,850, 2,23, 4686,

Tne following i& the basis of categorising the financial metruments measured at fair valus ints Leval 1 to Level 3:

Lovel 11 This level incudes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices {unadj } in activa tar | andetd of labilities.

Laval 21 This level includes financial assews and llabilites, measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within Leval 1 that arm obsgrvabls Tor Ehe assat or lability, sither directly (.., a% prices)
or indirectly {i.&.. derived from pricas),

Liswirl 30 This level [ncludis Ananc il assets and labilities measired using inputs that are net based on absarvable market data (unobservable Inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using
viluation modal based an Assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current marker tFansactions in the same instrument nor sre they hased on available markel data.

Thars wore ne transfars Botwesd any evals for Fair value measurements,

Tha following mathods / AEsumptions wars ussd to astimata the fair valuas;
i} The carrying value of rrade receivables, cash and cazh equivalents, other bank balances, trade payablo, other payables, secunty deposits, other financial assets and other financlal Nabilitiss measured at
amartized cout approximate thair fale valuo due 1o the shortsterm matunities of these [rsliumants.

i} Loamy The Company maaiures loans ot amortised eosl dnd BsLMates their falr value using the present value technigue, discounting the expected future cash flows at current market rates. The current
kel rates Lsed do not reflect significant changes from the rates applied inltially, Tharefore, the carrying amounte of [Gans approxiinate thelr fair values,

iy Borrowinge The Company meaiures Darrowings at amortised cost and determiaes thair falr value using the prasant value technique by discounting futum cash flows at pravailing market rates. As there
are Ao mateiial differences between current market rates and the ratox at which thois borowings ware onginally contracted, thair carfying amounts apiirosimate thalr fair valses,

) Darwative financial instruments The Company enters into derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts to manage its exposure to foreign exchange rate risk and are
measurid at fair value through other camprehans ve (ncame. Tha faii valies of denvative financial instrumants (8 measured on Marked to Marke! basis.

uh Investmants [nvestments in mutual funds are measured at fair value through profit or loss. The fale value it determined based on the Net Asset Value (NAY) declared by the aspective mutual fupd al
WhiEh units are Baued or redesmsd 68 at the repaning date, Changes in far valun are recognized in the stalamant of proft and loss.

Falr Valus Miararchy of assets and liabilitias

Fair Valus
AR Bt 31 March As &t 31 Harch
Laval 2025 i02a
Aspats massurad st falr value on a recurring basis
= Inyentmmnt in mutual funds Levil 1 r #
Liabilition mansured at fair valua on a recurring basis
- Dweivativie Financial [nstiumants Levil 2 506,94 .

Irvestmants in Mutual Fund are fair valued theough Profi & Loss account, Dervative Financial Tnsbrumants are Talr valuad through Other Coinpréahenaive Income.




HIRANANDANI FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the financial statemaents Tor the year ended 31 March 2025

(Ampunts in INR lakhs, unless ctherwise stated)

38 Capital managomaent

The Company's capital management strategy is to effectively determine, raise and deploy capital so as to create value for its shareholders. The
same is done threugh a mix of either equity and/or convertible and/or combination of short term flong term debt as may be appropriate.  The
company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of operations, capital expenditure and strategic investment plans. The capital
structure is monitored on the basis of net debt to equity and maturity profile of overall debt portfolio. The Company is subject to the capital
adequacy requirements of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). Under RBI's capital adequacy guidelines, the Company 15 required to maintain a
capital adequacy ratio consisting of Tier [ and Tier 1T Capital, The total of Tier 1T Capital at any point of time, shall not exceed 100 percent of Tier
1 Capital, The minimum capital ratio as prescribed by RBI guidelines and applicable to the Company, consisting of Tier T and Tier 11 capital, shall
not b less than 15 percent of (ts aggregate risk waighted assets on-balance sheat and of risk adjusted value of off-balance sheet. The Company
has complied with all regulatory requirements related capital and capital adequacy ratios as prescribed by RBL For details refer note 48,1,

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Tier = I capital B5,001.71 72,539.37
Tigr = IT capital H1B.09 715.07
Total Capital B19. 73.654.44
Agaregate of Risk Welghted Assets 2,80,220.67 1,93,465,19
Tiar = I capital ratio 30.34% 37.70%
Tier = 11 capital ratio 0,29% 0.37%
Total Capital ratio I0.63% 38.07%

39 Financlal risk management objectives and policies

The company's management monitors and manages key financial risk relating to the operations of the Company by analyzing exposures by
degree & magnitude of risk. The tompany's activities expose [t & variety of financial risks- credit risk, liquidity risks and the market risk
{Including Interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk).

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework,
The Company'a fisk management policies are established to dentify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits
and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in
market conditions and the Company's activities.

1) Credit risk

Cradit risk |5 the rigk of financial loss If a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises
principally from the Company's loans, advances and other financlal assets. The Company has credit policy approved by the Board of directors
which s subject to annual review. The Company manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for
Individual counterparties and for geographical and industry concentrations, obitalning suffickent collateral, where appropriate and by monitoring
exposures |0 relation to such limits, The Company has established a credit quality review process to provide early identification of possible
changes in the creditworthiness of counterparties, including regular collateral revisions. Counterparty limits are established by the use of a credit
risk classification system, which assigns each counterparty a risk rating. Risk ratings are subject to regular revision. The credit quality réview
process alms to allow the Company to assess the potential loss as a result of the risks to which it is exposed and take corrective actions. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in case of all the financial instruments is restricted to thelr respective carrying amount except in case of lnans
where the maximum exposure to credit risk includes exposure with respeet to undrawn commitments, Credit Rigk (8 monitored through stringent
credit appraisal, counter party limits ands Internal risk ranges of the borrowers, Exposure to cradit risk is managed through regular analysis of
the ability of all the customers and counterparties to maet interest and capital repayment obligations and by changing lending limits where
appropriat.

a) Maximum axpoiurs to tha Credit risk
This table below shows the Company's maximum exposurs te the eredit nsk,

Particulars

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

Financial Assets at amortised cost - Loans {Gross)
Less ¢ Impairment loss allowances®
Financial Assets at amortised cost = Loans (Net)

Financial Assets at amortised cost - Receivables (Gross)
Less ; Impairment loss allowances
Financial Assaets at amortised cost - Recaivables (Net)

2,74,607.48

(2,448,60)
2,71,24 5.86
333,04

333,04

1,69,510.64
(1,536.76)

1,88,371.88

602,63

602,63

* includes ECL on undrawn loan commitments,

Cash and cash squivalents, bank deposit

The Company maintaing its cash and cash equivalents, bank depesits with reputed banks and financial institutions, The credit risk on these
instruments is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies.

Trade receivables, Security deposits and other financial assets

The Company monitors the credit behaviour of the counterparties. These instruments generally have a maturity between 30 te 90 days (e.q.
trade receivables and trode advances) and carry very minimal credit risk based on the financial position of parties and Company's historical
experience of dealing with the parties.




HIRANANDAMNI FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notas to the financial statements for the year endad 31 March 2025

(Amounts in TR lakhs, uiless otherwise stated)

b) Cradit quality analysis
An Impairment analysis |s performed at each reporting date based on the facts and circumstances existing on that date to idantify expected
losses on accaunt of tme value of monay and credit risk, The credit quality of Loans and advances measured at amortised cost is primarily
assessed by the Days Past Due (DPD) status,

Inputs, assumptions and technigues used for estimating impalfment:
Dafinition of Dafault

The Company considers a financial instrument as defaulted and considered (t as Stage 3 (credit-Impalred) for ECL calculations in all cases, when
the borrewer bocomes more than 80 days past due on its contractual payments,

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

When determining whethar the risk of default has Increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company considers the DPD status of the
{oans, Credit risk |s deemed to have increased significantly when an asset is more than 30 days past due (DPD),

Calculation of axpected credit losses (ECL)

The Company has calculated ECL using three main components! a probability of default (PD), a loss given default (LGD) and the exposure at
default (FAD), ECL is calculated by multiplying the PD, LGD and EAD. For stage 1 assels, the 12 month ECL |s calculated. For assets in stage 2
and 3, Lifstime ECL Is calculated using the lifetime FD.

The key slements in calculation of LCL are defined as follows:

PD - The Probabliity of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time herizon. A default may only happen at a cartain time
over the assessed period, I the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio. 12 month PD estimation process is done
based on historical internal data, While areiving at the PO, the entity also ensures that ihe factors that affects the macro economie Erends are
considerod to a repsonable extent, wherever necessary. In case of assels where there is a significant increase In credit risk, lifetime PO has been
applisd which Is computed based on survival analysis. For credit impalred assets, a PD of 100% has been applied.

EAD - The Exposure at Default represents the gross carrying smount of financial assets at reporting date whieh includes principal cutstanding
and intarest accrued on reporting date and expected drawdown on committed facility.

LGO = The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arlsing in the case where a default occurs at a given time, It is based on the differance
between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to recelve, Ingluding from the resalisation of any collateral, It |s
usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD. The LGD Is determined based on historical recovery experience of collatietals and other relevant

factors.

The following table sets out information abiout the credit quality of financial assets miasuied at amortised cost,
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 | As at 31 March 2024
Gross Stage 1 (DPD<= 30 days) parforming assat and 12 2,64,180,95 1,088,685,57
maonth ECL

Less | Impalrment loss allowance (818.08) {715.08)
Net Stage 1 Assets 2,63,362.87 1,87,970.51
ECL provision coverage 0.31% 0,38%
Gross Stage 2 (30>DPD<= 90 days) under parforming assets 8,963.59 2.447.4%
incranse in credit risk and lifetima ECL

Less @ Impairment leds allewance (480.59) [143,22)
MNet Stage 2 Assets B,483.00 2,304,27
ECL provision coverage S.36% 5.05%
Gross Stage 3 (DPD=90) non-parferming assets credit 552112 1,580.53
impaired and lifatima ECL*

Lags : Impairment loss allowance (2,147.93) (678,48)
Nat Stage 3 Assats 3,373.10 502.0%
ECL provision coverage 38.90% 42,93%
Total loans 2,78,665.66 1,92,713.59
Less ¢ Impairment loss allowance (3,446.60) (1,536.76)
Mat loans 1,7!;21!.““ 1,91,176.83
ECL proviglon coverage 1.24% B0%

= Tncluding dCcounts marked as NPA In accordance with RBI circular no. RBI/2021-2022/125 dated November 12, 2021

Mote - Gross amount includes accrued interast
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HIRANANDANI FINANCIAL SERVICER PRIVATE LIMITEDR

FiT TR yoar enoed 1T WEren 7oy

a
{Amaunts in [NR lakhs, untess otharwise stated) —

i1} Liguldity pisk managsmant

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encauner difficulty (8 meeting hie abligatione assaciated with (ks financial llabilives that are sotiled by delivering cash o ancther financial asset,
The Campany's approach i managing ity 18 o enyure, as far as possible, that it will have sufliclent Bouidity o meet its liabilities when they are dus, under both normal and stresded
conditions, withoul incurring uRGCEERLADIE 1osses oF risking damage 1o the Company's reputation. The Company s principal sources of lquidity are ‘cash and cash aquivalonts’ afd cash finwe
it 4rE unn-nll-d fram eparations The Campany has sullilent amount of oulstanding term borrowings, The mmme beliaves that its widking capital anid term kans are wuffic enr o et s
gurrent regulrements,

Uitimata rasporaibility fai liguinity nsk managemant rests with the beard of directors, who has wstablished an appropriata |iauidity risk management framawark for the management of the
Company's shart-teem, medlum:ierm and long-term funding and lguidity management requirements., The Company manages liguidity rsk iy malntaining adequats reseives, banking Facilities,
by tontinuously menitaing forecast and actual eash fows, and iy MAtehing the maturity profiles of financial sssets and llabilits. The Company mpects fa mast lla other abigatians fram
aparating canh Mbws and procedds of maturing Winancial asseis,

Institutionsl set=up for liguidity risk mansgamant

‘The Liguidity Risk Management of the Company (s governed by the Liguidity Risk Management Framawork andl Asset Liabifity Management Cominitted (ALEOY. The ALCO has the averall
raspansinility for managemant of liquidity risk, Fhi ALCO decides the strategy, policies and procedures ta mannge liquidity rlsk i Accordance with the ligguigdity risk tolerance/limits approved by
it. The Asset Liability Managemant Commiltes (ALCD), v rosponsible for ansuring adherence to the liquidity ridk tolerance/limits au well as implemanting the figuidity risk managamanit
stiateny, The role of the ALEO with respeet (@ liguidity sk includes, inter 8118, decision on desired maturity profile and mix of incremantal ausets and liabilities, respansibilites and contrals for
managing liauidity risk, and oversaeing the Hguldity positions at an entity Tevel.

Maturitian of financial llabilitias
Contrarmual maturities of significant fifnanilal Liaklities as on 31 March 200% gatl 41 Marcn 2024 basod on undiscounied Dayimente

Maturitian of financial Habiiiss

& Faliows,

Within 1 yaar Batween 1 and § Mars than 3 Total
31 March 2028 yanis years
Debt Securities 48,07 0.838.40 . 9,008,593
Borrowings £i4,617,56 1,38, 349,32 7,762.12 2,10,629.00
Durtvative Financial instrumant 06,95 . ] i, 6%
Lease labilities i H6 B29.68 * 111752
Trade payables Mman . - 348
Othai Payablos . - '
Ouher finanial liabil ities 1,190.00 L e 1,190.80

Of GNE42 1 32 ‘“H ad [ ERE 4
WILRIN 1 year fmtwean 1 and 5 Hars than § Tatal

11 March 2024 yoars yoars
bt Serurities - . - ¥
Barrowings A4,000, 20 46,478 14 1,073,749 1.43,658.13
Berivative Fiaancial Instriment . - A .
Laassn liabilities Aol (R = S4.50
Trade payables 21.29 - - 23.29
Oihied Payabies ¥ - .
Ouher Ainancial llabiites 5,127 68 . H —EdEE

 enaniga 107379 1ASAA0E0

Coniingant Liabillty

11 Mirch 202% 3,21007 11543 . 1,325 50
11 Maith 2024 3,70%.82 127,00 = 24132 82
Hote:

- Dbt Securities are Oosailied Dased on the exeicise date of (he call o put option

W) Markat risk

Harket ik (5 (he risk that the fair value of fulure cash Mows of @ NnaRci) NG ment will fluctiate because of changes In Marker pricas. Market risk cOmpiises thiee types of rlak. interest tate
Fisk, rurrency riak and other poice fiak, Financal instrumants affecind Dy markel dsk include foreign currency raceivables, deposits, trade payables and loans. The Company has In place
approgriate rivk mandgement policies o lmit the (mpact of these risks o its financial performance, The Company Ensures aplimization of cash through fund planning and. fubust agh
manAgEMant practices.

(&) Intarast iats risk
[ntgrest rate rink i the fsk tRal e fair valus or fubure cash Mows of & financial instrumant will Auctuate Decause of changes in market interesl fates.

The CoMpany's ExpasTe 10 changes in interest rates relales to the Company’y outstanding floating rate liabilicies, Certain barrowifis carey wariable interost rates, miking e senuitve o
Huctuations in market interest rates. With all oiiwr variables held canuant, the campany's profit Defore tax (s affected thraugh the impact on flaating rate Borrawings, as fliows

e 57

|AN at 31 ﬂﬂﬂ aﬂi! lans bofers tax on oih
Particulars Favourable / i avnurabia / Favoura
in} {Unfayauranla) | (Unfavoursbie) changs
changs 1% deqreass changa 1% ahangs 1% 1% Incresse
Incroams decaans
Norrowings 1,900,93 {1,808.93} AZ049 [1.4J8.49)
Loans (2,/38.27) 2,710, 12.040,83) 2,000.82
| Impaect on prefit/|oss Bafors tas |
Particulars Fayourabis / Favourable / Favaurabis Favourabile /
{Unfavaurabie) {Unfavourable) u abl: { bha) changs
hangs 1% d ange 1% ghangs 1% 1% Indraais
Incroass deci nann
Horrowings 120572 (1,285.72) a1 (363,13
Loans (1,070, 15) 187015 (1, 399473 i 99,47

(b Pricing sisk
The Campany's [Avestinel s Mutual Funtds (vaxposed o pricing risk, Other financial inutrumaiits held by the company dogs fat possess any flak aspociated with trading. A § percent increase
in Hat Ausets Valus (HAVS wauld inrreass profit bafare tag by appraximately NIL (115 MArch 2024 | HILY. A similar percantage decrease would have resulted squivaledt opposie impace.

{c) Foruign Currency Risk

The Campany s exposed to forelgn currenty sk primarily on account of its farelgh eurrenty horrowings. In order o manage this risk, the Company entert into derivative flnancial nstrumants,
atich s forssr contracts, o hedoe ity expestre 1@ forslgn currency Nuctuations, The Cumpany fully hedge all forelgn Eurmency Borowings st the tme of drawdawn ahd te maintain the hedge
until the repayment of the borrowings. Tha counkerfarkies [0 thise derivative contracts are generally reputable banks.

The Eompany has Hil smount of unhedged foreign Cus rency Bxpdsure as 6n Mareh 11, 2025 and a un Harch 31, 2004,

1 Bccordanie with tha Company's poliey, (15 1isk profile (s anseined Defore entéiing inta hedging transactions, which are approved by the authorised signatary of the Company. The
affectivaness of hedaex (s ssxesied by the ALCO, The effectiveness of ail the hedge relationships is monitordd by the ALCO fram fime to dme. Currently, the posiians are lully hedged (i.e
100% 1isk of foreign exchange movemant) in ing with the Board approved pollcy,

il Bnterpries risk managamant
Thi Company has adopted a comprehonive eiterprise-level rsk I i desigried to proactively dentify, assess, and mitigate risks Urough layered controls, This Iramework
i& anehared in the "Thros Lines of Deferne® Modil, SNLuTINg Fobust governance and oversight across all levels of the organization,

{a) Dparalisnial Wisk
Tha Company Atopls & struchired approach to operational risk managemant, Key controls include robiust pelicies, internal control standards, 4 Risk @nd Control Matix (BEM), and 8 definad
governante structure, Reguiar monitwring and updates ensure allgnment with regulatory changes and indusiry et practices,

(B} Information Becurity Risk

Given the tynamie and ewolying thieat landscaps, Information Security continies fa be a eriliEdl [oCUR arda. Th Company has ir ed compreh policies, p , il &
supporting bechnolagy fFAMewnrk to strengthen it security posture, Dversight i provided by the Tafoi marian Gacurity Cammittes (15C), which apaerates undar the aupervision af the [T
Strategy Commiles (ITRC), snsuring a structured APPFoALh 10 MMARAGING cybor and Information saruriry ke,

EDC';'

2Ll




HIRANANDANI FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
MNotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

40 Related party transactions

i

40,1 Deseription of ralationship
1) Key Managerial Parsonnel (KMP)

Name of paraon

Nature of Relationshi

|Uday Sivaina Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
Rajesh Rajak Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

|Richa Arora (till Dec 10, 2024)

Kotaki Satam (from Dic 10, 2024)

Cumpunr Sucralum ELS!
Company ﬁecrcarv (=

Hargh Hilrnn.png._pm Director
|Neha Hiranandan| Uirector
Litpal Shisth ndependent Director
Pram Kumar Chaphl nduEn ent Director
Anil Kaul ndependent Director
Hiranandan| Financial Services Employees’ Gratuity Trust E;gnt:gllﬂi Giatuity Trust
Hiranandani Constrictions Pyt Ltd, :::::::v"r direcion iRl his
Relative of director is KMP in this

H ' p

GF Community Private Limited company

Roma Bullders Priviita Limited,

Ralative of director |8 KMP in this

company

We have disclosed the list of related paities with whem transsctions have been undertaken during the reporting period.

40.2 Tr tions with ralated parties during the yaar
_I_l__!tl-lfi of Tl'lﬂ!ﬂﬂ_slﬂﬂ 31st March, 2025 31st March, ZEII
Transactions with key managarial persennal
Equity influsion & allotment of shares (Including share
pramium)
« Harsh Hiranandani 5,000.00 16,000.00
« Naha Hiranadani 1,000.00 4,000,00
Rapayment of Loan Received
= Harah Hiranandani 4, 600,00
Cantribution towards Trust
= Hirnmandani Financial Services Employees’ Gratuity 100.00
Trust
Payment of Office Rent

= Hiranandani Constructions Pvt. Ltd, 0.36 0,36

- Roma Builders Private Limited. 0.05 ;

- HGP Community Private Limited. - -
Remuneration to KMPs'® g09.11 456,28
Sitting fees to Directors

- Prem Kumar Chophla 23.00 21,00

- Anil Eaul B.00 4.00
Commission to Directors

- Prem Kumar Chaphla®* 2.88 4.00

= Anil Kaul 17.00 11.10

* Remuneration 1o KMPS does nat include provision for gratuity and compensated absences.

**Includes 0.88 partaining 1o previous period,

40,3 Closing balancae of related parties

Nature of Transaction

Ad at Jist March, 2025

Loan outstanding
- Harsh Hiranandani

Offica ront payabls
- Roma Bullders Private Limited.

Sitting fees payable to Directors
- Anil Kaul

Commission payable to Directors
- Prem Kumar Chophla
= Anll Kaul

Az at Jlst ﬁlrch, 2024

0.05

1.00

0.50
6,50

4,600.00

Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extant not provided for)

(i} Contingent Liabilitios

The Company does not hava any pending litigations which would impact its Nnancial position as an 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

{ii) Commitmants
Particulars

o, Estimated amount of contract remaining to ba executad
on capital account and not pravided for (net of sdvance)

b, Lobn sanctioned but not disbursed and or partially
disburaed

As at 31 March 2025

115,43

3,210.07

Am at 31 March 2024

127.00

2,705.82

4
-



HIRANANDANI FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial gtatements for the year ended 31 March 2025

EAITID‘II'IES !I ma |i|kt % Hnlﬁﬁ pthenwise stated)

42 Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility

4

L

Amount required to be spent by the Company on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) related activities during the year is Rs.43.47 lakhs (Previous year: Rs.17.63
lakhs).
(a} The amount recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on CSR related activities is Rs,43,5 lakhs (previous year:Rs, 17.7 lakhs) (Refer note no, 32 of
financial statements), which comprises of
March 31, 20258 March 31, 2024
(a) Amount spent during the yaar on:
{1) Construction/ acquisition of any asset
Paid during the year . -
Set off from Previous Year
Tatal 5 x

(i) On purposes other than (1) above

Paid during the year
Sat off from Previous Year

Tatal

43,50

43,50

March 31, 2025

17.70

17.70

March 31, 2024

(b} Amaunt of surplus to be carrled forward in subsequent years for Set off :

Amaunt spent in excass of requiremants as per Companies Act, 2013 available for set off in subsequent years 0.07 -
Actual amounts spent 43,50 17.70
Amounts to be spent as per the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 41.47 17.63
Surplus carried forward to be set off in subsequent years 010 0.07
() Reaszon for shortfail Mot applicable Not applicable

{d) Nature of CSR activities

March 31, 2025 Promoting education, including special sducation and employment enhancing vecation skills especially among
children, women, elderly and the differently abled and livelihood enhancement projects
Promating women empowermant, Enhancing vocational skilis ameng women, Supporting livelihood
enhancement projects

March 11, 2024

Disclosures as per the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development {MSMED) Act, 2006
The dugs to micro and small enterprises as required under MSMED Act, 2006, based on the information available with the Company, s given below

Am at 31 March A= at 31 March
2025 2024

{a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of sach
accounting year:

(1} Principal amount due i .

{1} Interest due on above n »
(b} The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amaunts of - -
the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year
{€) The amount of interest dug and payable for the peried of delay In making payment [which have been paid but - -
byand the appointed day during the year) but without adding the Interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006,
{d} The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year, . -
(@) The amount af further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, untll such date when the - -

Interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006,

The aferementioned | based on the responses received by the Campany te 118 Inguiries with suppliers with regard to applicability under the sald Act, This has been relied
upon by the auditors,




HIRANAMNDANI FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

i )

44 Leases

Company as a lesses

The Company's leased assets primarily censist of lease of office space, The Company has elected to apply the practical expedient available under Ind AS 116 for short
term leases. The Cempany does not recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabllities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or 1ess and recognises
the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Below are the summary of financial information related to the above lease contracts:

Movement In right of use assets: AL L oen -
Gross Block

Opening balance 215,92 143.04
Additions 1,346,17 72.88
Termination/ Modification/ End of lease contract (307.87) -
Closing Balance 1,254, 215.92
Aceumulated Depreciation

Opening balance 162.31 86,90
Additions 142.61 75.41
Tarmination/ Madification/ End of lease contract (217.08) .
Closing Balance B7.84 162.31

Amounts recognised in profit or loss:
Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets 142,61 7541
Interest expense on lease lability 3237 6.30
Expenses relating to short-term leages 229,85 248,42
As at 31 March As at 31 March
2025 2024
Movement in lease liabliities:
Opening balance 54,50 52,87
Additions 1,268,458 67,65
Modification (90.54) o
Amounts recognised In statement of profit and loss as interest expense 32,37 6.30
Fayment of lease liabilities (147.30) {74.32)
Clesing Balance 1,117.52 54.50
A ts recognised In stat t of cash flows:
Particulars HMarch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Tatal eash outflow for leases

Maturity analysis of contractual undiscounted cash flow:

147,30

Ag at 31 March

72.32

Agat 31 March

Particulars 2025 2024
Mot later than one year 364.60 4581
Later than one year and not later than five years 843.60 9.69

Maturity analysis of lease lability:

As at 31 March

Asat 31 March

Particulars 2025 2024
Mot later than one yoar 287.85 47,62
Laler than one year and not ister than five years B20,66 6.88

Notes:

(1) When measuring lease labilities for leases that wers classified as operating leases, the Company discounted lease payments using Its incremental barrowing rate at

thee weighted-average pre-tax rate of 9.98% p.a. for 31 March 2025 (For 31 March 2024 | 9,80%),

(2] The maturity analysis of lease llabilities is presented in Note 39,

(2} During the year, the Company revised 18 estimate for determining lease terms under IND AS 116 - Leases. Previously, lease terms were based on the nons
cancellable (lock=iny period, EMective 01 January 2025, |lease terms are now assessed based on the full contractual period, Including extension options where there is
reasonable certainty of ranewal, in compliance with IND AS 116, This change has been applied prospectively as a change in accounting estimate In accordance with IND
AS B, As a result, lease Nabillties and right-of-use assels increased by Rs. 1,046.94 lakhs and Rs. 1,096.86 lakhs respectively, while security deposits decreased by Rs,

64,068 lakhs

Additionally, the change in estimate led to an impact on the Statament of Profit and Loss comprising:

Increass in Depreciation on right of use assats: Rs, 66,58 lakhs
Increase in Interest expense on |lease llabilities: Rs. 25,67 lakhs
Increase in Other interest income: Ry, 3.69 lakhs

Decreste in Rent expense: Rs. 69,95 jakhs
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HIHANANDANI FINAMCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes ta the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
fAmcunts in INR lakhs, unless piherwise stated)

47 Dlsclosure as per Appandix 11-A of Master Direction = Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company = Seale Based Regulation} Directions, 2023 {Updated as on

February 27, 2J038)

(i) A comparison hetween provisions required under oxtant prudential norms on Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisionlng {IRAEP) and Impairmant allowances

made under Ind AS 109

Year ended 31 March 2025

Asset . TR Loss Allowances Difference
classification roug Carrying Amount | (Provisions) bs Proviglons required | betweesn Tnd A%
Asuat Clasaificution ay par fBI Norma as per Ind AS s por Ind AS* required under | Mot CATTYIng Amount | RACP norma| 100 provisians and
109 Ind AS 109 IRACP norms
(1) 7) ) (4 T B = (3 (4) ) 77 = (4) - (B)
Parfoiming Assets
Stanclard Stage 1 2,04,180,95 BOB, 46 2.63,371.49 1,046.52 {238.06)
Stage 2 8,963.59 400, 4% B48010 4.3 A48, 10
Subtotal for standard 2,73,144.54 1,288.0% 3,71,855,50 1,080.83% 200.
HonsParforming Asuote (NPA)
Subritandard Stage 1 4,525,158 1,638.90 2,886.25 459,15 1,179.75
Doubtful - Up to 1 year Stage 1 795,52 372.84 422.68 160.36 21248
1to 3 years Stage 3 185.82 121.09 64,73 57.02 4,07
More than 3 years Stage 3 - % - = -
Subtotal for doubtful 5,506.49 2,132,853 1,373.66 676,53 1,456,390
Loss Stage 3 14.6 14,63 x 14,6 e
Subtotal far NPA 5,521,132 2,147,468 3,373.66 691.16 1,456,310
Other itetns such as guarantess, loan commitmants,
sic. which are in the 3tope of Ind AS 109 but not Stage RI05.08 9.2 AT = 9.62
covarad undar current lheomea ﬁ.“pgnr‘iqn, Agnap
Classification and Provistening (IRACP) narms Stage d 196 ain o : Bt
Stage 3 1,35 0.47 0.8 - 0.4
Subrotal 3,210.07 10,1 159,88 . 3_;_‘1_%
Total Staga 1 2,67,387.91 H1n,DA 2,66,569.83 1,048,527 (220,44
Stage 2 8,965,135 480,59 8,484,786 34,31 446,28
Stage 3 5,522.47 2,147,931 3,374, 54 691,16 1,456.77
Total 2,81,875.73 3,448.60 ,78,429.13 1,771.99 1,674.61
Year ended 31 March 2024
Annt 1 Loas Allewances Diffarence
claggilication | Gross Carrying Amount | (Provisions) as Provisions reguired | batween Ind AS
Assal Classification as por RBI Norms a8 par Ind A% 8 par Ind A5 required undar | MO Carrying Amount 28 per IRACP norms| 109 provisiens and
100 Ind AS 100 IRACP norms
(1} () 3y (4) (8) = (3) - (4) (6) {7) = (4] = [6)
Perfarming Assots
Standard Stage 1 1,B8,685.57 708,59 187,979,980 753,36 [47.77)
Stage 7 2,447,409 143,22 2,304.27 i
Subtotal for standard 1,01,133.08 __ BARA1 1,90,284.25 _765.27 —— B354
Hon-Performing Assels (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 1,263,59 522,00 741,589 128,69 ELRE S
Doubtfiul = up 1o 1 year Stage 3 21111 9,75 121,36 43,56 6,25
1o 3 years ftage 3 105.83 66,73 3910 1.7% 34,98
Mare than 1 years Stage 1 . - . - .
Subtotal for doubtful 1,580,583 678,48 202.08 203,94 474,54
Loss Stage 3 i = = — =
Subtotal for NPA 1,500,513 678.48 P02.08 203.94 474.54

Othar (tems fuch as guaraniaes, loan commitmants,

#tc, which are in the scope of Ind AS 109 but nat Stage 1 2,708.82 9.47 2,606.38 b 947
covered under currant Income Recognition, Anset

Classification and Provisloning (IRACE) norms

Gtage 2 . & - e

Stage 3 - - = 3 -
Subtotal EXTENH 9,47 2 606, 35 X 9.47
Total Slage 1 1,91,391,39 715.06 1,06,676.93 751,36 {38.30)

Gtage 2 2,447.49 143,22 2,304.27 11.91 131,31

Stage 3 1,580.53 678,48 902,085 203.94 474,54
Total 1,95,419.41 1,536.76 1,83,802.65 969,21 867,55

= Gross amount includes accrued nlarast

Since the total impalrment allowances under Ind AS 100 is highar than the tatal provisioning required under IRACE (Ineluling slandard asset provisioning) as st 11 March 2025 and 31 Mareh
2024, na amount is required to be trandferred to ‘Impairment Resorve' for Bath the financial years. While, tha provisions reguired as per IRAGP norms doss not include any such intarest as
interest accrual on NPAS i not permitted under TRACF norms, The balance in the 'Impalrment Reserve’ (a5 and when created) shall not be reckanad for regulatory capital, Further, no withdrawals
shall e parmitted from this /sarve without prior permisgion fram the Department of Suparvision, 2B,

In terma of recommandations as per ahove referred netification, the Company has adopted the same definition of default for a ting purposes as gulded by the definition
usid for regulatery purposis,

A5 at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, there were no loan accounts that are past due beyond 90 days but not treated as impalred, Le. all 90+ DPD ageing lean accounts have beon classified
a3 Stage-3 and no dispensation i canuidered in stage-1 classification,
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30 HBFC disclosires:
Diiclosure aw par Apparidis 11-0 of Mastor Direction - Resarye fank of India [Non-Bank g Finanoal Company = Stale Based Magulaton) Directions, 2033 (Updated an on Pebruary 27, 2025)

[T o omiiiuring -
l!'l:. Asial Clasaifioat ion Defalls Telaiilaii Wik Brannand Bl Liss Tolal
1 [Mestructured Accorts ok o 1 ARl 2044 Wi, af Boriorasi £} 1] i . [§]
Al AT 102.87 Fa ] 1280 - 139,00
Prureisan tharon 10,70 4BT 1.4 - 1.3
2 |Fresh restryeturing during e year / Fapaymant duling Me vear Mz, af borrower - H - 1
Amaunt gutstanding {95 afiid . ' 23,18
Propision (hadson (8.1 L 513 ' - LX)
§  |Upgradatons to restructursd standard catagory dusng tha PY i, oof B - N s 5 E
At audslaning - -
Prinvision thareon .
4 |Resrucured BIANOAFD advices wiven ceaie lo AELFEED Migher provisening amd 4 or|No. of bormowan (1] {1y i . 15
ATITOA] A weighl 8k (ha aid of e FY aiid herice need et be shown an resirctured |Amsni sutsianding 55.2%)) (Ao 16 72} " {63.90)
standard advances at e bogindung of tha nekt 7 Frowiginn thspeon (5.75) [@.80) 237 - (3.0}
§ | Deowngradations of reutructirsd sccounts during thi Fr W, 0 Dirirvns (4] - i - -
At outstanding 10,28 (.09 1117 . .
| Provision thaman {L87) {1.8% ER ) . (@81}
B | Wrileoirs of rsiruciured sccounis dunng the P o, of DorTawes (1 m . . n
A et standing [1.97) {30 f . .27}
| b Livmrmin (.20} (08} - - {0,68)
7 |Aestrumured Accounts as o 31 Maron 3076 N, Bf borrowars 2 F H - 3
[Arount outstanding i34 3.3 3,35 . 00
o |Provimon tharsan 1L 1% b . 2340
5 e o
Ansnt Classification Detalls L Lous Total
1 |Aesiruciurea ACCoure a8 o § AD 4025 e o Barroenr i k] B B ]
|ATIEHNL GATBANGING B 118 W . 21082
Pry sl areon 1927 110 . . Friid
1 | Fresh matrcturing diming the year Mo, Of Birperanis 2 = 3 E E
|ArPBunt plistandang - - -
Frow imian tharson - - . " "
¥ | pgradations 10 restrusiured standend categiory dunng e Y L T - . . E .
AT ouTslandng . . - . -
| P ey (Pt o) - = - -
4 (Restructured standard gdeances which CRASE 10 SUTACT Migher provisoning and / of [NO. of barrowars (43 - - ia)
| acidtitannal Ask waight &t e wid oF [N FY ani Rende nesd POl e showit a8 restruciured [dmount outstsnding (81,83} - . : (8162
saniarl advances at (e eginning of the aexl FY [Frovision tharmon 12189 . . . (18
§ | Disargradation of restruciured sccounts dunng the FY N, Of Ta s T3] a 1 - -
APaiant Dl staning {28.18) 158 12:80 - 0.60
Priryiion therein {843} .50 2.4 . B
B | WITIE-OTS O a1 rUCTure aTinuits duing the Fy M. of BTwars - ) . . {4
ATOUNL DUERLANTING " [10:240) . - L)
OB s . (108 = ® {1.83)
| Mestructured Accourts au on 33 Marcn 2024 Np, Of P fiweis L] 3 i 1
iiing sutatanding 10287 .13 12,80 . 130,00
Prosisien tharaun 1870 4,67 1,84 B 19,31




HIRAMANDANI FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

{Amaunts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

51 Public Disclosure on Liquidity Risk as per Appendix VI-A of Master Direction = Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based

Regulation) Directions, 2023 (Updated as an February 27, 2025)

1. Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings)

A% at March 31, 2025

o of Total % of Total
Numbaer of Significant Counterparties Amount Deposits Lisbilities
29 (Twanty Nine) 2,18,504.83 N.A. 97.24%
As at March 31, 2024
%o of Total % of Total
Number of Significant Counterparties Amount Deposits Lisbilities
28 (Twenty eight) 1,41,290.17 N.A, 92.90%

2. Top 20 large deposits (amount in  and % of total deposits):

The Company being a Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company registered with Reserve Bank of India and is
clagsified under Middle Layer pursuant to Master Direction = Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation)
Girections, 2023, does not accept public deposita, and hence, this disclosure s not applicable,

3. Top 10 borrowings (amount in ¥ and % of total barrowings):
As at March 31, 2025

Amount (¥) % of Total Borrowings
1,34 594,66 60, 79%
As at March 31, 2024
Amount (2) % of Total Borrowings
81,810,34 56,76%

4. Funding Concantration based on significant instrument/product:

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Name of the instrument / product % of Total % of Total
ARKITE Liabilities AT Liabllities
Tarm Loans fram Banks and Financial Institutions 2,11,424.82 54,09% 1,39,537,28 91.75%
Mon=convertible debentures 10,000,00 4,45% - 0.00%
Term Loan from Promotor - 0.00% 4,600,00 3.02%
- above amounts excludes interest accrued
5. Stock Ratios:
As at March 31, 2025
Particulars as a % of total | as a % of total | as a % of total
public funds liabilities assets
Commercial papers N.A. N.A, N.A,
Mon-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) 0,00% 0.00% 0.00%
Other short-term liabilities 28.99% 28.57% 20,595,
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars as a % of total | as a % of total | as a % of total
H public funds liabilities assets
Commarcial papers N.A. N.A, LA,
Won-convertible debentures (ariginal maturity of less than one year) N.A, N.A, N.A.
Othar short=term |labilities 30,58% 28,98% 19,45%

&, Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management:

The Liquidity Risk Managament of the Campany is gaverned by the Liquidity Risk Management Framework and Asget Liability Management Compmittes
{ALCO). The ALCO has the overall responsibility for management of liquidity risk. The ALCO decides the strategy, policies and procedures to manage
liguidity risk in accordance with the liquidity risk tolerance/limits approved by it, The Asset Liability Management Cammittes (ALCO), is rasponsible for
ensuring adherence to the liquidity risk telerance/limits as well as implementing the liquidity risk management strategy. The role of the ALCO with
respect to liguidity risk includes, Inter alia, decision on desired maturity profile and mix of |neremental assets and labilities, respansibilities and
cantrals for managing liquidity risk, and ovarsaaing the liquidity positians at an entity level.

Notes:

. "Significant counterparty” means as a single counterparty or group of connected or affiliated counterparties accounting in aggrigate for more than

1% of total liabilities,

b. “significant Instrument/product” means as a single Instrument/praduct of group of similar instruments/products which in aggregate amount to

mare than 1% of the total liabilities,

c. Tatal liabilities has been computed as sum of all liabilities (Balance Sheet figure) less equities and reserves/surplus,
d. Public funds is as defined in Master Direction - Mon-Banking Financial Company = Systemically Important Non-Beposit taking Company and Deposit

taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016,

e, Short=term llabilities include short-term borrowings, current maturities of long term debts and current maturities of finance |eazes,




HIRAMAMDANT FINAMNCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statemants for the year sndod 31 March 2025

—{AmQunta in INK lakns, unless oihervise stated)

52 Following are tha additionnl disclosures required as per Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013 vide Notification dated March 24, 2021;

52,1 The Company has no relationship and transactions with struck off campanies,

52.2 The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered of disclesed ag ineome during the year in the tax
asspsaments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

52.3 The Company is not having any subsidiary, Therefore, the provisions of clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 in
respect of Number of Layers is not applicable to the Company.,

52.4 There are no such immovable properties on lease where lease deeds are not held in name of the Company,

52.5 There are ne unspent amounts [0 respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred 1o a special Aaccount in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 134
of Companigs ACL. In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be transterred to a fund specified in Schedule Vi1 of the
Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act,

52.6 The Company is nat holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)

52.7 The Company has not advanced of loaned o invested funds to any other persen(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {Intermedianios) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shalli {a) directly or indirectly lend or invest In other persons o entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or () previde any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Bencliciaries,

52.8 The Company has net received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign antities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded In Writing or
otherwize) that the Company shall: (a) directly of indirectly lend of invest in other persons of entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
{Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b)) provide any guarantee, security or the lke on behall of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

52.9 The Company has not given any loans or advances In the nature of loans to promoters, difectors, KMPs and the related parties, that are repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or pericd of repayment.

52,10 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency,

32,11 The Company has Aot made any delay in registration of charges,

52,12 The Company has obtained various borrowings from banks/ FI on basis of security of current assets wherain the quarterly returns/ statements of current assets as fled with
banks/ Il are In agreement with the books, The company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the
balance sheat date, The company (s not declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution o other lender as at 31 March 2024,

52,13 Thers 1§ no such scheme of arfangements has been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013,

52.14 The Company has o process whereby periodically all long-term contracts are assessed for matenial foresecabhe losses, AL the yesr end, the Company has reviewed snd ensured
that adequate provisions are required under any law / accounting standards for material foreseeable losses on such long=term contracts has been made in the pooks of accounts,

52,15 There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclesure in these financial statements,

531 Direct Assignmaent
Disclosures pursuant to RBI Notification = RBYDOR/2021-22/B6 DOR,GTR,REC.51/21.04.040/2021-22 dated September 24, 2021 {updated as on December 28, 2023) for transfer
through assignment of loan, acquisition of loans through assignment and acquisition/transfer of any stiessed 1oan is s below!
) The company has nat acquired any [oans through assignmant in respect of loans not in default during the year ended Mareh 31,2025, {March 31, 2024: Nil)
b} Details of loans (net in default) transferred through co-lending arrangement (CLM=2) diring the year snded March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024; Nily:

Particulars Translerred

[Entity Bank

Count of loan accounts assigned (in numbers) sl

Amaunt of lean aceount assigned “”J!.E.h” 884.76

Retention of beneliclal econsmic intarast (MAR) _20%)

Welghted average maturlty [residual maturity in manths) 114,23

Weighted average halding pericd (in moenths) 6.72 e
Coverage of tangible Security 100%

Rating-wise distribution of rated loans Mt Rated

€] The Company has not transferred/acquired any stressed Ioans during the year ended March 31, 2025 [March 31, 2024 NIl),




HIRANANDANI PINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes to the financial statements for the y

ear ended 31 March 2025

54 Disclosures pursuant to RBI Hotification - RB1/2021-22/16 DOR.NO,BE,BE/3/21,04.040/2020-21 dated August 6, 2020 and REI/2021-23/31/DOR.STR.REC (11/21.04,048/2021-

22 dated May 5,2021 i6 a5 below:

__|Bs. in lakhs)
Type of Barrower Exposurs to accounts  |OF (A), aggregate debt |OF [A) amount weitten |Of (A) amount paid by |Exposure to accounts
classified s Standard  |that slipped into NPA  |off during the Half the borrowers during | elassified as Standard
consegquant to duripg the Half Year  [Yoar®® the Hall Year*** consequent ta
implemantation of |implemantation of
resolution plan - rasolution plan -
Panition as ak the end Position as ot the end
of March- 2024 (A) of 10 Septomber
m“"
Personal Loans : . .
Of which MSMEs . 2 - . :
Othars 102.87 197 147 a.97 50.93
Total 102.87 1.97 1.97 9.97 90,91
* As defined in Section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016
**represents debt that had slipped into stage 1 and was subsequantly written off during the half-year endad Septembar 30, 2024,
*2% rapresents raceipts net af interest accruals.
[Rs, in lakhs)
Typo of Borrower Exposure to accounts  |Of (A), aggregate debt |Of (A} amount written |Of (A) amount paid by |Exposure to accounts
[— classified as Standard  |that slippad into NPA  |off during the Half the borrowers durlng | elassiliod as Standard
consequent to during the Half Year  |Year®® ithe Hallf Year®** consequent o
implementation of implementation of
resolution plan — resolution plan -
Paoiition as at the end Pasition as at the end
of September: 2024 [A) of 11 March 2025%*
|Personal Loans - : r
Corporate persons® . -
O wihich M!M__E_I - - - =
Others .03 10.21 48.29 12,43
[Total 20.93 1021 : .29 3243

* As defined In Section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

_"mEr'“nh debt that had F“EE# into stage 4 and war subiequantly writtan off during the hall.year ended March 31, 2025,

#*% ragrosants recelpti net of interest aceruals.

8% Previous year figures have been re-grouped / reclassfied where necessary to conform to the current year's classification,
a) Late Paymant Penalty Rs. 9.99 lakhs, praviously classilied under '[nterest [ncome’, has been reclassified under ‘Fees and Commission Income',
b) Foreciesure Charges Rs, 227,26 lnkhs, Bounce Charges Rs. 110.14 lakhs, Other Charges Rs. 6.89 lakhs, and Documentation Pee Income Rs. 15.59 lakhs, earlier grouped
under 'Other Operating Revenue', are now presented under 'Fees and Commission Income’,
€] Overdue Interest on Loans Re, 71,69 lakhs, earlier included under "Other Recelvables’, has been regrouped under "Loans’,
d) Interest accrued but nat due on borrowings Rs, 249,54 lakhs has been regrouped from 'Other Finanical Liabilities’ to ‘Interest Accrued but Not Due on Borrowings' under
e) Commission expense of R8, 32,20 lakhs has been regrouped fiom 'Employes Benelit Expense ' to "Other Expenses’,

56 Changae in liabilitiea srising from financing activities:

Particulars

Debt Securities

Borrowings Other than Debt Securities

Total

Particulars
Dabt Securities

Borrowings Other than Debt Securities

Total

*Others includes effective interest adjustrment and interest accrued,

Anat Exchange As at
31March 2024  CO8h Flow [Nat) Difference Othars* 31 Mareh 2025
. 10,000.00 = {11.47) 9,988,53
1,43,651,13 £7,289,30 415,80 (727.2%) 2,10,629.00
1|43‘ﬂ! 1.13 77,289,330 415,80 (738.70) allﬂ‘ﬁi'l-!]
As at Exehangs As at
31 March 2023  CUsh Flow (Nat) Differanca i 31 March 2024
69, 746,69 74,188.00 - (283.56) 1,43,651.13
% 21X 73,188,00 : (283.36)  1,43,651.13
-
— d
.I ‘ I' \ "‘I’TI‘:“
rl }A




HIRANANDANI FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statemants for tha year ended 31 March 2025

JAmpunts.in INA 1

57 Statutory Roserve
As por Section 45:1C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, the Company is required 1o creale a reservi fund at the rata of 20% of the net profit after tax of the Company svery year
Tha Company hag tranafarred twanty per cent of its net profit in special reserve

Approval of financial statemants

khe, uniges otharwise slatad)

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 were approved by the Board of Directors and suthorised for issue on May 10, 2025,

As per our report of even date attached
Par KKC & Asociatas LLP
{formerly Khimji Konvar) & Co LLP)

Chartered Accountants

ICAL Firm Reglstration No. 105140W/W100621
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Vinlt Jain

Partner

Membarship No: 145911
Place ¢ Mumbal
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For and an Bahall of the Board of Directors of
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Harsh &, Hiranandani Heha §. Hiranandani

Director Direcior
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Place : Mumbal Place : Landan

Date : May 10, 2025 Date : May 10, 2625
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u Buvarna Rajash Rajak Kataki Prasad Satam
Chief Executive Officer Chief Pinancial Officer Company Secretary

M, Mo, AZH476
Place | Mumbal Placs | Murmbai Place ; Mumbal

Data | May 10, 2025 Date : May 10, 2025 Date | May 10, 2025
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